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JEFFERSON SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Regular Meeting of the Board of Trustees 


Tuesday, January17, 2017  
 


 


BOARD ROOM    1219 WHISPERING WIND DRIVE                             5:30 P.M. 


AGENDA 
 
5:30 p.m. – Open Session (For Purposes of Opening Meeting ONLY) - District Office Conference Room 
5:35 p.m. – Closed Session to Discuss Closed Session Items Listed Below 
6:30 p.m. – Reconvene to Open Session – District Board Room 
 


1.  OPEN SESSION  
 a. Call to Order 
 b. Roll Call to Establish Quorum 
 c. Approval of Agenda 


d. Public Hearing 
  


e. Closed Session - Adjourn to Closed Session for the purpose of discussing matters expressly authorized by Government Codes 


3549.1, 54956.7, 54956.8, 54956.9, 54956.95, 54957, 54957.8, Education Codes 49079 (c), 48912, 48918 (c)  
 


PUBLIC EMPLOYEE EMPLOYMENT/DISCIPLINE/DISMISSAL/RELEASE/RESIGNATION 


 Certificated # 11535, 11536 and 11537 


 Classified  # 11538, 11539 and 11540 
 


 f. ADJOURN TO CLOSED SESSION 
    


2.  RETURN TO OPEN SESSION – 6:30 P.M. 
 Welcome and Closed Session Report 
 Pledge of Allegiance 
 Superintendent’s Report 
 
  


3.   PUBLIC HEARING – Presentations are limited to items not on the agenda.  When you are recognized, state your name and then proceed 


with your presentation.  State law prohibits the Trustees from taking action on any item not on the agenda.  No person shall speak for more 


than three minutes, and the total time allotted for discussion for one item shall not exceed twenty minutes. (Board Bylaw 9323) 
 


 


 


For items on the agenda, a person wishing to be heard by the Board shall first be recognized by the President of the Board and shall then 


proceed to comment as briefly as the subject permits.  Individual speakers shall be allowed three minutes to address the Board on each item.  
The Board shall limit the total time for public input on each item to twenty minutes. (Board Bylaw 9323) 


 


4.  APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA 
4.1 Minutes – Special Board Meeting December 7, 2016 and Regular Board Meeting                


December 13, 2016 
4.2 Warrants – December 2016  
4.3 Financials – December 2016 
  


5.  EDUCATIONAL SERVICES (Board may or may not take action on any items listed below) 


5.1 Student Body Reports        • Information 


5.2 School Parent/ Parent Faculty Group Reports     • Information  
5.3 Local Control Accountability Plan (LCAP) Timeline    • Information 
5.4 Family Life Education Curriculum Adoption     • Action 
5.5 Revise BP/AR 6142.1 – Sexual Health & HIV/AIDS Prevention Education, • Action 


  Second Reading 
5.6 Student Enrollment        • Information 
          


6.  PERSONNEL SERVICES (Board may or may not take action on any items listed below) 


 6.1 Brandman University – Supervised Fieldwork Agreement –    • Action 


School Psychology 
6.2 Brandman University – Supervised Internship Agreement –   • Action 
 School Psychology  


  
7.  BUSINESS AND FACILITIES (Board may or may not take action on any items listed below) 


 7.1 December 2016 Budget Adjustments      • Action 
 7.2 Food Services Department Report      • Information  
 7.3 Tracy Little League Contract 2017-2018      • Action 


7.4 California Energy Commission Assistance with Proposition 39,    • Action 
Resolution 2017-01-01    


 7.5 Acceptance of 2015-2016 Audit       • Action 
 7.6 Quarterly Williams Act Reporting       • Information 
  


8.  BOARD DISCUSSION AND REPORTS (Board may or may not take action on any items listed below)    


 8.1 Items for Next Board Meeting       • Information 
    


9.  CALENDAR OF UPCOMING EVENTS  
 February  13, 2017   NO SCHOOL – Lincoln’s Birthday Holiday 
 February 20, 2017   NO SCHOOL – Presidents Day Holiday 


 February 21, 2017   Regular Board Meeting 
 MINIMUM DAYS    Every Monday    
 


10.  ADJOURNMENT   
Note:  Any member of the public who wishes to view any non-confidential item on this agenda may contact the superintendent prior to 


the evening of the meeting. The Jefferson School District complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act. Any individual who requires  
disability-related accommodations or modifications should contact the Superintendent’s office at least 24 hours prior to the meeting. 
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Jefferson School District  
Official Minutes of the Special Meeting 


Of the Board of Trustees 


December 7, 2016 
 


Present: Debbie Wingo, President; Dan Wells, Vice President; Pete Carlson, Member; Phil Raya, Member; 


Jim Bridges, Superintendent  
 


In attendance: Mindy Maxedon, CBO; Nancie Castro, Director of Human Resources and Curriculum 
 


I. OPEN SESSION  


a. Call to Order at 6:00 PM 


b. Roll Call to Establish Quorum – Mr. Jackman was absent 


c. Approval of Agenda  


d. Public Hearing – No comments from the public. 


MSA (Wells/Raya) approve the agenda  


Ayes - 4   Nays -0  Absent – 0  Abstain – 0 


Carlson, Raya,                                


Wells, Wingo 


      


e. Closed Session Adjourn to Closed Session for the purpose of discussing matters expressly 


authorized by Government Codes 3549.1,54956.7,54956.8, 54956.9,54956.95,54957, 54957.8, Education Codes 49079(c), 


48912, 48918 (c) 
  


f. ADJOURN TO CLOSED SESSION 
 


II. RETURN TO OPEN SESSION – 6:45 PM 


Welcome and Closed Session Report 
 


 


In closed session –  


 Discussed negotiations with JTA 


 


III. ADJOURNMENT - MSA (Carlson/Raya) 6:45 PM Time  
 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 


 


 


 


James W. Bridges 


Secretary to the Board 
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Jefferson School District  
Official Minutes of the Regular Meeting 


Of the Board of Trustees 


December 13, 2016 
 


Present: Debbie Wingo, President; Dan Wells, Vice President; Brian Jackman, Member; Pete Carlson, 


Member; Phil Raya, Member, Jim Bridges, Superintendent  
 


In attendance: Mindy Maxedon, CBO; Nancie Castro, Director of Human Resources and Curriculum; 


Angelica Thomas, Director of Special Education; Sarah Steen, Curriculum Coordinator; Christina Orsi, 


Principal; Celli Coeville, Administrative Assistant 


 
I. OPEN SESSION  


a. Call to Order at 5:44 PM 


b. Roll Call to Establish Quorum – Mr. Raya arrived late. 


c. Approval of Agenda  


d. Public Hearing – No comments from the public. 


MSA (Wells/Jackman) approve the agenda  


Ayes - 5   Nays -0  Absent – 0  Abstain – 0 


Carlson, Jackman,                         


Raya, Wells, Wingo 


      


 e. Closed Session Adjourn to Closed Session for the purpose of discussing matters expressly 


authorized by Government Codes 3549.1, 54956.7, 54956.8, 54956.9, 54956.95,54957, 54957.8, Education Codes 49079(c), 48912, 


48918  


  


f. ADJOURN TO CLOSED SESSION 
 


II. RETURN TO OPEN SESSION – 6:30 PM 


Welcome from Board President Debbie Wingo 


The Pledge of Allegiance was recited. 


Superintendent’s Report 


Reorganization of the Board & Oath of Office – P. Carlson & D. Wingo 
  


 


In closed session –  


 Resolution 2016-12-01 was approved 


 Resolution 2016-12-02 was approved 


 MSA (Wells/Carlson) approve the hire of certificated employee #’s 11528, 11529 & 11530. 


The resignation of certificated employee 11531. The hire of classified employee #’s 11532, 


11533 & 11534 were also approved. 


Ayes - 5   Nays -0  Absent – 0  Abstain – 0 


Carlson, Jackman,      


Raya, Wells, Wingo 


 


 Discussed negotiations with JTA 


 


Superintendent’s Report – Dr. Bridges noted that the principals from Traina and Jefferson School are 


absent as their schools are having their Winter Programs tonight.  On November 11, 2016 Dr. 


Bridges attended the San Joaquin County Office of Education dinner along with Mr. Carlson, Mr. 


Raya, and Mr. & Mrs. Wells. Last week, Dr. Bridges met with Nolan O’Brien - a parent from Traina 


School who is also the Public Information Officer for the Lawrence Livermore National Laboratory. 


Mr. O’Brien presented the District with a check for $5,000 for the District to use for science, 


engineering, mathematics and technology field trips. Dr. Bridges recognized Board President Debbie 


Wingo for her year of service to the District as Board President.  Former Board Member Jackie 


Thomas was recognized by Dr. Bridges and the Board of Education for her six years of service to the 


Jefferson School District. 
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Oath of Office – Dr. Bridges administered the oath of office to Peter Carlson and Debbie Wingo, 


each of whom will serve another four-year term. Dr. Bridges thanked both Mr. Carlson and Ms. 


Wingo for entering into their 6
th
 year of service as board members which equates to 24 years of 


service when this term expires. 


 


Reorganization of the Board 


MSA (Carlson/Jackman) nominate Dan Wells as Board President. Brian Jackman was selected as 


Vice President and Pete Carlson was selected as Clerk. 2017 Committee Representatives were 


confirmed as presented. 


Ayes - 5   Nays -0  Absent – 0  Abstain – 0 


Carlson, Jackman,      


Raya, Wells, Wingo 


 


III. PUBLIC HEARING – No comments from the public 


   


IV. APPROVAL OF THE CONSENT AGENDA  


4.1 Minutes - Regular Board Meetings November 15, 2016  


4.2 Warrants - November 2016 


4.3 Financials - November 2016 


4.4 Donation from Lawrence Livermore National Laboratory 


MSA (Jackman/Carlson) approve the consent agenda as presented 


Ayes - 5   Nays -0  Absent – 0  Abstain – 0 


Carlson, Jackman,         


Raya, Wells, Wingo      


  


V. EDUCATIONAL SERVICES 


5.1 Student Body Reports – Jefferson and Monticello Schools did not present. 


 


Jabari Vaughn, Traina’s ASB President, presented – Traina’s PTA hosted the Penguin Patch Holiday 


Shoppe where students could shop for their friends and families from December 5
th
- 8


th
. Students are 


performing tonight and tomorrow night for Traina’s Winter Program. The Tiger Ticket store opened 


and students could “purchase” items with their Tiger Tickets. Mr. Vaughn broke down what each 


grade level is currently studying- from sentences in the 1
st
 grade to plate tectonics in the 6


th
 grade.  


West High School had an SEA program representative visit the 8
th
 graders and counselors from 


Kimball High School came to help 8
th
 grade students register for next school year.  After the break, 


Traina School will host a Winter Wonderland Dance on January 20
th
.
 


 


Priya Sehdev, Hawkins School ASB Primary Representative, presented this month – on November 


16
th
 students attended a BMX Assembly where students saw bike tricks and learned about working 


hard and perseverance. On December 2
nd


, Tracy High School visited and outlined program options 


for high school and assisted with registration. Hawkins Winter Programs were on December 7
th
 & 


8th. Over the past two weeks, students have been collecting non-perishable food items for Brighter 


Christmas. ASB hopes that when they count the boxes, over 120 boxes of non-perishable food items 


will be collected to donate.  After students return in January, the ASB will host a dance with a theme 


of Winter Wonderland. The third grade will be getting ready for Pioneer School, and a mobile dairy 


will come to Hawkins as well.  


 


5.2 Family Life Education Curriculum – Sarah Steen, the Coordinator of Curriculum outlined 


the upcoming changes in family life curriculum. In January 2016, California adopted new legislation 


covering comprehensive sexual health education and HIV prevention education in public schools. 


The new law called the Healthy Youth Act attempts to standardize & update sexual education in the 


state. New requirements in the legislation call for a change in curriculum.  The new requirements 


indicate that instruction in sexual health education and HIV prevention must be done by trained 


teachers at least once in middle school (currently 7
th
 grade) and in high school. Parents used to be 


able to either opt in or out from their students participating in this instruction.  The process now is 
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that families are notified that Family Life Curriculum will be presented. If families elect to opt out 


they need to notify teacher/school site in writing that they opt out.  This is a big change as the 


District used to confirm consent from parents. Now if the parent does not formally opt out, the 


students are taught. 


 


The District’s former curriculum Postponing Sexual Involvement (PSI) was first adopted in 2007. 


Out of the new curriculums offered Teen Talk Middle School & Positive Prevention Plus are the two 


programs that stood out and the County recommends the same programs. The proposed new 


curriculum will be available for preview from January 4 – January 6 in the Student Services 


conference room.  All programs are available in both English and Spanish.   Going forward, our next 


changes will begin with a change in our board policy. Ms. Steen noted that we have policy updates 


that align with the new curriculum. Hopefully in January the Board can take action to adopt new 


curriculum. Teachers could be trained in February and we can begin the new curriculum.  Mr. 


Jackman asked if either of the programs are aligned with Tracy High School.  If adopted, this new 


curriculum will be implemented in the 2016-2017 school year. The current programs are four weeks 


long. 


 


5.3 Revise BP/AR 6142.1 – Sexual Health & HIV/AIDS Prevention Education, First Reading – 


Dr. Bridges noted that there are a number of state changes. The District attached California School 


Board Association’s (CSBA’s) new policies as there are many changes regarding opting in or opting 


out of the curriculum. There are some definition changes in the new policies as well. Dr. Bridges 


noted that information covered in the District’s current BP/AR 6142.2 (AIDS Prevention Instruction) 


has been incorporated into the new BP/AR 6142.1.  Mr. Wells asked if the District would need to 


“de-adopt” the old policy and Dr. Bridges noted that we would investigate Mr. Wells’ question. 


 


5.4 Student Enrollment – We had a slight increase in student enrollment. We are trending in the 


right direction.  


 


VI. PERSONNEL SERVICES 


 


VII. BUSINESS AND FACILTIES  
7.1 November 2016 Budget Adjustments -  
MSA (Wingo/Jackman) approve the November 2016 Budget Adjustments as presented 


Ayes – 5   Nays -0  Absent – 0  Abstain – 0 


Carlson, Jackman,        


Raya, Wells, Wingo 


  
 7.2 2016-2017 Interim Report - CBO Mindy Maxedon reported that a few years ago the State 


moved away from the Revenue Limit Calculation to the Local Control Accountability Program 
(LCAP) and Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF) for funding. Ms. Maxedon noted that one-time 
funding is budgeted this year although the state has not confirmed the amount for Average Daily 
Attendance (ADA) and no actual revenue has been received for one-time funds. The State hasn’t 
provided a confirmed amount for ADA. Dr. Bridges & Ms. Maxedon will attend the Governor’s 
Budget Workshop on January 17th and will provide an update.  


 
 Our supplemental funds are budgeted in Resource 0709 and our 2016-17 current budgeted revenue is 


$887,672 with expenditures budgeted at $834,428. The reserve shown on 1st Interim of $223,911 
will be corrected at 2nd Interim.  The supplemental reserves shown in November’s financials of 
$800,369 are correct.  1st Interim Assumptions back out the ongoing 5% increase as the agreement 
was not ratified by the Jefferson Teacher’s Association (JTA).  $1.1M is set aside for the English 
Language Arts (ELA) textbook adoption and $134.5K is reserved for 2017-18 and onward for future 
adoptions. 2016-17 is funded at Period 2 ADA of 2,298.26 and the District is still projecting a 
decline of 40 students each year.  Interim assumptions include Public Employee’s Retirement 
System (PERS) and State Teacher’s Retirement Systems (STRS) which are going up year after year. 
Employer and employee contributions have a combined increase across all three years of $596K in 
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expenses.  The report shows the district is positively certified through the 2018-19 school year based 
on current assumptions. 
MSA (Wingo/Carlson) approve the 2016-2017 Interim Report as presented -  


Ayes – 5   Nays -0  Absent – 0  Abstain – 0 


Carlson, Jackman,        


Raya, Wells, Wingo 


 
 7.3 RFP 2016-12-13 District Wireless Upgrade and Cabling Internal Connections 
 eRate Year 20 – Dr. Bridges noted that this is the 20th year of eRate in the state of California.  Each 


year funding is offset for wireless projects through eRate. This year we are looking to update 
network equipment at Hawkins, Traina and Monticello Schools to bring them up to 10 gigabyte 
internal network which is what Jefferson School currently has. The bids for this project will be close 
to $500K and will save the district $250K if approved. The next step is to bring the Request For 
Proposal (RFP) to the Board for approval. Dr. Bridges thanked I.T. Coordinator Nick Watson for his 
hard work on the proposal.  


 MSA (Wingo/Jackman) approve RFP 2016-12-13 District Wireless Upgrade and Cabling Internal 
Connections eRate Year 20 as presented 


Ayes – 5   Nays -0  Absent – 0  Abstain – 0 


Carlson, Jackman,        


Raya, Wells, Wingo 


  
 VIII. BOARD DISCUSSION AND REPORTS 


8.1 CSBA Delegate Assembly Nomination – no CSBA nominations from the Board. 
 
8.2 Items for Next Board Meeting-BP/AR 6142.1 Sexual Health and HIV /AIDS Prevention 


Education, Second Reading. 
 
IX. ADJOURNMENT – MSA (Carlson/Jackman) 7:10 PM  
 


Respectfully submitted, 


 


 


 


James W. Bridges 


Secretary to the Board 


 


 


 





		4.1 December 7 2016 Minutes Special Board Meeting

		4.1 December 13  2016 minutes 1










Board ReportReqPay12c


Checks Dated 12/01/2016 through 12/31/2016


Check 
Amount


Pay to the Order ofCheck 
Number


Check 
Date


Expensed 
AmountFund-Object Comment


10228712 12/01/2016 California's Valued Trust 01-9513 CVT NOV 2016 PAYROLL 162,174.78 


10228713 12/01/2016 Metlife Small Business Center 01-9514 METLIFE NOV 2016 PAYROLL 1,422.61 


10228915 12/02/2016 Discount School Supply 01-4310 MS / Classroom Items 544.22 


10228916 12/02/2016 Educational Innovations Inc 01-4310 HS/MATERIALS & SUPPLIES 101.48 


10228917 12/02/2016 GovConnection, Inc 01-4310 IT/NURSE OFFICE CHROMEBOOKS 102.00 


MS/CHROMEBOOKS FOR OUTLAND'S 


CLASS


3,193.43 


REFUND DEFECTIVE CHROMEBOOK 228.61-


REPLACEMENT CHROMEBOOK 228.61 3,295.43 


10228918 12/02/2016 Office Depot - 89094763 01-4310 SE/OFFICE SUPPLIES 84.38 


10228919 12/02/2016 OTC Brands Inc 01-4310 MS / Classroom Items 182.90 


10228920 12/02/2016 San Joaquin County Office of Education 01-5891 IT/2016/17 VIRTUAL SERVER 333.36 


10228921 12/02/2016 Woodwind And Brasswind 01-4310 HS/MATERIALS & SUPPLIES 637.36 


10228922 12/02/2016 Alhambra 01-5510 DO/JS BOTTLED WATER 104.48 


10228923 12/02/2016 Center For Hearing Health 01-5800 DW/HEARING TESTING 3,538.85 


10228924 12/02/2016 Clean Energy 01-4382 TD/FUEL FOR BUSSES 1,217.09 


10228925 12/02/2016 Educational Data Systems Attn 


Accounting Dept


01-5218 CU/CELDT EXCESSIVE MATERIALS 


CHARGE


12.12 


10228926 12/02/2016 FedEx 01-5930 DO/POSTAGE 43.67 


10228927 12/02/2016 Nasco - Modesto 01-4310 MS / Classroom Items 166.61 


10228928 12/02/2016 Office Depot - 89094763 01-4310 BO/OFFICE SUPPLIES 76.89 


MS/Classroom Supplies 59.68 136.57 


10228929 12/02/2016 School Services Of Calif. Inc 01-5809 BO/FINANCE SERVICES 245.00 


10228930 12/02/2016 Angelica M. Thomas 01-5210 SE/MILEAGE 11/1 - 11/22/16 - THOMAS 217.35 


10228931 12/02/2016 Valley Community Counseling Sv 01-5809 DW/COUNSELING SERVICES 13,170.00 


10228932 12/02/2016 Van's Ace Hardware 01-4310 MO/MATERIAL & SUPPLIES 52.83 


10228933 12/02/2016 Rianna G. Xavier 01-5210 BO/MILEAGE 10/6 - 10/31/16  - XAVIER 67.81 


10229147 12/05/2016 AMS .Net, inc c/o Fremont Bank 01-4310 JS/SARAMARK BUILDING AV CABLING 177.71 


01-5800 JS/SARAMARK BUILDING AV CABLING 452.29 630.00 


10229148 12/05/2016 Cornelia M. Hoverter 01-4310 HS/CLASS SUPPLIES - HOVERTER 43.20 


10229149 12/05/2016 Office Depot - 89094763 01-4310 MS / School Supplies 593.87 


OFFICE SUPPLIES 214.74 


TS/PORTABLE CD PLAYERS 808.61 


10229150 12/05/2016 Pacific Gas & Electric Co 01-5520 DW/UTILITIES 15,675.92 


10229151 12/05/2016 Super Duper Publications 01-4310 MS/Classroom Supplies 291.06 


Unpaid Tax 21.56- 269.50 


10229152 12/05/2016 Ten Four Communications Inc 01-5800 HS/RADIO COVER & BATTERY REPLACED 163.04 


10229153 12/05/2016 Theatre Works USA 01-5800 TS/2ND G. F/T TO GALLO THEATRE 915.75 


The preceding Checks have been issued in accordance with the District's Policy and authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the 


preceding Checks be approved. Page 1 of 5
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Checks Dated 12/01/2016 through 12/31/2016


Check 
Amount


Pay to the Order ofCheck 
Number


Check 
Date


Expensed 
AmountFund-Object Comment


10229154 12/05/2016 Wallace-Kuhl & Associates 25-5809 ELLIS 4,692.50 


TRACY HILLS 4,246.25 8,938.75 


10229474 12/07/2016 Anthony Traina School 01-8699 TRANSFER VOLLEYBALL TOURNAMENT 


FEES TO ASB


342.00 


10229475 12/07/2016 Cynthia D. Boyd 01-4310 MS/CLASS SUPPLIES - BOYD 22.12 


10229476 12/07/2016 Tina R. Coverdale 01-5210 SE/MILEAGE 11/1-11/30/16  COVERDALE 31.05 


10229477 12/07/2016 Engage Organics Salt-Free Seasoning 


Blends


13-4310 FS Salt free spices 202.08 


10229478 12/07/2016 GovConnection, Inc 01-4310 IT/CHROMEBOOK BOXES 100.00 


10229479 12/07/2016 Ingram & Brauns Musik Shoppe 01-5800 TS/CORNET REPAIR 75.43 


10229480 12/07/2016 Safety-Kleen Systems Inc 01-5800 JS/SEMI ANNUAL SERVICE 1,368.59 


10229481 12/07/2016 The Gift Of Speech 01-5809 SE/CONTRACTED SPEECH PATHOLOGY 5,670.00 


10229482 12/07/2016 Alhambra 01-5510 DO/JS BOTTLED WATER 33.62 


10229483 12/07/2016 Danielsen Co. 13-4310 FS/MATERIAL & SUPPLIES 1,961.58 


13-4710 FS/DW FOOD SUPPLIES 5,940.20 7,901.78 


10229484 12/07/2016 Domino's Pizza 13-4710 FS/DW FOOD SUPPLIES 2,422.50 


10229485 12/07/2016 General Produce Co. Ltd 13-4710 FS/FOOD SUPPLIES - PRODUCE 996.80 


10229486 12/07/2016 Producers Dairy Foods, Inc 13-4730 FS/MILK SUPPLIES 3,561.20 


10229487 12/07/2016 Sysco Central California Inc 13-4310 FS/ MATERIAL & SUPPLIES 104.18 


10229895 12/09/2016 Action ASAP Delivery Service 01-5800 DO/COURIER SERVICE 235.40 


10229896 12/09/2016 Aeropure Water 01-5510 DW/WATER 279.40 


01-5610 DW/WATER 50.00 329.40 


10229897 12/09/2016 Ameripride Services 01-5580 MO/LAUNDRY SERVICES 1,729.16 


13-5800 FS/DW LAUNDRY SUPPLIES 515.37 2,244.53 


10229898 12/09/2016 Brannon Tire 01-4390 TD/VEHICLE TIRES 182.00 


10229899 12/09/2016 Central Sanitary Supply 01-4310 MO/DW/MATERIAL & SUPPLIES 3,166.76 


10229900 12/09/2016 City Of Tracy 01-5510 DW/WATER & SEWER 3,160.09 


01-5570 DW/WATER & SEWER 3,568.00 6,728.09 


10229901 12/09/2016 Co Occupational Medical Partne rs 01-5800 HEP B VACCINE #2 - VIEIRA 60.00 


10229902 12/09/2016 Cojo Landscape Inc 01-5515 DW/GOPHER ABATEMENT 700.00 


10229903 12/09/2016 Jillian Finton 01-4310 TS/CLASS SUPPLIES - FINTON 158.78 


10229904 12/09/2016 Home Depot Credit Services 01-4310 MO/MATERIAL & SUPPLIES 149.25 


10229905 12/09/2016 MidAmerica Books 01-4310 TS/BDAY BOOK CLUB RESTOCK 1,060.53 


10229906 12/09/2016 Mobile Modular Mgmt Corp 01-5620 MO/RENTAL OFFICE 255.73 


10229907 12/09/2016 Office Depot - 89094763 01-4310 HS/MATERIALS & SUPPLIES 21.04 


10229908 12/09/2016 Quality Sound 01-5680 DO/PHONE & ALARM REPAIRS 145.00 


10229909 12/09/2016 Joellen K. Rosette 01-4310 HS/FIELD TRIP TICKETS - ROSETTE 69.90 


The preceding Checks have been issued in accordance with the District's Policy and authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the 


preceding Checks be approved. Page 2 of 5
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Checks Dated 12/01/2016 through 12/31/2016


Check 
Amount


Pay to the Order ofCheck 
Number


Check 
Date


Expensed 
AmountFund-Object Comment


10229910 12/09/2016 Solution Tree Inc 01-4310 TS/MATERIALS FOR PROF. 


DEVELOPMENT


622.86 


10229911 12/09/2016 SUMA Kids Inc 01-5809 SE/OCCUPATIONAL THERAPY SERVICES 2,000.00 


10229912 12/09/2016 Tank Town Media LLC DBA Tracy Press 01-5842 BO/ANNUAL RENEWAL OF 


CONTRACTORS


168.60 


10229913 12/09/2016 Tunes & Tomes 01-5800 HS/MATERIALS & SUPPLIES 118.69 


10229914 12/09/2016 Verizon Wireless 01-5943 MO/CELL PHONES 25.05 


10229915 12/09/2016 Woodwind And Brasswind 01-4310 HS/MATERIALS & SUPPLIES 70.20 


10230137 12/12/2016 Ameripride Services 01-5580 MO/LAUNDRY SERVICES 628.86 


13-5800 FS/DW LAUNDRY SUPPLIES 314.55 943.41 


10230138 12/12/2016 CIT 01-5610 DW/XEROX LEASE 2016-17 2,785.49 


10230139 12/12/2016 City Of Tracy 01-5510 HS & TS/FIRE SPRINKLERS 80.00 


10230140 12/12/2016 Delta Wireless & Network Solutions 01-5640 TW/TD-RADIOS & POWER SUPPLY FOR 


BUS RADIOS


242.10 


10230141 12/12/2016 General Produce Co. Ltd 13-4710 FS/FOOD SUPPLIES - PRODUCE 635.90 


10230142 12/12/2016 Napa Auto Parts 01-4370 TD/VEHICLE REPAIR SUPPLIES 192.66 


10230143 12/12/2016 San Joaquin County Office of Education 01-5815 TS/OUTDOOR ED SCIENCE CAMP 2016 22,953.00 


10230144 12/12/2016 Sherry L. Hurd 01-8699 MANUAL WARRANT 12/9/16 - HURD 441.38 


10230809 12/14/2016 City Of Tracy 01-5510 DW/WATER & SEWER 704.92 


01-5570 DW/WATER & SEWER 1,762.20 2,467.12 


10230810 12/14/2016 Consolidated Electrical Dist 01-4310 MO - DW/LIGHTS 464.62 


10230811 12/14/2016 Office Depot - 89094763 01-4310 BO/OFFICE SUPPLIES 91.10 


HS/COPY PAPER 955.48 


J/S supplies 179.11 1,225.69 


10230812 12/14/2016 David E. Olson 01-5210 TS/MILEAGE 11/17/16 - OLSON 110.16 


10230813 12/14/2016 Kenneth J. Silman 01-5210 TS/MILEAGE 11/15/16 - SILMAN 113.94 


10230814 12/14/2016 Silva Electrical Inc 01-5800 JS/INSTALL OUTLETS IN SARAMARK 


BUILDINGS


3,360.00 


10230815 12/14/2016 Comcast 01-5941 DW/COMCAST INTERNET 6,069.49 


10230816 12/14/2016 Costco Wholesale Membership 01-5300 COSTCO MEMBERSHIP RENEWAL FEB  


2016-2017


110.00 


10230817 12/14/2016 Imagine Learning Inc 01-5800 TS/IMAGINE LEARNING LICENSE EL 


PROGRAM


900.00 


10230818 12/14/2016 J.W. Pepper & Son Inc 01-4310 J/S Music supplies 141.45 


10230819 12/14/2016 Loretta Campbell 01-5815 TS/SCIENCE CAMP REFUND 1 DAY 52.00 


10230820 12/14/2016 Maggie Henry 01-5815 SCIENCE CAMP REFUND 1 1/2 DAY 165.00 


10230821 12/14/2016 Michelle Murman 01-4310 TS/CLASS SUPPLIEES - MURMAN 258.50 


10230822 12/14/2016 NCS Pearson Inc. 01-4310 SE/TESTING SUPPLIES 60.00 


The preceding Checks have been issued in accordance with the District's Policy and authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the 


preceding Checks be approved. Page 3 of 5
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Board ReportReqPay12c


Checks Dated 12/01/2016 through 12/31/2016


Check 
Amount


Pay to the Order ofCheck 
Number


Check 
Date


Expensed 
AmountFund-Object Comment


10230823 12/14/2016 Victoria Ochoa 01-5210 HR/MILEAGE 11/18/16 & 12/7/16 - OCHOA 25.54 


10230824 12/14/2016 School Nurse Supply Inc. 01-4310 CU/EMERGENCY BACKPACK 1,333.07 


10230825 12/14/2016 Kenneth J. Silman 01-4310 TS/STAFF SUPPLIES - SILMAN 76.50 


10230826 12/14/2016 Ten Four Communications Inc 01-4310 TD/ANTENNA FOR BUS #1 64.16 


01-5800 TS/RADIO REPAIR 100.00 164.16 


10230827 12/14/2016 Tracy Lock & Safe 01-4310 TD/KEYS FOR BUS #1 22.14 


10230828 12/14/2016 Jennifer A. Vieira 01-4310 MS/CLASS SUPPLIES - VIEIRA 72.76 


10230829 12/14/2016 U.S. Bank Corporate Payment 01-4200 CU/CC-STEEN NOV 2016 345.05 


DO/CC-BRIDGES NOV 2016 63.31 


JS/CC-WOOTEN NOV 2016 75.00 


01-4310 BO/CC-MAXEDON NOV 2016 101.32 


CU/CC-STEEN NOV 2016 761.34 


DO/CC-COEVILLE NOV 2016 226.08 


HS/CC-ORSI NOV 2016 473.52 


JS/CC-WOOTEN NOV 2016 421.26 


MS/CC-ADAIR NOV 2016 747.02 


SE/CC-THOMAS NOV 2016 37.47 


TS/CC-OLSON NOV 2016 96.38 


01-5220 DO/CC-BRIDGES NOV 2016 19.00 


DO/CC-COEVILLE NOV 2016 68.58 


HR/CC-CASTRO NOV 2016 165.00 


01-5800 JS/CC-WOOTEN NOV 2016 31.25 3,631.58 


10231220 12/16/2016 J.W. Pepper & Son Inc 01-4310 HS/MATERIALS & SUPPLIES 695.33 


10231221 12/16/2016 Quality Service Inc 01-5809 MO/WELL TESTING - JEFFERSON 285.00 


10231222 12/16/2016 San Joaquin County Office of Education 01-5809 DO/MEDICAL BILLING SERVICES 226.00 


10231223 12/16/2016 School Services Of Calif. Inc 01-5809 BO/FINANCE SERVICES 245.00 


10231224 12/16/2016 Therapeutic Pathways 01-5809 SE/BEHAVIOR CONSULATION SERVICE 2,347.63 


10231446 12/19/2016 AT&T 01-5940 DW/PHONE LINES 1,380.75 


10231447 12/19/2016 Bills Mower And Saw 01-4310 MO/2015-16 BLANKET ORDER FOR 


MOWER PARTS


538.84 


10231448 12/19/2016 Christopher or Gina Vogt 01-5815 TS/SCIENCE CAMP REFUND - VOGT 290.00 


10231449 12/19/2016 OTC Brands Inc 01-4310 TS/PBIS STORE ITEMS 200.79 


Unpaid Tax 14.87- 185.92 


10231450 12/19/2016 Pacific Gas & Electric Co 01-5520 DW/UTILITIES 5,553.17 


10231451 12/19/2016 School Site Solutions Inc 25-5809 BO/CEQA 303.75 


BO/ELLIS CEQA COMPLIANCE 1,196.25 1,500.00 


10231452 12/19/2016 Rianna G. Xavier 01-5210 BO/MILEAGE 12/06 - 12/14/16  XAVIER 47.35 


The preceding Checks have been issued in accordance with the District's Policy and authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the 


preceding Checks be approved. Page 4 of 5
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Board ReportReqPay12c


Checks Dated 12/01/2016 through 12/31/2016


Check 
Amount


Pay to the Order ofCheck 
Number


Check 
Date


Expensed 
AmountFund-Object Comment


Total Number of Checks 105 318,929.48 


Fund Recap


Fund Description Check Count Expensed Amount


01 96 291,872.80 01


13 9 16,654.36 13


25 2 10,438.75 25


Net (Check Amount)


Less Unpaid Tax Liability


Total Number of Checks 105 318,965.91 


36.43 


318,929.48 


The preceding Checks have been issued in accordance with the District's Policy and authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the 


preceding Checks be approved. Page 5 of 5
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01 - GENERAL FUND


Estimated


 Beginning Bal Budgeted Budgeted Ending Bal


Fund Resource # Resource Name 7/1/2016 Revenue Expenditures 6/30/2017


Unrestricted Resources


01 0000 Unrestricted 5,754,510.00      11,995,758.00    12,592,757.00  5,157,511.00       


01 0070 Mandated Cost 1,768,715.00      608,130.00         742,000.00       1,634,845.00       (1)


01 0075 Medi-Cal Administrative Activities 48,153.00           -                     36,281.00         11,872.00            


01 0709 LCFF/EIA 747,125.00         887,672.00         834,428.00       800,369.00          (3)


01 0723 Transportation -                      315,531.00         307,216.00       8,315.00              


01 1100 Lottery 1,286,104.00      331,685.00         445,676.00       1,172,113.00       (2)


01 1400 Education Protection Act -                      3,030,952.00      3,030,952.00    -                       


Sub-total Unrestricted Resources 9,604,607.00      17,169,728.00    17,989,310.00  8,785,025.00       


14- DEFERRED MAINTENANCE


14 0000 Deferred Maintenance 206,690.00         170,114.00         200,000.00       176,804.00          


Sub-total Unrestricted Resources 9,811,297.00      17,339,842.00    18,189,310.00  8,961,829.00       


Restricted Resources


01 3010 Title I - Chapter I -                      215,475.00         215,475.00       -                       


01 3310 PL 94-142 Spec Ed Grant -                      329,252.00         329,252.00       -                       


01 3315 SpEd PreSchool Federal -                      12,072.00           12,072.00         -                       


01 3320 SpEd PreSchool Local -                      23,826.00           23,826.00         -                       


01 4035 Title II - Teacher Quality -                      22,371.00           22,371.00         -                       


01 4201 Title III Immigrant Ed -                      -                     -                   -                       


01 4203 Title III LIM Eng Proficienc -                      42,203.00           42,203.00         -                       


01 5640 Medi_Cal Billing 59,062.00           25,000.00           17,285.00         66,777.00            


01 6230 California Clean Energy 269,248.00         -                     12,000.00         257,248.00          


01 6264 Educator Effectiveness 118,577.00         -                     118,577.00       -                       


01 6300 Lottery-Instructional Mat 125,955.00         86,950.00           98,219.00         114,686.00          


01 6500 Special Education -                      1,711,440.00      1,711,440.00    -                       


01 6512 Mental Health 146,355.00         73,341.00           155,434.00       64,262.00            


01 7690 STRS On-Behalf 507,222.00         507,222.00       


01 8150 Routine Repair & Maintenance 381,245.00         426,901.00         435,641.00       372,505.00          


01 9010 Other Local 5,139.00             5,200.00             9,213.00           1,126.00              


01 9011 Other Jeff Donations 37,530.00           3,911.00             41,441.00         -                       


01 9012 Other Mont Donations 24,817.00           4,187.00             29,004.00         -                       


01 9013 Other Hawk Donations 29,192.00           12,093.00           41,285.00         -                       


01 9014 Other Traina Donations 44,723.00           13,646.00           58,369.00         -                       


01 9017 Jefferson District Donation 150.00                -                     150.00              -                       


01 9020 Kindergarten Readiness -                      -                   -                       


01 9021 Other Jeff Book Fair 1.00                    4,079.00             4,080.00           -                       


01 9023 Other Hawk Book Fair 2,826.00             7,531.00             10,357.00         -                       


01 9024 Other Traina Book Fair 1,298.00             -                     1,298.00           -                       


01 9031 Other Jeff Science Camp 31,361.00           31,361.00         -                       


01 9033 Other Hawk Science Camp 25,693.00           25,693.00         -                       
01 9034 Other Traina Science Camp 25,724.00           25,724.00         -                       
01 9301 Jefferson 8th Grade 6,250.00             6,250.00           -                       
01 9303 Hawkins 8th Grade 6,975.00             6,975.00           -                       
01 9304 Traina 8th Grade 2,051.00             2,051.00           -                       
 Sub-total Restricted Resources 1,246,118.00      3,624,754.00      3,994,268.00    876,604.00          
01 TOTAL GENERAL FUND 11,057,415.00    20,964,596.00    22,183,578.00  9,838,433.00       


OTHER FUNDS


13 - CAFETERIA FUND
13 5310 Child Nutrition Program 272,212.00         721,300.00         708,276.00       285,236.00          


15 - PUPIL TRANSORTATION
15 9910 Pupil Transportation 276,636.00         20,750.00           28,532.00         268,854.00          


Jefferson Elementary School District
2016-17


Ending Balances by Resource
                                                               As Of December 31, 2016







  


OTHER FUNDS (CONTINUED) Estimated
 Beginning Bal Estimated Estimated Ending Bal


Fund Resource # Resource Name 7/1/2016 Revenue Expenditures 6/30/2017


21 - BUILDING FUND
21 7711 Facilities Project 1 1,315,008.00      1,315,008.00    -                       
21 7712 Facilities Project 2 491,035.00         491,035.00       -                       
21 9910 Restricted Unallocated 388,847.00         5,000.00             390,117.00       3,730.00              


25 - CAPITAL FACILITIES FUND (Dev Fees)
25 9040 Ellis Project 277,358.00         326.00                271,600.00       6,084.00              
25 9042 Tracy Hills 250,000.00         250,000.00       -                       
25 9910 Developer Fees  770,005.00         197,983.00         206,300.00       761,688.00          


35 - COUNTY SCHOOL FACILITIES
35 7751 Facilities Project - Hawkins 5,637.00             20.00                  -                   5,657.00              


51 - DEBT SERVICE FUND
51 9061 Debt Service Fund 159,098.00         415,400.00         389,250.00       185,248.00          
51 9062 Debt Service Fund 169,193.00         139,900.00         63,700.00         245,393.00          
51 9063 Debt Service Fund 82,774.00           102,750.00         25,000.00         160,524.00          


67 - SELF INSURANCE FUND
67 9910 Self Insurance 50,211.00           2,500.00             -                   52,711.00            


71 - RETIREE BENEFIT FUND
71 9910 Retiree Benefit 253,275.00         79,000.00           71,000.00         261,275.00          


78 - COM FACILITES MELLO ROOS
78 9910 Comm Facilities 58,617.00           200.00                -                   58,817.00            


Components of Ending Fund Balance - General Fund Unrestricted:


Ending Balance - Fund 01 Unrestricted 0000 + Lottery Resource 1100 8,785,025.00    


Reserves/Designations:  
  Total Expenditures                                    21,983,578.00    


NONSPENDABLE
  Revolving Cash 5,000.00             


ASSIGNED


  Mandated Costs Claims 1,634,845.00        (1)
  Unrestricted Lottery Ending Balance 1,172,113.00        (2)
  Supplemental and Concentration Funding 800,369.00           (3)


3,607,327.00      


UNASSIGNED/UNAPPROPRIATED


  Board Designated Reserve 500,000.00          
  3% Economic Uncertainties Reserve 659,507.00         


1,159,507.00      


Total Reserves/Designations 4,771,834.00    
Unrestricted/Undesignated - Unrestricted 0000 4,013,191.00    


Jefferson Elementary School District
2016-17


Ending Balances by Resource
                                                               As Of December 31, 2016
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TO:  Board of Trustees         Item: 5.2 


FR:  Celli Coeville  


DATE: January 17, 2017 


RE:  School Parent / Parent Faculty Group Reports 


 


District parent group representatives will report to the Board of Trustees: 


 


Monticello/Jefferson: Alexis Imperial-Bobis 


Hawkins: Stephanie Burrell-Hammer 


Traina: Alma Morely 


 








INFORMATION SHEET 1/17/17 TRUSTEES’ MEETING 


 


To:  Board of Trustees  


From:  Sarah Steen 


Re:  Family Life Education Curriculum   


 


Background: 


In January 2016, California adopted new legislation covering comprehensive sexual health 
education and HIV prevention education in public schools. The law, called the California Healthy 
Youth Act - Education Codes 51930-51939 (Assembly Bill 329), attempts to standardize and 
update sex education in the state. Jefferson School District Staff and Parents have reviewed the 
programs available and bring a recommendation to the board to adopt a program that meets 
the new requirements. 
 
A JSD team attended the San Joaquin County Office of Education’s Health Curriculum Faire on 
May 20, 2016. Six programs were presented at the event. Of those programs two were 
considered by our team and are also being recommended by SJCOE. The two programs (Teen 
Talk Middle School and Positive Prevention Plus) were available to parents and staff to preview 
at the District Office.  
 
Teen Talk Middle School includes 14 lessons, taught over 10 hours, typically across two weeks. 
Teen Talk was developed for use in California schools and was designed to be inclusive of 
diverse racial, ethnic, religious, and sexual identities, for mixed-gender classrooms. All activities 
are available in English and Spanish. http://www.health-connected.org/#!our-curricula/czks 
 
Based on our review of the programs the Curriculum Department is recommending the 
adoption of Health Connected Teen Talk Middle School Curriculum. With your approval, we will 
move forward on planning the staff training and our district parent preview night.  
 
Recommendation:  Approve adoption of Health Connected Teen Talk Middle School Curriculum 


 



http://www.health-connected.org/
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TO:  Board of Trustees         ...  


FR:  Celli Coeville  


DATE: January 17, 2017 


RE:  Policy Update, BP/AR 6142.1 Sexual Health & HIV/AIDS Preventative Education, Second 
Reading 
 
BP/AR 6142.1 Sexual Health and HIV/AIDS Prevention Instruction –(BP/AR revised) Board Policy 
and Administrative Regulation are updated to reflect NEW LAW (AB 329) which requires districts to 
provide comprehensive sexual health education in grades 7-12 and to integrate such instruction with 
HIV prevention education. The Board Policy is also updated to clarify requirements related to parental 
consent. The Administrative Regulation adds a new section on "Definitions" and, pursuant to AB 329, 
expands program criteria and merges the components of sexual health education and HIV prevention 
education.  Our recommendation is that the Board approved BP/AR 6142.1.
 
BP/AR 6142.2 – The district currently has a separate BP/AR for AIDS Prevention Instruction.  CBSA 
no longer has a separate AIDS Prevention Instruction board policy or administrative regulation. This 
information has been included in BP/AR 6142.1 noted above. Our recommendation is to delete BP/AR 
6142.2 as the information is included in BP/AR 6142.1 as noted in the CSBA sample attached. 
 







CSBA Sample 


Board Policy 


Sexual Health And HIV/AIDS Prevention Instruction 
 


BP 6142.1  


Instruction 
 


 


***Note:  The following policy is for use by districts that offer any of grades 7-12.  As 


amended by AB 329 (Ch. 398, Statutes of 2015), Education Code 51934 requires districts to 


provide both comprehensive sexual health education and HIV prevention education to students in 


grades 7-12.  See the accompanying administrative regulation for definitions and program 


requirements. *** 


 


***Note: Education Code 51934, as amended by AB 329, also authorizes, but does not require, 


districts to provide age-appropriate comprehensive sexual health education prior to grade 7 on 


any of the topics specified in Education Code 51934. Sexual health education taught at any grade 


level must comply with the requirements of Education Code 51933. Districts that choose to 


provide such instruction prior to grade 7 may revise the following policy and administrative 


regulation accordingly. *** 


 


The Governing Board desires to provide a well-planned, integrated sequence of medically 


accurate and inclusive instruction on comprehensive sexual health and human immunodeficiency 


virus (HIV) prevention. The district's educational program shall provide students with the 


knowledge and skills necessary to protect them from sexually transmitted infections and 


unintended pregnancy and to have healthy, positive, and safe relationships and behaviors.  The 


district's educational program shall also promote understanding of sexuality as a normal part of 


human development and the development of healthy attitudes and behaviors concerning 


adolescent growth and development, body image, gender, sexual orientation, relationships, 


marriage, and family. 


 


(cf. 5030 - Student Wellness) 


(cf. 6142.8 - Comprehensive Health Education) 


 


***Note: The following paragraph may be revised to reflect the grade levels offered by the 


district. *** 


 


Comprehensive sexual health education and HIV prevention education shall be offered to all 


students in grades 7-12, including at least once in junior high or middle school and at least once 


in high school.  (Education Code 51934) 


 


***Note:  Voluntary state content standards for health education, as adopted by the State Board 


of Education in 2008, include standards related to growth, development, and sexual health. See 


BP/AR 6142.8 - Comprehensive Health Education. *** 


 







The district's curriculum shall support the purposes of the California Healthy Youth Act as 


specified in Education Code 51930-51939, be unbiased and inclusive of all students in the 


classroom, and be aligned with the state's content standards. The district shall respect the rights 


of parents/guardians to supervise their children's education on these subjects and to impart values 


regarding human sexuality to their children. 


 


(cf. 5141.22 - Infectious Diseases) 


 


(cf. 5141.25 - Availability of Condoms) 


(cf. 5146 - Married/Pregnant/Parenting Students) 


(cf. 6143 - Courses of Study) 


 


***Note:  The following paragraph is optional and should be revised to reflect district practice. 


*** 


 


The Superintendent or designee may appoint a coordinator and/or an advisory committee 


regarding the district's comprehensive sexual health and HIV prevention curriculum. The 


advisory committee shall represent a divergence of viewpoints and may participate in planning, 


implementing, and evaluating the district's program. 


 


(cf. 1220 - Citizen Advisory Committees) 


 


Parent/Guardian Consent 


 


***Note:  Education Code 51938 requires districts to notify parents/guardians of the 


comprehensive sexual health and HIV prevention education and of the opportunity to request 


that their child not receive the instruction.  See the accompanying administrative regulation for 


details of the required notice. *** 


 


***Note: Pursuant to Education Code 51938, as amended by AB 329 (Ch. 398, Statutes of 


2015), districts must use a "passive consent" or "opt-out" process regarding sexual health and 


HIV prevention education and any assessments related to that instruction. Thus, each student 


must receive the instruction unless the parent/guardian notifies the district in writing that the 


student should not receive the instruction.  *** 


 


***Note: In addition, Education Code 51938 requires districts to use a passive consent or 


"opt-out" process when administering to students in grades 7-12 an anonymous, voluntary, and 


confidential research and evaluation tool to measure students' health behaviors and risks, 


including a test or survey regarding sexual attitudes or practices. For any such research and 


evaluation tool administered prior to grade 7, Education Code 51513 requires that 


parents/guardians must give permission before the instrument is administered to their child (i.e., 


"active consent"). 20 USC 1232h mandates districts to adopt a policy regarding the district's 


arrangements to protect student privacy when such a survey is administered.  See BP/AR 5022 - 


Student and Family Privacy Rights for language implementing this requirement. *** 


 


Annually, parents/guardians shall be notified, in the manner specified in the accompanying 







administrative regulation, that they may request in writing that their child be excused from 


participating in comprehensive sexual health and HIV prevention education. Students so excused 


by their parents/guardians shall be given an alternative educational activity.  (Education Code 


51240, 51938, 51939) 


 


(cf. 5022 - Student and Family Privacy Rights) 


 


A student shall not be subject to disciplinary action, academic penalty, or other sanction if the 


student's parent/guardian declines to permit the student to receive the instruction.  (Education 


Code 51939) 


 


 


Legal Reference: 


EDUCATION CODE 


220  Prohibition of discrimination 


33544  Inclusion of sexual harassment and violence in health curriculum framework 


48980  Notice at beginning of term 


51202  Instruction in personal and public health and safety 


51210.8  Health education curriculum 


51225.35 Instruction in sexual harassment and violence; districts that require health education 


for graduation 


51240  Excuse from instruction due to religious beliefs 


51513  Materials containing questions about beliefs or practices 


51930-51939  California Healthy Youth Act 


67386  Student safety; affirmative consent standard 


HEALTH AND SAFETY CODE 


1255.7  Parents surrendering physical custody of a baby 


PENAL CODE 


243.4 Sexual battery 


261.5  Unlawful sexual intercourse 


271.5  Parents voluntarily surrendering custody of a baby 


UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20 


1232h  Protection of student rights 


7906  Sex education 


 


Management Resources: 


CSBA PUBLICATIONS 


Promoting Healthy Relationships for Adolescents: Board Policy Considerations, Governance 


Brief, August 2014 


CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS 


Health Education Content Standards for California Public Schools, Kindergarten Through Grade 


12, 2008 


Health Framework for California Public Schools: Kindergarten through Grade 12, 2003 


WEB SITES 


CSBA:  http://www.csba.rog 


California Department of Education, Sex Education and HIV/STD Instruction:  







http://www.cde.ca.gov/ls/he/se 


California Department of Public Health: http://www.cdph.ca.gov 


California Healthy Kids Resource Center: http://www.californiahealthykids.org 


California Safe Schools Coalition:  http://www.casafeschools.org 


Centers for Disease Control and Prevention:  http://www.cdc.gov 


U.S. Food and Drug Administration:  http://www.fda.gov 


 


 


 


(12/15) 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 
 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 







Instruction              BP 6142.1(a) 


 


SEXUAL HEALTH AND HIV/AIDS PREVENTION INSTRUCTION  


 


 


The Board of Trustees believes that a wholesome, well-planned sequence of instruction about sexual 


health and HIV/AIDS prevention instruction is essential to the general education of all students.  The 
Board recognizes and accepts that the purpose of the district's sexual health and HIV/AIDS prevention 
instruction is to provide students with the knowledge and skills necessary to protect them from 
unintended pregnancy and sexually transmitted diseases and to encourage students to develop healthy 
attitudes concerning adolescent growth and development, body image, gender roles, sexual orientation, 
dating, marriage, and family as part of the educational opportunities available to students. 


 


The Board recognizes that lack of information or misinformation may contribute an increased risk for 


sexually transmitted diseases, unintended pregnancy or sterility. The district's curriculum shall be aligned 


with the state's content standards, based on medically accurate and factual information, and designed 


to teach students to make healthy choices and reduce high-risk behaviors. Therefore, the district's 


curriculum shall help students understand the biological, psychological, social, moral and ethical aspects 


of human sexuality and shall comply with the requirements of law and administrative regulation.  The 


district's program shall comply with the requirements of law, Board policy, and administrative regulation 


and shall respect the rights of parents/guardians to supervise their children's education on these 


subjects and to impart values regarding human sexuality to their children.  


 


The Superintendent/designee shall ensure that parent/guardian notifications are sent that comply with the 


requirements of law and administrative regulation. 


 


A parent/guardian may request in writing that his/her child be excused from participating in HIV/AIDS 
prevention or sexual health education. Students so excused by their parents/guardians shall be given an 
alternative educational activity. 


 


A student shall not be subject to disciplinary action, academic penalty, or other sanction if the student's 
parent/guardian declines to permit the student to receive the instruction. 


 


 


Legal Reference: 







EDUCATION CODE 


220 Prohibition of discrimination 


48980 Notice at beginning of term 


51202 Instruction in personal and public health and safety 


51210.8 Health education curriculum 


51240 Excuse from instruction due to religious beliefs 


51513 Materials containing questions about beliefs or practices 


51930-51939 Comprehensive Sexual Health and HIV/AIDS Prevention Education Act 


HEALTH AND SAFETY CODE 


1255.7 Parents surrendering physical custody of a baby 


PENAL CODE 


243.4 Sexual battery 


261.5 Unlawful sexual intercourse 


271.5 Parents voluntarily surrendering custody of a baby 


UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20 


1232h Protection of Student Rights 


7906 Sex education 


Management Resources: 


CDE PUBLICATIONS 


Health Education Content Standards for California Public Schools, 2008 


Health Framework for California Public Schools, 2003 


CSBA PUBLICATIONS 


Saving Lives: AIDS Issues for California Schools, 1994 


WEB SITES 


CDE: http://www.cde.ca.gov 


CSBA: http://www.csba.rog  


American Academy of Pediatrics: http://www.aap.org  


American College of Obstetricians and Gynecologists: http://www.acog.org  


American Public Health Association: http://www.apha.org  


California Department of Health Services: http://www.dhs.ca.gov 


California Department of Social Services: http://www.dss.cahwnet.gov 


California Healthy Kids Resource Center: http://www.hkresources.org 


California Safe Schools Coalition: http://www.casafeschools.org 



http://www.casafeschools.org/





California Department of Education, Sex Education and HIV/STD Instruction: 


http://www.cde.ca.gov/ls/he/se  


California Department of Public Health: http://www.cdph.ca.gov  


California Healthy Kids Resource Center: http://www.californiahealthykids.org  


California Safe Schools Coalition: http://www.casafeschools.org  


Centers for Disease Control and Prevention: http://www.cdc.gov 


National Academy of Sciences: http://www.nationalacademies.org  


U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Office of the Surgeon General: 


http://www.surgeongeneral.gov  


U.S. Food and Drug Administration: http://www.fda.gov  
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School


Jefferson Elementary School District
2016-2017 Active Students Report by Track and Teacher/Counselor


Pre-K K 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 Total


1/12/2017
8:56:18 AM


Track  Teacher/Counselor


1 1 000 Unassigned110 Jefferson School


28 28109 Fern


27 27147 Gleason


91 91177 Jennings


29 29221 McNeel


30 30287 Potts


7 2 4 13307 Scott


90 90321 Spikes


29 29370 Entizne


30 30475 Maslyar


59 59533 Fritts


42785 126 121 95Total Track  :


42785 126 121 95Total Jefferson School:
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School


Jefferson Elementary School District
2016-2017 Active Students Report by Track and Teacher/Counselor


Pre-K K 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 Total


1/12/2017
8:56:18 AM


Track  Teacher/Counselor


24 24041 Dunnum120 Monticello Elementary Scho


23 23047 Castle


24 24053 Collinsworth


22 22071 Marchini


22 22081 Davidson


25 25085 Davis


23 23129 Freitas


30 30141 Whalen


23 23165 Hillstead


23 23167 Hopson


20 20255 O'Brien


23 23265 Boyd


22 22279 Petrucelli


22 22311 Silva


22 22327 Vieira


4 3 3 10470 Outland


30 30600 Jaques


28 28610 Blackwell


41620 72 76 91 69 88Total Track :


41620 72 76 91 69 88Total Monticello Elementary School:







SC


Page 3


School


Jefferson Elementary School District
2016-2017 Active Students Report by Track and Teacher/Counselor


Pre-K K 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 Total


1/12/2017
8:56:18 AM


Track  Teacher/Counselor


1 1000 Unassigned130 Tom Hawkins Elementary S


24 24043 Cannon


23 23049 Cavallaro


23 23067 Corbiser


13 13069 Corsaro


25 25091 Devlin


27 27121 Flores


31 31135 Frizzi


28 28149 Gray


23 23159 Green


23 23169 Hoverter


23 23183 Kinakin


24 24187 Cruz


23 23189 Lange


23 23249 Murphy


27 27259 Oneto


22 22305 Scornaienchi


22 22315 Simson


28 28332 Holmes


28 28333 Andrews


28 28337 Wedel


3 3 3 9360 Rosette


27 27465 Price


27 27611 Smith


55213 67 74 69 72 85 85 87Total Track :


55213 67 74 69 72 85 85 87Total Tom Hawkins Elementary School:
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School


Jefferson Elementary School District
2016-2017 Active Students Report by Track and Teacher/Counselor


Pre-K K 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 Total


1/12/2017
8:56:18 AM


Track  Teacher/Counselor


2 2000 Unassigned140 Anthony Traina Elementary 


28 28029 Bogetti


22 22031 Bowles


29 29087 Day


22 22099 Silva


21 21127 Frasier


24 24195 Lown


24 24199 Manantan


22 22217 McMahon


23 23247 Murman


28 28253 Nunes


23 23293 Robertson


22 22341 Kitchuck


27 27344 Walther


23 23347 Guinn


23 23351 Finton


23 23358 Lassell


25 25407 Morri


21 21450 Teixeira


29 29464 Balsano


29 29535 Rosich


49023 69 73 65 90 86 84Total Track :


49023 69 73 65 90 86 84Total Anthony Traina Elementary School:







SC


Page 5


School


Jefferson Elementary School District
2016-2017 Active Students Report by Track and Teacher/Counselor


Pre-K K 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 Total


1/12/2017
8:56:18 AM


Track  Teacher/Counselor


92 92027 Beltran230 Tom Hawkins Elementary S


91 91037 Bunch


18391 92Total Track :


18391 92Total Tom Hawkins Elementary School 7th-8th:
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School


Jefferson Elementary School District
2016-2017 Active Students Report by Track and Teacher/Counselor


Pre-K K 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 Total


1/12/2017
8:56:18 AM


Track  Teacher/Counselor


28 28013 Amato240 Anthony Traina Elementary 


29 29337 Wright


4 3 3 10405 Frye


92 92503 Hicks


92 92604 McDaniel


30 30613 Huysentruyt


28191 95 95Total Track :


28191 95 95Total Anthony Traina Elementary School 6th-8th:
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School


Jefferson Elementary School District
2016-2017 Active Students Report by Track and Teacher/Counselor


Pre-K K 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 Total


1/12/2017
8:56:18 AM


Track  Teacher/Counselor


2,349District Total: 56 208 223 225 231 259 254 304 307 282



ccoeville

Typewritten Text

December 2016 - 2,344
January 2016 - 2,374
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SUPERVISED FIELDWORK AGREEMENT 
 


Please check below all the applicable supervised fieldwork in which in your District will be participating 
with Brandman University Modesto Campus. 
 


TEACHER EDUCATION   SCHOOL PSYCHOLOGY X 
     
SCHOOL COUNSELING   EDUCATION ADMINISTRATION  


 
 
THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into by and between Brandman University hereinafter called the 
"UNIVERSITY," and the Jefferson School District, hereinafter called "FIELDWORK SITE." 
 
 
I. RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE UNIVERSITY 
 


A. The UNIVERSITY will assure that the student shall have completed the necessary educational 
prerequisites, to be eligible for supervised fieldwork including proof of negative TB test current 
within one year of supervised fieldwork and issuance of finger print clearance.  


 
B. The UNIVERSITY shall designate a faculty or staff member to coordinate, consult, and 


collaborate with the classroom teacher or district designee of the FIELDWORK SITE, the 
activities of each student assigned to FIELDWORK SITE and student fieldwork experience. 


 
C. The UNIVERSITY shall complete periodic observations and/or evaluations of the student 


regarding his/her performance at the FIELDWORK SITE as per arrangement between the 
UNIVERSITY faculty or staff member and the FIELDWORK SITE supervisor. 


 
D. The UNIVERSITY may provide monetary compensation for services rendered by the 


FIELDWORK SITE in an amount not to exceed the actual cost of the services rendered by the 
FIELDWORK SITE per Appendix A. 


 
 
II. RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE FIELDWORK SITE 


 
A. The FIELDWORK SITE shall provide students with experiences with a student population that is 


diverse in terms of ethnicity, culture, language, socio-economics and/or special needs. 
 
B. The FIELDWORK SITE staff will promptly and thoroughly investigate any complaint by any 


participating student of unlawful discrimination or harassment at the FIELDWORK SITE or 
involving employees or agents of the FIELDWORK SITE, take prompt and effective remedial 
action when discrimination or harassment is found to have occurred, and promptly notify the 
UNIVERSITY of the existence and outcome of any complaint of harassment by, against, or 
involving any participating student. 


 
C. The FIELDWORK SITE staff will provide, upon request by any participating student, such 


reasonable accommodations at the FIELDWORK SITE as required by law in order to allow 
qualified disabled students to participate in the program. 
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D. To provide for emergency health care of the student in case of accident at the expense of the 


student. 
 
E. To provide all participating students with a copy of the FIELDWORK SITE'S rules, regulations, 


policies, and procedures with which the students are expected to comply and notify the 
UNIVERSITY of any change in its personnel, operation, or policies which may affect the field 
education experience. 


 
F. Comply with all federal, state and local statutes and regulations applicable to the operation of the 


program, including without limitation, laws relating to the confidentiality of student records. 
 
G. The FIELDWORK SITE staff shall comply with APPENDIX B regarding the FIELDWORK SITE’S 


supervision of UNIVERSITY students. 
 
 
III. THE PARTIES MUTUALLY AGREE 
 


A. The FIELDWORK SITE shall provide field experiences in such schools or classes of the 
FIELDWORK SITE and under the direct supervision and instruction of such employees of the 
FIELDWORK SITE, as specified by the duly authorized representatives of the FIELDWORK SITE 
and the UNIVERSITY. 


 
B. The FIELDWORK SITE may, for good cause, refuse to accept for field experiences, or terminate 


the field experience assignment of any student of the UNIVERSITY assigned to the FIELDWORK 
SITE in writing.  Prior to removal of a student, the FIELDWORK SITE shall consult with the 
UNIVERSITY about its concerns and proposed course of action.  The UNIVERSITY may 
terminate the field experience assignment or student teaching assignment of any student of the 
UNIVERSITY at the FIELDWORK SITE at any time, and  may do so if the FIELDWORK SITE so 
requests in writing with a statement of reasons why the FIELDWORK SITE desires to have the 
student withdrawn. 


 
C. Neither party shall discriminate in the assignment of students on the basis of race, color, 


disability, sex, religion, national origin, ancestry, sexual orientation, or any other basis prohibited 
by law. 


 
D. The UNIVERSITY agrees to indemnify, hold harmless, and defend the FIELDWORK SITE, its 


agents, and employees from and against all loss or expense (including costs and attorney fees) 
resulting from liability imposed by law upon the FIELDWORK SITE because of bodily injury to or 
death of any person or on account of damages to property, including loss of use thereof, arising 
out of or in connection with this Agreement and due or claimed to be due to the negligence of the 
UNIVERSITY, its agents, employees, or students. 


 
E. The FIELDWORK SITE agrees to indemnify, hold harmless, and at the UNIVERSITY’S request, 


defend the UNIVERSITY, its agencies and employees from and against all loss or expenses 
(including costs and attorney fees) resulting from liability imposed by law upon the UNIVERSITY 
because of bodily injury to or death of any person or on account of damages to property, 
including loss of use thereof, arising out of or in connection with this Agreement, and due or 
claimed to be due to the negligence of the FIELDWORK SITE, its agents, or employees. 


 
F. The parties agree that the students are considered learners who are fulfilling specific 


requirements for field experiences as part of a degree and/or credential requirement.  Therefore, 
regardless of the nature or extent of the acts performed by them, students are not to be 
considered employees or agents of either the UNIVERSITY or the FIELDWORK SITE for any 
purpose including Workers’ Compensation or any other employee benefit programs.  The 
students shall not be entitled to any monetary remuneration for services performed by them in the 
course of their training. 
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G. The parties mutually agree each shall provide and maintain commercial general liability 
insurance or self-insurance acceptable to both parties in the minimum amounts of $1,000,000 per 
occurrence, $3,000,000 general aggregate and upon request shall furnish proof thereof in the 
form of a certificate of insurance within 30 days of the effective date of this Agreement.  Each 
Certificate of Insurance shall specify that should any above described policies be cancelled 
before the expiration date thereof, notice will be delivered in accordance with the policy 
provisions. 
 


H. Both parties acknowledge they are independent contractors, and nothing contained in this 
Agreement shall be deemed to create an agency, joint venture, franchise or partnership relation 
between the parties and neither party shall so hold itself out.  Neither party shall have the right to 
obligate or bind the other party in any manner whatsoever, and nothing contained in this 
Agreement shall give or is intended to give any right of any kind to third persons. 
 


I. Any failure of a party to enforce that party’s right under any provision of this Agreement shall not 
be construed or act as a waiver of said party’s subsequent right to enforce any provisions 
contained herein. 
 


J. Notices required or permitted to be provided under this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be 
deemed to have been duly given if mailed first class to the parties that signed this agreement and 
to the addresses below. 


 
FIELDWORK SITE CONTACT INFORMATION: 
 


 UNIVERSITY CONTACT INFORMATION: 


Jefferson School District 
1219 Whispering Wind Drive 
Tracy, CA 95377 
Attn: Angelica Thomas 
Director of Special Education 
Tel: (209) 832-8941 


 Brandman University 
16355 Laguna Canyon Road 
Irvine, CA  92618 
Attn:  School of Education, Dean 
Tel:  (949) 341-9899 
 


 
 


K. If any term or provision of this Agreement is for any reason held to be invalid, such invalidity shall 
not affect any other term or provision, and this Agreement shall be interpreted as if such term or 
provision had never been contained in this Agreement. 
 


L. In the event of any material default under this Agreement, which default remains uncured for a 
period of twenty-one (21) days after receipt of written notice of such default, or in the event of the 
loss of WASC accreditation by the UNIVERSITY, this Agreement may be immediately terminated 
by the non-defaulting party. 
 


M. This Agreement fully supersedes any and all prior agreements or understandings between the 
parties or any of their respective affiliates with respect to the subject matter hereof.  No change, 
modification, addition, amendment, or supplement to this Agreement shall be valid unless set 
forth in writing and signed and dated by both parties hereto subsequent to the execution of this 
Agreement. 
 


N. This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the laws of the State of California in effect 
at the time of the execution of this Agreement.  Should either party institute legal action to enforce 
any obligation contained herein, it is agreed that the proper venue of such suit or action shall be 
Orange County, California. 
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IV. TERM AND TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT 
 


A. THE TERM of this Agreement shall be effective January 11, 2017 and shall continue in full force 
and effect through January 10, 2020.  This Agreement may be renewed for one (1) additional 
term of the contract by mutual written consent of the parties. 


 
B. THIS AGREEMENT may be terminated by either the UNIVERSITY or the FIELDWORK SITE with 


or without cause upon thirty (30) days written notice provided that (subject to the other terms of 
this Agreement) all students performing fieldwork at the time of notice of termination are given the 
opportunity to complete their fieldwork at the Fieldwork Site. 


 
 
 
SIGNATURES: 
 
FIELDWORK SITE: Signature:  
 Name:  
 Title:  
 Date:  


 
 
UNIVERSITY: Signature:  
 Name: Phillip L. Doolittle 
 Title: Executive Vice Chancellor of Finance and 


Administration and Chief Financial Officer 
 Date:  
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Appendix A 


Payment for Master Teachers for Teacher Education Fieldwork Only 
 
 
 


I. SPECIAL PROVISIONS – RATES and PAYMENTS 
 


(a) $ 200 Master Teacher stipend per eight (8) week session of full-time student teaching 
consisting of three to six (3-6) units for Multiple and Single Subject Credential candidates. 


(b) $ 200 Master Teacher stipend per eight (8) week session of full-time student teaching 
consisting of three to six (3-6) units for Education Specialist Instruction Credential (Special 
Education) candidates.  


 
 
METHOD OF PAYMENT:       Stipend is to be paid directly to the Master Teacher. 
 
In the event the assignment of a UNIVERSITY student is terminated by the UNIVERSITY and/or the 
FIELDWORK SITE for any reason after the student has been in student teaching and has been at the 
assignment for a minimum of two weeks, MASTER TEACHER shall receive payment for one assignment 
on account of each student as though there had been no termination of the assignment.  Said payment is 
to exceed no more than six (6) units per session of terminated assignment.   In the event the field 
experience of a UNIVERSITY student is terminated by the UNIVERSITY and/or the MASTER TEACHER 
for any reason after the student has been in the field experience for a minimum of two weeks, MASTER 
TEACHER shall receive payment for one assignment on account of each student as though there had 
been no termination of the assignment. 
 
Within thirty (30) days following the close of each session or academic session of the UNIVERSITY, the 
MASTER TEACHER shall submit an invoice and I-9 form as provided and signed to them by the 
UNVIERSITY, to the UNIVERSITY for payment at the rate provided therein for all field experiences 
provided by the FIELDWORK SITE under and in accordance with this agreement during said 
session.  This process may be altered according to individual districts procedures as to the manner in 
which the invoicing will proceed so long as the parties mutually agree to such alteration in advance. 
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Appendix B 


Specific Supervision Requirements for Each Program 
 
 


Teacher Education Fieldwork: 
 


A. "Field Experience" as used herein and elsewhere in this agreement means active participation in 
the duties and function of classroom under the direct supervision and instruction of employees of 
the FIELDWORK SITE who hold valid teaching credentials issued by the California Commission 
on Teacher Credentialing, authorizing them to serve as classroom teachers in the schools or 
classes in which the field experience is provided, and have completed a minimum of three years 
successful teaching experience.  "Student Teaching" is used herein and elsewhere in this 
agreement  means participation in the duties and function of classroom teaching under the direct 
supervision and instruction of employees of the FIELDWORK SITE who hold valid, teaching 
credentials issued by the California Commission on Teacher Credentialing, authorizing them to 
serve as classroom teachers in the schools or classes in which the student teaching experience 
is provided, and  have completed a minimum of three years successful teaching experience. 


 
B. The UNIVERSITY’S Teacher Education Policy provides that student teachers without emergency 


or substitute permits may not be asked by the school districts to serve and be paid for substitute 
teaching as, under California law, student teachers are not certificated personnel and as they 
require full-time supervision.  Those holding substitute or emergency permits may substitute for 
their master teacher only (a maximum of four (4) days only): when s/he is ill; when it is 
determined by the principal that this is in the best interest of the students in the classroom as well 
as the candidate; after the first four weeks of the first assignment; and/or when the candidate is 
paid. 


 
C. "Session of Student Teaching," for Multiple Subject and Single Subject Credential candidates as 


used herein and elsewhere in this agreement is considered to be a full day of student teaching 
daily for five (5) days a week for a minimum of eight (8) weeks for elementary credential 
candidates (for this, the elementary credential candidate receives three to six (3-6) session units 
of practice teaching credit), and three periods a day for five (5) days a week for a minimum of 
eight (8) weeks for secondary credential candidates (for this, the secondary credential candidate 
receives three to six (3-6) session units of practice teaching credit). 


 
D. "Session of Student Teaching," for Education Specialist Instruction Credential (Special Education) 


candidates as used herein and elsewhere in this agreement is considered to be a full day of 
student teaching daily for five (5) days a week for a minimum of eight (8) weeks for elementary 
credential candidates (for this, the elementary credential candidate receives three to six (3-6) 
session units of practice teaching credit), and three periods a day for five (5) days a week for a 
minimum of eight (8) weeks for secondary credential candidates (for this, the secondary 
credential candidate receives three to six (3-6) session units of practice teaching credit). 


 
E. An assignment of a Multiple Subject and Single Subject Credential candidate of the UNIVERSITY 


to student teaching in classes of schools of the FIELDWORK SITE shall be for a two eight (8) 
week session as mutually agreed between the UNIVERSITY and FIELDWORK SITE. 


 
F. An assignment of an Education Specialist Instruction Credential (Special Education) candidate of 


the UNIVERSITY to student teaching in classes of schools of the FIELDWORK SITE shall be for 
a single eight (8) week session as mutually agreed between the UNIVERSITY and FIELDWORK 
SITE. 


 
G. The assignment of a UNIVERSITY student to field experiences and student teaching at 


FIELDWORK SITE shall be deemed to be effective for the purposes of this agreement as of the 
date the student presents to the proper FIELDWORK SITE officials the assignment papers or 
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other documents provided by the UNIVERSITY effecting such assignment, but not earlier than 
the date of such assignment as shown on such card or other document. 


 
 
School Counseling Fieldwork: 
 


A. Provide an average of one (1) hour of individual or one-and-one-half (1.5) hours of small group 
supervision per week from an experienced school counselor with at least two years of 
professional experience.  


 
B. Provide opportunities for students to gain a broad range of experiences, including experiences in: 


 
a. Personal and career assessments 
b. Personal counseling experience in either an individual or group context 
c. Experience in School-based programs serving parents and family members 
d. Observing classroom instruction 
e. Attending district and school based meetings 
f. Mapping school-based community resources 
g. The candidate is to perform, under supervision, the functions of school counselors in 


school counseling domains. 
h. Participating in professional development activities.  
i. Participating in individual or group supervision. 
j. Learning about and using technology and information systems. 
k. Learning about Individual differences and student diversity.  


 
C. The FIELDWORK SITE shall provide activities that occur across at minimum of two of four 


settings, including, (a) middle school or junior high, and (b) high school. 
 


D. The FIELDWORK SITE in collaboration with the UNIVERSITY will designate one school 
counselor who has at least two years experience in school counseling to serve as the primary 
supervisor.  The student may also work with other experienced school counselors for specific 
activities.  In no case shall any supervisor be assigned by the FIELDWORK SITE to provide 
concurrent supervision for more than two interns or students. 


 
E. The FIELDWORK SITE shall ensure that the student receives an average of one hour of 


individual or one and one-half hours of group face-to-face supervision per week, although more 
time may be needed, especially at the beginning of the FIELDWORK experience. 


 
F. The FIELDWORK SITE supervisor, in collaboration with the UNIVERSITY faculty, will complete at 


least one written evaluation of the student's performance near the end of each university session. 
 


G. The FIELDWORK SITE shall ensure that the student will be treated by the district as part of the 
professional staff and provided a supportive work environment, adequate supplies, counseling 
and test materials.  In addition, it shall see that the student is encouraged to participate in district, 
SELPA, or county committees; and that he/she is provided release time as needed to attend 
professional development experiences or professional association meetings. 


 
I. Specific Supervision Requirements School Psychology Fieldwork: 


 
A. Provide an average of one (1) hour of individual or one-and-one-half (1.5) hours of small group 


supervision per week from an experienced school psychologist with at least two years of 
professional experience.  


 
B. Provide experiences with a diverse student population. 


 
C. Provide experiences with a variety of educational programs.   


 
D. Provide opportunities for students to gain a broad range of experiences, including experiences in: 







                                                                                Page 8 of 8                                                         July 2012 


 
a. Data based decision making:  Assessing and reevaluating individual pupils and 


their programs. 
b. Collaboration and consultation with school personnel and participation on 


interdisciplinary teams.  
c. Developing, implementing and evaluating academic and behavioral interventions. 
d. Providing counseling and other mental health interventions. 
e. Home, school, community collaboration: working with parents and community 


members. 
f. Learning about, helping develop, or evaluating policy, practices and programs. 
g. Participating in professional development activities.  
h. Participating in individual or group supervision. 
i. Learning about and using technology and information systems. 
j. Learning about Individual differences and student diversity.  


 
E. The FIELDWORK SITE shall provide activities that occur across at minimum of two of four 


settings, including (a) preschool, (b) elementary, (c) middle school or junior high, and (d) high 
school. 


 
F. The FIELDWORK SITE in collaboration with the UNIVERSITY will designate one school 


psychologist who has at least two years experience in School Psychology to serve as the primary 
supervisor.  The student may also work with other experienced school psychologists for specific 
activities.  In no case shall any supervisor be assigned by the FIELDWORK SITE to provide 
concurrent supervision for more than two interns or students. 


 
G. The FIELDWORK SITE shall ensure that the student receives an average of one hour of 


individual or one and one-half hours of group face-to-face supervision per week, although more 
time may be needed, especially at the beginning of the FIELDWORK experience. 


 
H. The FIELDWORK SITE supervisor, in collaboration with the UNIVERSITY faculty, will complete at 


least one written evaluations of the student's performance near the end of each university 
session. 


 
I. The FIELDWORK SITE shall ensure that the student will be treated by the district as part of the 


professional staff and provided a supportive work environment, adequate supplies, counseling 
and test materials.  In addition, it shall see that the student is encouraged to participate in district, 
SELPA, or county committees; and that he/she is provided release time as needed to attend 
professional development experiences or professional association meetings.  


 
 
School Administration: 
 


A. The FIELDWORK SITE shall provide student with individual and/or small group supervision from 
an experienced school administrator.  


 
B. The FIELDWORK SITE shall ensure that the student receives an average of one hour of 


individual and/or one and one-half hours of group face-to-face supervision per week, although 
more time may be needed, especially at the beginning of the FIELDWORK experience. 


 
C. The FIELDWORK SITE supervisor, in collaboration with the UNIVERSITY faculty, will complete at 


least one written evaluation of the student's performance near the end of each university session. 
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SUPERVISED INTERNSHIP AGREEMENT 
 


Please check below all the applicable supervised fieldwork in which in your District will be participating 
with Brandman University Modesto Campus. 
 


SCHOOL PSYCHOLOGY X 
  
EDUCATION ADMINISTRATION  
  
SCHOOL COUNSELING  


 
 
THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into by and between Brandman University hereinafter called the 
"UNIVERSITY," and the Jefferson School District, hereinafter called "FIELDWORK SITE." 
 
WHEREAS, an INTERN, as defined in Appendix A, is required to enroll in education courses while 
serving under the supervision of experienced UNIVERSITY and FIELDWORK SITE professionals, during 
which time the INTERN shall hold an internship credential granted by the California Commission on 
Teacher Credentialing, (hereinafter the “COMMISSION”). 
 
 
I. RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE UNIVERSITY 
 


A. The UNIVERSITY will assure that the student shall have completed the necessary educational 
prerequisites, if so required, to be eligible for supervised fieldwork. 


 
B. The UNIVERSITY shall designate a faculty or staff member to coordinate, consult, and 


collaborate with the classroom teacher or district designee of the FIELDWORK SITE, the 
activities of each student assigned to FIELDWORK SITE and student fieldwork experience. 


 
C. The UNIVERSITY shall complete periodic observations and/or evaluations of the student 


regarding his/her performance at the FIELDWORK SITE as per arrangement between the 
UNIVERSITY faculty or staff member and the FIELDWORK SITE supervisor. 


 
 
II. RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE FIELDWORK SITE 


 
A. The FIELDWORK SITE shall provide field experiences in such schools or classes of the 


FIELDWORK SITE and under the direct supervision and instruction of such employees of the 
FIELDWORK SITE, as specified by the duly authorized representatives of the FIELDWORK SITE 
and the UNIVERSITY. 


 
B. The FIELDWORK SITE shall provide students with experiences with a student population that is 


diverse in terms of ethnicity, culture, language, socio-economics and/or special needs. 
 
C. The FIELDWORK SITE staff will promptly and thoroughly investigate any complaint by any 


participating student of unlawful discrimination or harassment at the FIELDWORK SITE or 
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involving employees or agents of the FIELDWORK SITE, take prompt and effective remedial 
action when discrimination or harassment is found to have occurred, and  promptly notify the 
UNIVERSITY of the existence and outcome of any complaint of harassment by, against, or 
involving any participating student. 


 
D. To notify the UNIVERSITY of any change in its personnel, operation, or policies which may affect 


the field education experience. 
 
E. Comply with all federal, state and local statutes and regulations applicable to the operation of the 


program, including without limitation, laws relating to the confidentiality of student records. 
 
F. The FIELDWORK SITE staff shall comply with APPENDIX B regarding the FIELDWORK SITE’s 


supervision of UNIVERSITY students. 
 
G. The FIELDWORK SITE acknowledges that each INTERN under this Agreement shall be a paid 


employee of the FIELDWORK SITE and thus covered under the FIELDWORK SITE’S insurance 
policies, including Workers’ Compensation, to the extent available to other teachers.  No intern 
shall be considered an employee or agent of Brandman University while performing services for 
the District. 


 
 
III. THE PARTIES MUTUALLY AGREE 
 


A. Neither party shall discriminate in the assignment of INTERNS on the basis of race, color, 
disability, gender, religion, national origin, ancestry, sexual orientation, or any other basis 
prohibited by law. 


 
B. Any failure of a party to enforce that party’s right under any provision of this Agreement shall not 


be construed or act as a waiver of said party’s subsequent right to enforce any provisions 
contained herein. 


 
C. Notices required or permitted to be provided under this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be    


deemed to have been duly given if mailed first class to the parties that signed this agreement and 
to the addresses below. 


 
FIELDWORK SITE CONTACT INFORMATION: 
 


 UNIVERSITY CONTACT INFORMATION: 


Jefferson School District 
1219 Whispering Wind Drive 
Tracy, CA 95377 
Attn: Angelica Thomas 
Director of Special Education 
Tel: (209) 839-1842 


 Brandman University 
16355 Laguna Canyon Road 
Irvine, CA  92618 
Attn:  School of Education, Dean 
Tel:  (949) 341-9811 
 


 
 
D. If any term or provision of this Agreement is for any reason held to be invalid, such invalidity shall 


not affect any other term or provision, and this Agreement shall be interpreted as if such term or 
provision had never been contained in this Agreement. 


 
E. In the event of any material default under this Agreement, which default remains uncured for a 


period of twenty-one (21) days after receipt of written notice of such default, or in the event of the 
loss of WASC accreditation by the UNIVERSITY, this Agreement may be immediately terminated 
by the non-defaulting party. 


 
F. This Agreement fully supersedes any and all prior agreements or understandings between the 


parties or any of their respective affiliates with respect to the subject matter hereof.  No change, 
modification, addition, amendment, or supplement to this Agreement shall be valid unless set 
forth in writing and signed and dated by both parties hereto subsequent to the execution of this 
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Agreement. 
 
G. This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the laws of the State of California in effect 


at the time of the execution of this Agreement.  Should either party institute legal action to enforce 
any obligation contained herein, it is agreed that the proper venue of such suit or action shall be 
Orange County, California. 


 
 
IV. TERM AND TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT 
 


A. THE TERM of this Agreement shall be effective January 11, 2017 and shall continue in full force 
and effect through January 10, 2020.  This Agreement may be renewed for one (1) additional 
term of the contract by mutual written consent of the parties. 


 
B. THIS AGREEMENT may be terminated by either the UNIVERSITY or the FIELDWORK SITE with 


or without cause upon thirty (30) days written notice provided that (subject to the other terms of 
this Agreement) all students performing fieldwork at the time of notice of termination are given the 
opportunity to complete their fieldwork at the Fieldwork Site. 


 
 
 
SIGNATURES: 
 
FIELDWORK SITE: Signature:  
 Name:  
 Title:  
 Date:  


 
 
UNIVERSITY: Signature:  
 Name: Phillip L. Doolittle 
 Title: Executive Vice Chancellor of Finance and 


Administration and Chief Financial Officer 
 Date:  
   
 Signature: 


 
 Name: Dr. Christine Zeppos 
 Title: Dean, School of Education 
 Date:  
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Appendix A 


Definition of Internship 
 
 


A. “INTERN” is defined according to the COMMISSION as a person who is enrolled in a COMMISSION-
approved internship program and is serving with an Internship Credential issued upon the 
recommendation of the UNIVERSITY. 


 
B. INTERNS shall not displace certificated FIELDWORK SITE employees.  FIELDWORK SITE further 


agrees to provide written certification that no person with the appropriate credential, background and 
qualifications is interested and/or available in the position that is the subject matter of this Agreement. 


 
C. The internship may continue for a period of up to two years and the credential may be renewed upon 


a showing of good cause. 
 
D. The internship program is being implemented in order to provide the INTERN with an opportunity to 


gain field experience on a paid basis.  In the event that the internship is being developed to meet an 
employment shortage, FIELDWORK SITE agrees to provide a statement regarding the availability of 
qualified, certificated individuals holding the appropriate credential. 


 
E. The Internship Credential is issued for service only in the FIELDWORK SITE District and the 


UNIVERSITY shall notify the COMMISSION of the FIELDWORK SITE’S participation. 
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Appendix B 


Specific Supervision Requirements for Each Program  
 


 
 
School Counseling Fieldwork: 
 


A. Provide an average of one (1) hour of individual or one-and-one-half (1.5) hours of small group 
supervision per week from an experienced school counselor with at least two years of 
professional experience.  


 
B. Provide opportunities for students to gain a broad range of experiences, including experiences in: 


 
a. Personal and career assessments 
b. Personal counseling experience in either an individual or group context 
c. Experience in School-based programs serving parents and family members 
d. Observing classroom instruction 
e. Attending district and school based meetings 
f. Mapping school-based community resources 
g. The candidate is to perform, under supervision, the functions of school counselors in 


school counseling domains. 
h. Participating in professional development activities.  
i. Participating in individual or group supervision. 
j. Learning about and using technology and information systems. 
k. Learning about Individual differences and student diversity.  


 
C. The FIELDWORK SITE shall provide activities that occur across at minimum of two of four 


settings, including, (a) middle school or junior high, and (b) high school. 
 


D. The FIELDWORK SITE in collaboration with the UNIVERSITY will designate one school 
counselor who has at least two years experience in school counseling to serve as the primary 
supervisor.  The student may also work with other experienced school counselors for specific 
activities.  In no case shall any supervisor be assigned by the FIELDWORK SITE to provide 
concurrent supervision for more than two interns or students. 


 
E. The FIELDWORK SITE shall ensure that the student receives an average of one hour of 


individual or one and one-half hours of group face-to-face supervision per week, although more 
time may be needed, especially at the beginning of the FIELDWORK experience. 


 
F. The FIELDWORK SITE supervisor, in collaboration with the UNIVERSITY faculty, will complete at 


least one written evaluation of the student's performance near the end of each university session. 
 


G. The FIELDWORK SITE shall ensure that the student will be treated by the district as part of the 
professional staff and provided a supportive work environment, adequate supplies, counseling 
and test materials.  In addition, it shall see that the student is encouraged to participate in district, 
SELPA, or county committees; and that he/she is provided release time as needed to attend 
professional development experiences or professional association meetings. 


 
I. Specific Supervision Requirements School Psychology Fieldwork: 


 
A. Provide an average of one (1) hour of individual or one-and-one-half (1.5) hours of small group 


supervision per week from an experienced school psychologist with at least two years of 
professional experience.  


 
B. Provide experiences with a diverse student population. 
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C. Provide experiences with a variety of educational programs.   


 
D. Provide opportunities for students to gain a broad range of experiences, including experiences in: 


 
a. Data based decision making:  Assessing and reevaluating individual pupils and 


their programs. 
b. Collaboration and consultation with school personnel and participation on 


interdisciplinary teams.  
c. Developing, implementing and evaluating academic and behavioral interventions. 
d. Providing counseling and other mental health interventions. 
e. Home, school, community collaboration: working with parents and community 


members. 
f. Learning about, helping develop, or evaluating policy, practices and programs. 
g. Participating in professional development activities.  
h. Participating in individual or group supervision. 
i. Learning about and using technology and information systems. 
j. Learning about Individual differences and student diversity.  


 
E. The FIELDWORK SITE shall provide activities that occur across at minimum of two of four 


settings, including (a) preschool, (b) elementary, (c) middle school or junior high, and (d) high 
school. 


 
F. The FIELDWORK SITE in collaboration with the UNIVERSITY will designate one school 


psychologist who has at least two years experience in School Psychology to serve as the primary 
supervisor.  The student may also work with other experienced school psychologists for specific 
activities.  In no case shall any supervisor be assigned by the FIELDWORK SITE to provide 
concurrent supervision for more than two interns or students. 


 
G. The FIELDWORK SITE shall ensure that the student receives an average of one hour of 


individual or one and one-half hours of group face-to-face supervision per week, although more 
time may be needed, especially at the beginning of the FIELDWORK experience. 


 
H. The FIELDWORK SITE supervisor, in collaboration with the UNIVERSITY faculty, will complete at 


least one written evaluations of the student's performance near the end of each university 
session. 


 
I. The FIELDWORK SITE shall ensure that the student will be treated by the district as part of the 


professional staff and provided a supportive work environment, adequate supplies, counseling 
and test materials.  In addition, it shall see that the student is encouraged to participate in district, 
SELPA, or county committees; and that he/she is provided release time as needed to attend 
professional development experiences or professional association meetings.  
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School Administration Fieldwork: 
 


A. The FIELDWORK SITE shall provide student with individual and/or small group supervision from 
an experienced school administrator. 


 
B. The FIELDWORK SITE shall provide student with experiences with a diverse student population. 
 
C. The FIELDWORK SITE shall provide student with experiences with a variety of educational 


programs. 
 


D. The FIELDWORK SITE shall ensure that the student receives an average of one hour of 
individual and/or one and one-half hours of group face-to-face supervision per week, although 
more time may be needed, especially at the beginning of the FIELDWORK experience. 


 
E. The FIELDWORK SITE supervisor, in collaboration with the UNIVERSITY faculty, will complete at 


least one written evaluation of the student's performance near the end of each university 
semester. 


 
F. The FIELDWORK SITE shall ensure that the student will be treated by the FIELDWORK SITE as 


part of the professional staff and is provided a supportive work environment and adequate 
supplies.  In addition, it shall see that the INTERN is encouraged to participate in district or county 
committees and that he/she is provided release time as needed to attend professional 
development experiences or professional association meetings. 


 
 








INFORMATION SHEET 1/17/2017 TRUSTEES’ MEETING 
 


 
        ATTACHMENT: 7.1 
 
 
 
TO:     Jim Bridges, Superintendent 
 
FOR:    Board of Trustees 
 
FROM: Mindy Maxedon, CBO 
 
ISSUE:   December 2016, Budget Adjustments  
 
   
Attached for Board review are the Budget Revisions and Transfers for December 1, 2016 
through December 31, 2016.   
 
 
Listed below are the primary changes in December, 2016. 
 
 
FUND 01: 


- Update site budgets for revenue received. 
- Update budget for hosted Destiny Software. 
- Update budget for LLNL Donation. 


 
FUND 13: 


- Between objects for supplies. 
 
 


 
 
 
 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







 
 
 


Jefferson School District 
Budget Adjustment Report 


From 12/1/16 through 12/31/16 
 


FUNDS:     01, 13 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED this 17th day of January, 2017, by the following vote: 
 
 
 
 
AYES:  ________ NOES:  _________  ABSENT:  _________ 
 
 
 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
COUNTY OF SAN JOAQUIN 
 
I, ____________________, Clerk of the Governing Board of the JEFFERSON 
School District of San Joaquin County, California, do hereby certify that the 
Governing Board of said district did in fact adopt at a Board meeting, at the time and 
by the vote stated, the revised budget figures shown as of the December revised 
budget on the attached Budget Adjustment Reports as being the official revised 
budget of the District for Fiscal Year 2016-17. 
 
Approved this 17th day of January, 2017 
 
 
       _____________________________ 
       Clerk, Board of Trustees 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 
 
 







Journal Entry Detail by JELedger01a


Journal Entry # BR17-00164 through BR17-00199 Effective 12/1/2016 through 12/31/2016


Created Posted


Requisition # Purchase Order # Batch #


Journal Entry # BR17-00164 Status Posted Type BudRev Transaction Date 12/02/2016


JAYMER20, 12/2/2016 JAYMER20, 12/2/2016 Department BUSN


Fiscal Year 2017


MS/BBCComment  


CreditsDebitsCommentsAccount #
Line 
Seq 


MS/BBC 106.00 01-9012-0-1110-2420-4200-120-1001 1


MS/BBC 106.00 01-9012-0-0000-0000-8699-000-0000 2


JE # BR17-00164 Totals 106.00 106.00 


Created Posted


Requisition # Purchase Order # Batch #


Journal Entry # BR17-00165 Status Posted Type BudRev Transaction Date 12/02/2016


JAYMER20, 12/2/2016 JAYMER20, 12/2/2016 Department BUSN


Fiscal Year 2017


TS/SCIENCE CAMPComment  


CreditsDebitsCommentsAccount #
Line 
Seq 


TS/SCIENCE CAMP 8,797.00 01-9034-0-1110-1000-5815-140-0000 1


TS/SCIENCE CAMP 8,797.00 01-9034-0-0000-0000-8699-000-0000 2


JE # BR17-00165 Totals 8,797.00 8,797.00 


Created Posted


Requisition # Purchase Order # Batch #


Journal Entry # BR17-00166 Status Posted Type BudRev Transaction Date 12/02/2016


JAYMER20, 12/2/2016 JAYMER20, 12/2/2016 Department BUSN


Fiscal Year 2017


MS/WHALENS CLASS DONATIONComment  


CreditsDebitsCommentsAccount #
Line 
Seq 


MS/WHALENS CLASS DONATION 72.00 01-9012-0-1110-1000-4310-120-1001 1


MS/WHALENS CLASS DONATION 72.00 01-9012-0-0000-0000-8699-000-0000 2


JE # BR17-00166 Totals 72.00 72.00 


Selection Grouped by Journal Entry Number, (Org = 20, Fiscal Year = 2017, Starting Transaction Date = 12/1/2016, Ending Transaction Date = 12/31/2016, 


JE Type = BudRev, Unposted JE? = N, Page Break? = N) Page 1 of 11


Generated for Jayme Robertson (JAYMER20), Jan 10 2017  8:29AM020 - Jefferson Elementary School District  2598163







Journal Entry Detail by JELedger01a


Journal Entry # BR17-00164 through BR17-00199 Effective 12/1/2016 through 12/31/2016


Created Posted


Requisition # Purchase Order # Batch #


Journal Entry # BR17-00167 Status Posted Type BudRev Transaction Date 12/02/2016


JAYMER20, 12/2/2016 JAYMER20, 12/2/2016 Department BUSN


Fiscal Year 2017


MS/PAYMENT FOR PIONEER BUSSINGComment  


CreditsDebitsCommentsAccount #
Line 
Seq 


MS/PAYMENT FOR PIONEER BUSSING 285.00 01-9012-0-1110-1000-4310-120-1090 1


MS/PAYMENT FOR PIONEER BUSSING 285.00 01-9012-0-0000-0000-8699-000-0000 2


JE # BR17-00167 Totals 285.00 285.00 


Created Posted


Requisition # Purchase Order # Batch #


Journal Entry # BR17-00168 Status Posted Type BudRev Transaction Date 12/02/2016


JAYMER20, 12/2/2016 JAYMER20, 12/2/2016 Department BUSN


Fiscal Year 2017


TS/SCIENCE CAMP DONATIONComment  


CreditsDebitsCommentsAccount #
Line 
Seq 


TS/SCIENCE CAMP DONATION 3,480.00 01-9034-0-1110-1000-5815-140-0000 1


TS/SCIENCE CAMP DONATION 3,480.00 01-9034-0-0000-0000-8699-000-0000 2


JE # BR17-00168 Totals 3,480.00 3,480.00 


Created Posted


Requisition # Purchase Order # Batch #


Journal Entry # BR17-00169 Status Posted Type BudRev Transaction Date 12/02/2016


JAYMER20, 12/2/2016 JAYMER20, 12/2/2016 Department BUSN


Fiscal Year 2017


TS/BAND DONATIONComment  


CreditsDebitsCommentsAccount #
Line 
Seq 


TS/BAND DONATION 249.00 01-9014-0-1110-1000-4310-140-1092 1


TS/BAND DONATION 249.00 01-9014-0-0000-0000-8699-000-0000 2


JE # BR17-00169 Totals 249.00 249.00 


Selection Grouped by Journal Entry Number, (Org = 20, Fiscal Year = 2017, Starting Transaction Date = 12/1/2016, Ending Transaction Date = 12/31/2016, 


JE Type = BudRev, Unposted JE? = N, Page Break? = N) Page 2 of 11


Generated for Jayme Robertson (JAYMER20), Jan 10 2017  8:29AM020 - Jefferson Elementary School District  2598163







Journal Entry Detail by JELedger01a


Journal Entry # BR17-00164 through BR17-00199 Effective 12/1/2016 through 12/31/2016


Created Posted


Requisition # Purchase Order # Batch #


Journal Entry # BR17-00170 Status Posted Type BudRev Transaction Date 12/05/2016


JAYMER20, 12/5/2016 JAYMER20, 12/5/2016 Department BUSN


Fiscal Year 2017


SETUP YEARBOOK STIPEND - ALL SITESComment  


CreditsDebitsCommentsAccount #
Line 
Seq 


SETUP YEARBOOK STIPEND - ALL SITES 500.00 01-0000-0-1860-1000-1101-110-0000 1


SETUP YEARBOOK STIPEND - ALL SITES 500.00 01-0000-0-1860-1000-1101-120-0000 2


SETUP YEARBOOK STIPEND - ALL SITES 500.00 01-0000-0-1860-1000-1101-130-0000 3


SETUP YEARBOOK STIPEND - ALL SITES 500.00 01-0000-0-1860-1000-1101-140-0000 4


SETUP YEARBOOK STIPEND - ALL SITES 2,000.00 01-0000-0-    -    -9790-   - 5


JE # BR17-00170 Totals 2,000.00 2,000.00 


Created Posted


Requisition # Purchase Order # Batch #


Journal Entry # BR17-00171 Status Posted Type BudRev Transaction Date 12/09/2016


JAYMER20, 12/9/2016 JAYMER20, 12/9/2016 Department BUSN


Fiscal Year 2017


HS/8TH GRADE GRADUATIONComment  


CreditsDebitsCommentsAccount #
Line 
Seq 


HS/8TH GRADE GRADUATION 2,798.00 01-9303-0-1110-1000-4320-130-0000 1


HS/8TH GRADE GRADUATION 2,798.00 01-9303-0-0000-0000-8699-000-0000 2


JE # BR17-00171 Totals 2,798.00 2,798.00 


Created Posted


Requisition # Purchase Order # Batch #


Journal Entry # BR17-00172 Status Posted Type BudRev Transaction Date 12/09/2016


JAYMER20, 12/9/2016 JAYMER20, 12/9/2016 Department BUSN


Fiscal Year 2017


HS/8TH GRADE GRADUATIONComment  


CreditsDebitsCommentsAccount #
Line 
Seq 


HS/8TH GRADE GRADUATION 704.00 01-9303-0-1110-1000-4320-130-0000 1


HS/8TH GRADE GRADUATION 704.00 01-9303-0-0000-0000-8699-000-0000 2


JE # BR17-00172 Totals 704.00 704.00 


Selection Grouped by Journal Entry Number, (Org = 20, Fiscal Year = 2017, Starting Transaction Date = 12/1/2016, Ending Transaction Date = 12/31/2016, 


JE Type = BudRev, Unposted JE? = N, Page Break? = N) Page 3 of 11


Generated for Jayme Robertson (JAYMER20), Jan 10 2017  8:29AM020 - Jefferson Elementary School District  2598163







Journal Entry Detail by JELedger01a


Journal Entry # BR17-00164 through BR17-00199 Effective 12/1/2016 through 12/31/2016


Created Posted


Requisition # Purchase Order # Batch #


Journal Entry # BR17-00173 Status Posted Type BudRev Transaction Date 12/09/2016


JAYMER20, 12/9/2016 JAYMER20, 12/9/2016 Department BUSN


Fiscal Year 2017


HS/8TH GRADE GRADUATIONComment  


CreditsDebitsCommentsAccount #
Line 
Seq 


HS/8TH GRADE GRADUATION 616.00 01-9303-0-1110-1000-4320-130-0000 1


HS/8TH GRADE GRADUATION 616.00 01-9303-0-0000-0000-8699-000-0000 2


JE # BR17-00173 Totals 616.00 616.00 


Created Posted


Requisition # Purchase Order # Batch #


Journal Entry # BR17-00174 Status Posted Type BudRev Transaction Date 12/09/2016


JAYMER20, 12/9/2016 JAYMER20, 12/9/2016 Department BUSN


Fiscal Year 2017


MS/DONATION FOR BBCComment  


CreditsDebitsCommentsAccount #
Line 
Seq 


MS/DONATION FOR BBC 121.00 01-9012-0-1110-2420-4200-120-1001 1


MS/DONATION FOR BBC 121.00 01-9012-0-0000-0000-8699-000-0000 2


JE # BR17-00174 Totals 121.00 121.00 


Created Posted


Requisition # Purchase Order # Batch #


Journal Entry # BR17-00175 Status Posted Type BudRev Transaction Date 12/09/2016


JAYMER20, 12/9/2016 JAYMER20, 12/9/2016 Department BUSN


Fiscal Year 2017


HS/8TH GRADE GRADUATIONComment  


CreditsDebitsCommentsAccount #
Line 
Seq 


HS/8TH GRADE GRADUATION 264.00 01-9303-0-1110-1000-4320-130-0000 1


HS/8TH GRADE GRADUATION 264.00 01-9303-0-0000-0000-8699-000-0000 2


JE # BR17-00175 Totals 264.00 264.00 


Selection Grouped by Journal Entry Number, (Org = 20, Fiscal Year = 2017, Starting Transaction Date = 12/1/2016, Ending Transaction Date = 12/31/2016, 


JE Type = BudRev, Unposted JE? = N, Page Break? = N) Page 4 of 11
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Journal Entry Detail by JELedger01a


Journal Entry # BR17-00164 through BR17-00199 Effective 12/1/2016 through 12/31/2016


Created Posted


Requisition # Purchase Order # Batch #


Journal Entry # BR17-00176 Status Posted Type BudRev Transaction Date 12/09/2016


JAYMER20, 12/9/2016 JAYMER20, 12/9/2016 Department BUSN


Fiscal Year 2017


MS/DONATIONComment  


CreditsDebitsCommentsAccount #
Line 
Seq 


MS/DONATION 120.00 01-9012-0-1110-1000-4310-120-1001 1


MS/DONATION 120.00 01-9012-0-0000-0000-8699-000-0000 2


JE # BR17-00176 Totals 120.00 120.00 


Created Posted


Requisition # Purchase Order # Batch #


Journal Entry # BR17-00177 Status Posted Type BudRev Transaction Date 12/09/2016


JAYMER20, 12/9/2016 JAYMER20, 12/9/2016 Department BUSN


Fiscal Year 2017


JS/8TH GRADE GRADUATIONComment  


CreditsDebitsCommentsAccount #
Line 
Seq 


JS/VARIOUS PARENT DONATION 400.00 01-9301-0-1110-1000-4310-110-1001 1


JS/8TH GRADE GRADUATION 400.00 01-9301-0-0000-0000-8699-000-0000 2


JE # BR17-00177 Totals 400.00 400.00 


Created Posted


Requisition # Purchase Order # Batch #


Journal Entry # BR17-00178 Status Posted Type BudRev Transaction Date 12/09/2016


JAYMER20, 12/9/2016 JAYMER20, 12/9/2016 Department BUSN


Fiscal Year 2017


JS/DONATIONComment  


CreditsDebitsCommentsAccount #
Line 
Seq 


JS/DONATION 93.00 01-9011-0-1110-1000-4310-110-1001 1


JS/DONATION 93.00 01-9011-0-0000-0000-8699-000-0000 2


JE # BR17-00178 Totals 93.00 93.00 


Selection Grouped by Journal Entry Number, (Org = 20, Fiscal Year = 2017, Starting Transaction Date = 12/1/2016, Ending Transaction Date = 12/31/2016, 


JE Type = BudRev, Unposted JE? = N, Page Break? = N) Page 5 of 11
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Journal Entry Detail by JELedger01a


Journal Entry # BR17-00164 through BR17-00199 Effective 12/1/2016 through 12/31/2016


Created Posted


Requisition # Purchase Order # Batch #


Journal Entry # BR17-00179 Status Posted Type BudRev Transaction Date 12/09/2016


JAYMER20, 12/9/2016 JAYMER20, 12/9/2016 Department BUSN


Fiscal Year 2017


JS/DONATION PUT TOWARDS JEFFERSON BENCHComment  


CreditsDebitsCommentsAccount #
Line 
Seq 


JS/DONATION PUT TOWARDS JEFFERSON BENCH 500.00 01-9011-0-1110-1000-4310-110-1090 1


JS/DONATION PUT TOWARDS JEFFERSON BENCH 500.00 01-9011-0-0000-0000-8699-000-0000 2


JE # BR17-00179 Totals 500.00 500.00 


Created Posted


Requisition # Purchase Order # Batch #


Journal Entry # BR17-00180 Status Posted Type BudRev Transaction Date 12/09/2016


JAYMER20, 12/9/2016 JAYMER20, 12/9/2016 Department BUSN


Fiscal Year 2017


JS/POTTS AND SCOTT DONATIONComment  


CreditsDebitsCommentsAccount #
Line 
Seq 


JS/POTTS AND SCOTT DONATION 237.00 01-9011-0-1110-1000-4310-110-1092 1


JS/POTTS AND SCOTT DONATION 237.00 01-9011-0-1110-1000-4310-110-1092 2


JS/POTTS AND SCOTT DONATION 474.00 01-9011-0-    -    -9790-   - 3


JE # BR17-00180 Totals 474.00 474.00 


Created Posted


Requisition # Purchase Order # Batch #


Journal Entry # BR17-00181 Status Posted Type BudRev Transaction Date 12/09/2016


JAYMER20, 12/9/2016 JAYMER20, 12/9/2016 Department BUSN


Fiscal Year 2017


JS/POTTS AND SCOTT DONATIONComment  


CreditsDebitsCommentsAccount #
Line 
Seq 


JS/POTTS AND SCOTT DONATION 203.00 01-9011-0-1110-1000-4310-110-1092 1


JS/POTTS AND SCOTT DONATION 203.00 01-9011-0-0000-0000-8699-000-0000 2


JE # BR17-00181 Totals 203.00 203.00 


Selection Grouped by Journal Entry Number, (Org = 20, Fiscal Year = 2017, Starting Transaction Date = 12/1/2016, Ending Transaction Date = 12/31/2016, 


JE Type = BudRev, Unposted JE? = N, Page Break? = N) Page 6 of 11
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Journal Entry Detail by JELedger01a


Journal Entry # BR17-00164 through BR17-00199 Effective 12/1/2016 through 12/31/2016


Created Posted


Requisition # Purchase Order # Batch #


Journal Entry # BR17-00182 Status Posted Type BudRev Transaction Date 12/09/2016


JAYMER20, 12/9/2016 JAYMER20, 12/9/2016 Department BUSN


Fiscal Year 2017


JS/8TH GRADE GRADUATIONComment  


CreditsDebitsCommentsAccount #
Line 
Seq 


JS/8TH GRADE GRADUATION 1,100.00 01-9301-0-1110-1000-4310-110-1001 1


JS/8TH GRADE GRADUATION 1,100.00 01-9301-0-0000-0000-8699-000-0000 2


JE # BR17-00182 Totals 1,100.00 1,100.00 


Created Posted


Requisition # Purchase Order # Batch #


Journal Entry # BR17-00183 Status Posted Type BudRev Transaction Date 12/09/2016


JAYMER20, 12/9/2016 JAYMER20, 12/9/2016 Department BUSN


Fiscal Year 2017


MS/BUSSING TO SACComment  


CreditsDebitsCommentsAccount #
Line 
Seq 


MS/BUSSING TO SAC 1,159.00 01-9012-0-1110-1000-4310-120-1001 1


MS/BUSSING TO SAC 1,159.00 01-9012-0-0000-0000-8699-000-0000 2


JE # BR17-00183 Totals 1,159.00 1,159.00 


Created Posted


Requisition # Purchase Order # Batch #


Journal Entry # BR17-00184 Status Posted Type BudRev Transaction Date 12/09/2016


JAYMER20, 12/9/2016 JAYMER20, 12/9/2016 Department BUSN


Fiscal Year 2017


JS/8TH GRADE GRADUATIONComment  


CreditsDebitsCommentsAccount #
Line 
Seq 


JS/8TH GRADE GRADUATION 2,950.00 01-9301-0-1110-1000-4310-110-1001 1


JS/8TH GRADE GRADUATION 2,950.00 01-9301-0-0000-0000-8699-000-0000 2


JE # BR17-00184 Totals 2,950.00 2,950.00 


Selection Grouped by Journal Entry Number, (Org = 20, Fiscal Year = 2017, Starting Transaction Date = 12/1/2016, Ending Transaction Date = 12/31/2016, 
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Journal Entry Detail by JELedger01a


Journal Entry # BR17-00164 through BR17-00199 Effective 12/1/2016 through 12/31/2016


Created Posted


Requisition # Purchase Order # Batch #


Journal Entry # BR17-00185 Status Posted Type BudRev Transaction Date 12/12/2016


JAYMER20, 12/12/2016 JAYMER20, 12/12/2016 Department BUSN


Fiscal Year 2017


UPDATE BUDGET FOR HOSTED DESINY SOFTAWAREComment  


CreditsDebitsCommentsAccount #
Line 
Seq 


UPDATE BUDGET FOR HOSTED DESINY SOFTAWARE 14,088.00 01-0000-0-1110-1000-5809-900-0000 1


UPDATE BUDGET FOR HOSTED DESINY SOFTAWARE 14,088.00 01-0000-0-    -    -9790-   - 2


JE # BR17-00185 Totals 14,088.00 14,088.00 


Created Posted


Requisition # Purchase Order # Batch #


Journal Entry # BR17-00186 Status Posted Type BudRev Transaction Date 12/14/2016


JAYMER20, 12/14/2016 JAYMER20, 12/14/2016 Department BUSN


Fiscal Year 2017


MS/DONATIONSComment  


CreditsDebitsCommentsAccount #
Line 
Seq 


MS/DONATIONS 28.00 01-9012-0-1110-1000-4310-120-1001 1


MS/DONATIONS 28.00 01-9012-0-0000-0000-8699-000-0000 2


JE # BR17-00186 Totals 28.00 28.00 


Created Posted


Requisition # Purchase Order # Batch #


Journal Entry # BR17-00187 Status Posted Type BudRev Transaction Date 12/14/2016


JAYMER20, 12/14/2016 JAYMER20, 12/14/2016 Department BUSN


Fiscal Year 2017


MS/DONATIONComment  


CreditsDebitsCommentsAccount #
Line 
Seq 


MS/DONATION 375.00 01-9012-0-1110-1000-4310-120-1090 1


MS/DONATION 375.00 01-9012-0-0000-0000-8699-000-0000 2


JE # BR17-00187 Totals 375.00 375.00 


Selection Grouped by Journal Entry Number, (Org = 20, Fiscal Year = 2017, Starting Transaction Date = 12/1/2016, Ending Transaction Date = 12/31/2016, 
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Journal Entry Detail by JELedger01a


Journal Entry # BR17-00164 through BR17-00199 Effective 12/1/2016 through 12/31/2016


Created Posted


Requisition # Purchase Order # Batch #


Journal Entry # BR17-00188 Status Posted Type BudRev Transaction Date 12/14/2016


JAYMER20, 12/14/2016 JAYMER20, 12/14/2016 Department BUSN


Fiscal Year 2017


JS/8TH GRADE DONATIONSComment  


CreditsDebitsCommentsAccount #
Line 
Seq 


JS/8TH GRADE DONATIONS 1,700.00 01-9301-0-1110-1000-4310-110-1001 1


JS/8TH GRADE DONATIONS 1,700.00 01-9301-0-0000-0000-8699-000-0000 2


JE # BR17-00188 Totals 1,700.00 1,700.00 


Created Posted


Requisition # Purchase Order # Batch #


Journal Entry # BR17-00189 Status Posted Type BudRev Transaction Date 12/14/2016


JAYMER20, 12/14/2016 JAYMER20, 12/14/2016 Department BUSN


Fiscal Year 2017


TS/SCIENCE CAMP DONATIONSComment  


CreditsDebitsCommentsAccount #
Line 
Seq 


TS/SCIENCE CAMP DONATIONS 440.00 01-9034-0-1110-1000-5815-140-0000 1


TS/SCIENCE CAMP DONATIONS 440.00 01-9034-0-0000-0000-8699-000-0000 2


JE # BR17-00189 Totals 440.00 440.00 


Created Posted


Requisition # Purchase Order # Batch #


Journal Entry # BR17-00190 Status Posted Type BudRev Transaction Date 12/14/2016


JAYMER20, 12/14/2016 JAYMER20, 12/14/2016 Department BUSN


Fiscal Year 2017


TS/DONATIONSComment  


CreditsDebitsCommentsAccount #
Line 
Seq 


TS/DONATIONS 191.00 01-9014-0-1110-1000-4310-140-1092 1


TS/DONATIONS 191.00 01-9014-0-0000-0000-8699-000-0000 2


JE # BR17-00190 Totals 191.00 191.00 


Selection Grouped by Journal Entry Number, (Org = 20, Fiscal Year = 2017, Starting Transaction Date = 12/1/2016, Ending Transaction Date = 12/31/2016, 
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Journal Entry Detail by JELedger01a


Journal Entry # BR17-00164 through BR17-00199 Effective 12/1/2016 through 12/31/2016


Created Posted


Requisition # Purchase Order # Batch #


Journal Entry # BR17-00191 Status Posted Type BudRev Transaction Date 12/14/2016


JAYMER20, 12/14/2016 JAYMER20, 12/14/2016 Department BUSN


Fiscal Year 2017


TS/2ND GRADE FIELD TRIP DONATIONSComment  


CreditsDebitsCommentsAccount #
Line 
Seq 


TS/2ND GRADE FIELD TRIP DONATIONS 240.00 01-9014-0-1110-1000-5800-140-1092 1


TS/2ND GRADE FIELD TRIP DONATIONS 240.00 01-9014-0-0000-0000-8699-000-0000 2


JE # BR17-00191 Totals 240.00 240.00 


Created Posted


Requisition # Purchase Order # Batch #


Journal Entry # BR17-00192 Status Posted Type BudRev Transaction Date 12/14/2016


JAYMER20, 12/14/2016 JAYMER20, 12/14/2016 Department BUSN


Fiscal Year 2017


TS/SCIENCE CAMP DONATION FROM PTAComment  


CreditsDebitsCommentsAccount #
Line 
Seq 


TS/SCIENCE CAMP DONATION FROM PTA 1,670.00 01-9034-0-1110-1000-5815-140-0000 1


TS/SCIENCE CAMP DONATION FROM PTA 1,670.00 01-9034-0-0000-0000-8699-000-0000 2


JE # BR17-00192 Totals 1,670.00 1,670.00 


Created Posted


Requisition # Purchase Order # Batch #


Journal Entry # BR17-00193 Status Posted Type BudRev Transaction Date 12/14/2016


JAYMER20, 12/14/2016 JAYMER20, 12/14/2016 Department BUSN


Fiscal Year 2017


2016-17 LLNL DONATIONComment  


CreditsDebitsCommentsAccount #
Line 
Seq 


2016-17 LLNL DONATION 5,000.00 01-9010-0-1110-1000-5800-925-0000 1


2016-17 LLNL DONATION 5,000.00 01-9010-0-0000-0000-8699-000-0000 2


JE # BR17-00193 Totals 5,000.00 5,000.00 


Selection Grouped by Journal Entry Number, (Org = 20, Fiscal Year = 2017, Starting Transaction Date = 12/1/2016, Ending Transaction Date = 12/31/2016, 


JE Type = BudRev, Unposted JE? = N, Page Break? = N) Page 10 of 11
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Journal Entry Detail by JELedger01a


Journal Entry # BR17-00164 through BR17-00199 Effective 12/1/2016 through 12/31/2016


Created Posted


Requisition # Purchase Order # Batch #


Journal Entry # BR17-00198 Status Posted Type BudRev Transaction Date 12/09/2016


JAYMER20, 1/10/2017 JAYMER20, 1/10/2017 Department BUSN


Fiscal Year 2017


REVERSE TO CORRECT OBJ CODEComment  


CreditsDebitsCommentsAccount #
Line 
Seq 


REVERSE TO CORRECT OBJ CODE 237.00 01-9011-0-1110-1000-4310-110-1092 1


REVERSE TO CORRECT OBJ CODE 237.00 01-9011-0-1110-1000-4310-110-1092 2


REVERSE TO CORRECT OBJ CODE 474.00 01-9011-0-    -    -9790-   - 3


JE # BR17-00198 Totals 474.00 474.00 


Created Posted


Requisition # Purchase Order # Batch #


Journal Entry # BR17-00199 Status Posted Type BudRev Transaction Date 12/09/2016


JAYMER20, 1/10/2017 JAYMER20, 1/10/2017 Department BUSN


Fiscal Year 2017


JS/POTTS AND SCOTTS DONATIONComment  


CreditsDebitsCommentsAccount #
Line 
Seq 


JS/POTTS AND SCOTTS DONATION 237.00 01-9011-0-1110-1000-4310-110-1092 1


JS/POTTS AND SCOTTS DONATION 237.00 01-9011-0-0000-0000-8699-000-0000 2


JE # BR17-00199 Totals 237.00 237.00 


Jefferson Elementary School District Totals 50,934.00 50,934.00 


Selection Grouped by Journal Entry Number, (Org = 20, Fiscal Year = 2017, Starting Transaction Date = 12/1/2016, Ending Transaction Date = 12/31/2016, 
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Journal Entry Detail by JELedger01a


Journal Entry # BT17-00106 through BT17-00117 Effective 12/1/2016 through 12/31/2016


Created Posted


Requisition # Purchase Order # Batch #


Journal Entry # BT17-00106 Status Posted Type BudXFer Transaction Date 12/02/2016


JAYMER20, 12/2/2016 JAYMER20, 12/2/2016 Department BUSN


Fiscal Year 2017


TS/BAND INSTRUMENT REPAIRComment  


CreditsDebitsCommentsAccount #
Line 
Seq 


TS/BAND INSTRUMENT REPAIR 76.00 01-0000-0-1705-4100-4310-140-1057 1


TS/BAND INSTRUMENT REPAIR 76.00 01-0000-0-1705-4100-5800-140-1057 2


JE # BT17-00106 Totals 76.00 76.00 


Created Posted


Requisition # Purchase Order # Batch #


Journal Entry # BT17-00107 Status Posted Type BudXFer Transaction Date 12/02/2016


JAYMER20, 12/2/2016 JAYMER20, 12/2/2016 Department BUSN


Fiscal Year 2017


TS/FIELD TRIP 3RD GRADEComment  


CreditsDebitsCommentsAccount #
Line 
Seq 


TS/FIELD TRIP 3RD GRADE 380.00 01-1100-0-1110-1000-5800-140-1001 1


TS/FIELD TRIP 3RD GRADE 380.00 01-1100-0-1110-1000-5725-140-1001 2


TS/FIELD TRIP 3RD GRADE 380.00 01-0723-0-0000-3600-5725-850-9100 3


TS/FIELD TRIP 3RD GRADE 380.00 01-0723-0-0000-3600-4382-850-9100 4


JE # BT17-00107 Totals 760.00 760.00 


Created Posted


Requisition # Purchase Order # Batch #


Journal Entry # BT17-00108 Status Posted Type BudXFer Transaction Date 12/06/2016


JAYMER20, 12/6/2016 JAYMER20, 12/6/2016 Department BUSN


Fiscal Year 2017


MS/COVER HANDWRITING BOOKS FOR TKComment  


CreditsDebitsCommentsAccount #
Line 
Seq 


MS/COVER HANDWRITING BOOKS FOR TK 375.00 01-9012-0-1110-1000-4310-120-1090 1


MS/COVER HANDWRITING BOOKS FOR TK 375.00 01-9012-0-1110-1000-4200-120-1090 2


MS/COVER HANDWRITING BOOKS FOR TK 292.00 01-0000-0-1110-1000-4310-120-0395 3


MS/COVER HANDWRITING BOOKS FOR TK 292.00 01-0000-0-1110-1000-4200-120-0395 4


JE # BT17-00108 Totals 667.00 667.00 


Selection Grouped by Journal Entry Number, (Org = 20, Fiscal Year = 2017, Starting Transaction Date = 12/1/2016, Ending Transaction Date = 12/31/2016, 


JE Type = BudXFer, Unposted JE? = N, Page Break? = N) Page 1 of 4
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Journal Entry Detail by JELedger01a


Journal Entry # BT17-00106 through BT17-00117 Effective 12/1/2016 through 12/31/2016


Created Posted


Requisition # Purchase Order # Batch #


Journal Entry # BT17-00109 Status Posted Type BudXFer Transaction Date 12/07/2016


JAYMER20, 12/7/2016 JAYMER20, 12/7/2016 Department BUSN


Fiscal Year 2017


BTWN OBJ SUPPLIESComment  


CreditsDebitsCommentsAccount #
Line 
Seq 


BTWN OBJ SUPPLIES 2,500.00 13-5310-0-0000-3700-4710-890-9300 1


BTWN OBJ SUPPLIES 2,500.00 13-5310-0-0000-3700-4310-890-9300 2


JE # BT17-00109 Totals 2,500.00 2,500.00 


Created Posted


Requisition # Purchase Order # Batch #


Journal Entry # BT17-00110 Status Posted Type BudXFer Transaction Date 12/07/2016


JAYMER20, 12/7/2016 JAYMER20, 12/7/2016 Department BUSN


Fiscal Year 2017


HS/TO PAY REMAINDER OF MILLS PURHCASE ORDERComment  


CreditsDebitsCommentsAccount #
Line 
Seq 


HS/TO PAY REMAINDER OF MILLS PURHCASE ORDER 195.00 01-9013-0-1110-1000-5800-130-1090 1


HS/TO PAY REMAINDER OF MILLS PURHCASE ORDER 195.00 01-9013-0-1110-1000-4310-130-1090 2


JE # BT17-00110 Totals 195.00 195.00 


Created Posted


Requisition # Purchase Order # Batch #


Journal Entry # BT17-00111 Status Posted Type BudXFer Transaction Date 12/07/2016


JAYMER20, 12/7/2016 JAYMER20, 12/7/2016 Department BUSN


Fiscal Year 2017


TS/TO COVER FINTONS REIMBURSEMENT TEACHER ACCOUNTComment  


CreditsDebitsCommentsAccount #
Line 
Seq 


TS/TO COVER FINTONS REIMBURSEMENT TEACHER ACCOUNT 5.00 01-1100-0-1110-1000-4310-140-1119 1


TS/TO COVER FINTONS REIMBURSEMENT TEACHER ACCOUNT 5.00 01-1100-0-1110-1000-5800-140-1119 2


JE # BT17-00111 Totals 5.00 5.00 


Selection Grouped by Journal Entry Number, (Org = 20, Fiscal Year = 2017, Starting Transaction Date = 12/1/2016, Ending Transaction Date = 12/31/2016, 


JE Type = BudXFer, Unposted JE? = N, Page Break? = N) Page 2 of 4
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Journal Entry Detail by JELedger01a


Journal Entry # BT17-00106 through BT17-00117 Effective 12/1/2016 through 12/31/2016


Created Posted


Requisition # Purchase Order # Batch #


Journal Entry # BT17-00112 Status Posted Type BudXFer Transaction Date 12/09/2016


CELLIC20, 12/9/2016 CELLIC20, 12/9/2016 Department BUSN


Fiscal Year 2017


BTWN OBJ - NONTEXTBOOKSComment  


CreditsDebitsCommentsAccount #
Line 
Seq 


BTWN OBJ - NONTEXTBOOKS 99.00 01-0000-0-0000-7200-4200-900-9010 1


BTWN OBJ - NONTEXTBOOKS 99.00 01-0000-0-0000-7200-4310-900-9010 2


JE # BT17-00112 Totals 99.00 99.00 


Created Posted


Requisition # Purchase Order # Batch #


Journal Entry # BT17-00113 Status Posted Type BudXFer Transaction Date 12/09/2016


JAYMER20, 12/9/2016 JAYMER20, 12/9/2016 Department BUSN


Fiscal Year 2017


HS/BT TO COVER PURCHASE FROM LITTLE BITSComment  


CreditsDebitsCommentsAccount #
Line 
Seq 


HS/BT TO COVER PURCHASE FROM LITTLE BITS 669.00 01-0000-0-1110-1000-5800-130-1081 1


HS/BT TO COVER PURCHASE FROM LITTLE BITS 669.00 01-0000-0-1110-1000-4310-130-1081 2


HS/BT TO COVER PURCHASE FROM LITTLE BITS 96.00 01-0000-0-1110-1000-5800-130-1081 3


HS/BT TO COVER PURCHASE FROM LITTLE BITS 96.00 01-0000-0-1110-1000-4310-130-1081 4


JE # BT17-00113 Totals 765.00 765.00 


Created Posted


Requisition # Purchase Order # Batch #


Journal Entry # BT17-00114 Status Posted Type BudXFer Transaction Date 12/12/2016


JAYMER20, 12/12/2016 JAYMER20, 12/12/2016 Department BUSN


Fiscal Year 2017


JS/COVER ALECComment  


CreditsDebitsCommentsAccount #
Line 
Seq 


JS/COVER ALEC 107.00 01-0000-0-1110-1000-4310-110-1801 1


JS/COVER ALEC 32.00 01-0000-0-1110-1000-5800-110-1801 2


JS/COVER ALEC 75.00 01-0000-0-1110-1000-4200-110-1801 3


JE # BT17-00114 Totals 107.00 107.00 


Selection Grouped by Journal Entry Number, (Org = 20, Fiscal Year = 2017, Starting Transaction Date = 12/1/2016, Ending Transaction Date = 12/31/2016, 
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Journal Entry Detail by JELedger01a


Journal Entry # BT17-00106 through BT17-00117 Effective 12/1/2016 through 12/31/2016


Created Posted


Requisition # Purchase Order # Batch #


Journal Entry # BT17-00115 Status Posted Type BudXFer Transaction Date 12/13/2016


JAYMER20, 12/13/2016 JAYMER20, 12/13/2016 Department BUSN


Fiscal Year 2017


TS/SCIENCE CAMP MILEAGEComment  


CreditsDebitsCommentsAccount #
Line 
Seq 


TS/SCIENCE CAMP MILEAGE 225.00 01-0000-0-1110-1000-4310-140-1001 1


TS/SCIENCE CAMP MILEAGE 225.00 01-0000-0-1110-1000-5210-140-1001 2


JE # BT17-00115 Totals 225.00 225.00 


Created Posted


Requisition # Purchase Order # Batch #


Journal Entry # BT17-00116 Status Posted Type BudXFer Transaction Date 12/13/2016


MINDYM20, 12/13/2016 MINDYM20, 12/13/2016 Department BUSN


Fiscal Year 2017


BTWN OBJ FOR FLUENCY TUTOR SOFTWAREComment  


CreditsDebitsCommentsAccount #
Line 
Seq 


BTWN OBJ FOR FLUENCY TUTOR SOFTWARE 100.00 01-0000-0-1110-1000-4310-110-0395 1


BTWN OBJ FOR FLUENCY TUTOR SOFTWARE 100.00 01-0000-0-1110-1000-5800-110-0395 2


JE # BT17-00116 Totals 100.00 100.00 


Created Posted


Requisition # Purchase Order # Batch #


Journal Entry # BT17-00117 Status Posted Type BudXFer Transaction Date 12/14/2016


MINDYM20, 12/14/2016 MINDYM20, 12/14/2016 Department BUSN


Fiscal Year 2017


BTWN OBJ MOTComment  


CreditsDebitsCommentsAccount #
Line 
Seq 


BTWN OBJ MOT 2,500.00 01-8150-0-0000-8110-5800-810-9200 1


BTWN OBJ MOT 2,500.00 01-8150-0-0000-8110-5809-810-0000 2


JE # BT17-00117 Totals 2,500.00 2,500.00 


Jefferson Elementary School District Totals 7,999.00 7,999.00 


Selection Grouped by Journal Entry Number, (Org = 20, Fiscal Year = 2017, Starting Transaction Date = 12/1/2016, Ending Transaction Date = 12/31/2016, 
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Information Sheet – 1/17/17 - Board of Trustees Meeting  


 


 


TO:  Board of Trustees         Item: 7.2 


FR:  Celli Coeville  


DATE: January 17, 2017 


RE:  Food Services Department Report 
 
 
Director Debbi Rogers will be present to provide a report on the Food Services Department to the 
board and the community. 
 
 
 








AGREEMENT 
 


This agreement is made this January 18, 2017 by and between the Jefferson School District (“District”) and Tracy Little 


League Inc. (“League”), with respect to the following recitals: 


 


A.  The League is a co-ed, non-profit youth organization-serving children 4 to 18 years serving the District and Tracy 


School district geographical area. (See League Articles of Incorporation, attached hereto as Exhibit A) 


 


B. Pursuant to the Civic Center Act, Education Code section 40040 et seq., the District desires to make its facilities at 


Monticello Elementary School available for supervised recreational use like those envisioned by the league; 


 


NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promise and agreements herein contained, District and League agree 


as follows: 


 


1)  Right of Use. League’s use shall be scheduled through the District office using the standard use of facilities 


process.  District hereby grants to League the priority use of the grass area at Hawkins, Traina and the grass area and 


baseball fields at Monticello Elementary School on weekdays between 4:30 and 8:00 p.m. and at Monticello from 9:00a.m. 


to 8:00p.m. on Saturdays and Sundays during the term of the contract.  The League agrees not to use the facilities on any 


date that the District determines it requires the fields.  The District will make every effort to notify the League if possible, 


of dates and times the District will require the fields during the time periods otherwise reserved for League use.  League use 


shall be scheduled through the District Office using the standard use of facilities process. 


 


A)  During the League playing seasons, League shall provide toilet facilities sufficient to serve all those 


involved with League activities.  Portable toilet facilities will be serviced a minimum twice a week; said 


facilities shall be located at direction of the Site Principal. 


 


B)  Right of use for the 13-16 year olds can be withdrawn by the District if this age group shows 


incompatibility with the size and location at Monticello, Hawkins and Traina School. 


 


C)  Right of use can also be revoked if the following guidelines are not met by the League;   


 


a) Fields will not be used by the 16-18 year old league. 


 


b) Official use by 16 and under. 


 


D)  Regular season officially starts in March and ends in mid-July for Monticello School.  Practice may start 


as early as February 1. Fall Instructional season is restricted to Monticello School and will start in August 


and end approximately in mid-November. Games will be played on Saturday and Sunday during the fall 


season. Fall League team practices shall not interfere with after school intramural practices at Monticello 


School.  


 


E) In lieu of the standard Facilities Use Agreement Fees, Jefferson School District will allow Tracy Little 


League the use of the Monticello School cafeteria, up to 40 hours annually, for a flat fee of $500 for said 


use. Fees must be paid in full no later than January 31, 2017. Tracy Little League will provide a schedule 


to the site principal or designee for approval of the dates and times requested.  During the school year the 


facilities will not be available until 6:30 p.m. and must be concluded by 8:00 pm. Tracy Little League 


acknowledges that meetings must be concluded by 8:00 p.m.  The District strictly enforces these times.  


A second offense will result in the League’s loss of ability to use the District’s on-campus facilities.  


Tracy Little League will be held liable for any property damages caused by its use of the facilities.  All 


facilities need to be left in the same manner as they are presented upon arrival.  Tracy Little League will 


be held responsible should there be a report of any missing or removed items following the use of District 


facilities.  The custodian on duty will open and close the facilities upon League’s arrival and departure on 


the approved dates and times.  No changes to the room designation will be made without the prior 


approval of the site principal or designee.  Smoking, vaping, eCigarettes, tobacco products, alcohol drugs 


and pets are strictly prohibited on any school district property.  The Tracy Little League will need to sign 


a Statement of Information Form (Addendum #1) indicating that the organization upholds the state and 


federal constitutions and does not intend to use school premises to commit unlawful acts.  As with the 


field use, the league agrees not to use the on-campus facilities on any date that the District determines it 







requires that location for school or student use.  The District will make every effort to notify the League if 


possible, of any change affecting the date and/or time otherwise approved for League use. 


 


 


2.  Term. The term of this Agreement shall be January 18, 2017 from the date of the Agreement unless terminated as 


provided below.  This agreement may be extended for an additional period of time upon written agreement of both 


parties. 


 


3.  Improvements. In consideration for use of the facilities, the League agrees to make the following improvements to 


the facility: Install portable toilets at the discretion of Site Principal, who may determine location and number of 


units. 


 


4.  Coordination of Construction.  The League shall receive approval from the Superintendent prior to any 


construction work commencing at Monticello. 


 


5.   Fees.  Security deposit of $600.00 will be required for the term of the agreement.  This deposit is to be used in the 


event the District has to provide clean up services for any of the fields covered under this agreement.  Deposit will 


be refunded at the end of agreement.  The league agrees to pay $2,500 for its portion of water used for irrigation.  


This payment is due April 30, 2017. 


 


6.  Permitted Uses.  The League agrees that it shall use the District facilities only for League activities and events 


associated with Tracy Little League. 


 


7.  Insurance.  The League agrees to maintain in full force and effect during the term of the agreement and during its 


use or occupancy of District’s facilities, at the League’s expense, public liability, property damage and contractual 


liability insurance providing coverage in the minimum of One Million Dollars.  The League agrees to name the 


District as an additional insured under each of those policies and agrees to provide District with a certificate of 


said policies.  The District should receive a separate certificate of insurance, which states that they are insured. 


 


8.  Hold Harmless.  The League agrees that for the term of the Agreement or any extension thereof, the League shall 


defend, indemnify and save harmless the district, its Officers, members of the Governing Board, agents and 


employees, each severally and separately, from and against any and all liabilities, demands, claims, damages, 


losses and expenses of any nature whatsoever, including without limitation, whether for injuries to persons or loss 


of life or damage to property occurring on, in or about District and arising out of the League’s use of such 


facilities. 


 


9.  Maintenance.  For the term of the agreement, the League agrees to maintain the Monticello, Hawkins, and Traina 


facilities in good, clean condition and repair.  In accordance with the District’s maintenance standards, the League 


further agrees to leave the facilities in the same condition as when accepted.  The League’s agreement to maintain 


the facilities includes the obligation to cut the Monticello grass, include weed abatement control and removal, in 


the areas of the fields at least every two (2) weeks and maintain the sprinkler system on and around the fields, and 


other facilities, i.e. concession stand structures and fencing installed by the League. Should the League not be able 


to provide this maintenance itself, the League will hire the work done by an outside contractor at the League’s 


expense (emergency contract, Salco 510-760-3877).   The League also agrees to provide a dumpster(s) for disposal 


of garbage at the Monticello site during the playing season.      


 


10. Security.  District agrees to provide the League access to the League’s use in accordance with the terms of this 


Agreement.  The League agrees that upon completion of its daily activities, the League shall secure the facilities. 


The League will assign a representative to walk around campus on a regular basis to monitor non-field activities 


during games at Monticello. 


 


11. Parking:  The District authorizes the League under California Vehicle Code 22695A to tow illegally parked 


vehicles at owner’s expense from the Monticello School Parking Lot located at 1001 Cambridge Place, Tracy, CA 


during the days and hours specified in the Right of Use section of the agreement.  The District further authorizes 


the League to post any and all necessary signs to meet with local and state regulations. 


 


12. Termination.  Either party may terminate this Agreement at any time giving at least 60 days notice. 


 







13 Compliance with Law and Board Policies.  The League shall comply with all applicable laws, regulations, 


ordinances, and Jefferson School District policies, and shall secure any and all permits and licenses, which may be 


required by any government agency having jurisdiction over the League’s activities. 


 


14. Review. The League will appear, once a year, before the District Trustees to report on the activities and future 


plans. 


 


15. Entire Agreement. This is the entire agreement. This agreement can only be modified in writing.  Both parties 


must agree to any amendment. 


 


16. Coordination of Contract.  Any problems arising out of use of fields or contract; contact League President. 


 


17. Renewal.  In September either current and newly elected Tracy Little League President or representative will meet 


with the site Principal of Monticello to review the past season.  In November the President or representative will 


meet with the Superintendent to review the agreement.  The agreement will then be submitted to the Jefferson 


School Board for approval.  


 


 


The above AGREEMENT is entered into as attested by the following signatures: 


 


 


LEAGUE REPRESENTATIVE    DISTRICT REPRESENTATIVE 


 


 


 


Signature     ____________________________________ Signature      ________________________________ 


 


 


 


Date       ____________________________________ Date              ________________________________ 


 


 


 


 


ATTEST 


 


 


 


Signature      ___________________________________ 


 


 


 


Date        ____________________________________ 
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TO:  Board of Trustees         Item: 7.6 


FR:  Celli Coeville  


DATE: January 17, 2017 


RE: Quarterly Williams Act Reporting 


  


There were no Williams Act complaints received within the most recent reporting period.  
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Attachment: 5.3 
 
To: Board of Trustees 


 


From:  Jim Bridges 


 


Date: January 13, 2017 


 


Re: Local Control Accountability Plan Development 


 


Annually each district is required to create a Local Control Accountability Plan often 


called the LCAP. Each school district must engage parents, educators, employees and the 


community to establish these plans. The plans describe the school district’s overall vision 


for students, annual goals and specific actions the district will take to achieve the vision 


and goals.  


 


The LCAPs must focus on eight areas identified as state priorities. The plans will also 


demonstrate how the district’s budget will help achieve the goals, and assess each year 


how well the strategies in the plan were able to improve outcomes.  


 


There are eight areas for which school districts, with parent and community input, must 


establish goals and actions. This must be done both district-wide and for each school. The 


areas are:  


 


1. Providing all students access to fully credentialed teachers, instructional materials 


that align with state standards, and safe facilities.  


2. Implementation of California’s academic standards, including the Common Core 


State Standards in English language arts and math, Next Generation Science 


Standards, English language development, history social science, visual and 


performing arts, health education and physical education standards.  


3. Parent involvement and participation, so the local community is engaged in the 


decision-making process and the educational programs of students.  


4. Improving student achievement and outcomes along multiple measures, including 


test scores, English proficiency and college and career preparedness.  


5. Supporting student engagement, including whether students attend school or are 


chronically absent.  


6. Highlighting school climate and connectedness through a variety of factors, such as 


suspension and expulsion rates and other locally identified means.  


7. Ensuring all students have access to classes that prepare them for college and 


careers, regardless of what school they attend or where they live.  


8. Measuring other important student outcomes related to required areas of study, 


including physical education and the arts.  


 







Jefferson School District 


DRAFT 2 Local Control Accountability Planning Process 


2016-2017 


DATE  ACTION 


October 4 Meet with SJCOE Staff to Review Draft LCAP Timeline 


October 31 Complete Data Collection for 8 Priority Areas (2015-2016 Data) 


 


January 13 Email Community Forum Invitation and Link to Input Survey 


  Email Student Input Survey 


January 17  Present Plan Development Timeline with the Board and Invite Participation 


January 18 LCAP Advisory Committee Meeting One (6:00 – 7:30 pm in DO Conference Room) 


February 7 Staff Forum (3:30 pm in the Board Room) 


  Working meeting with SJCOE (1:00 pm)  


February 9 Student Leadership Forum (3:30 pm at Monticello School) 


LCAP Community Forum (6:00 pm at Traina School) 


LCAP Advisory Committee Meeting Two (7:00 – 8:00 pm at Traina School) 


February 14 Review Data and seek input from District Instructional Leadership 


February 21 Review Data and seek input from Cabinet 


February 23  LCAP Advisory Committee Meeting Three (6:00 – 7:30 pm in DO Conference Room) 


March 6 Working meeting with SJCOE (1:00 pm)  


March 9  LCAP Advisory Committee Meeting Four If Needed (6:00 – 7:30 pm in DO Conference Room) 


April 5  Working meeting with SJCOE (1:00 pm) 


April 6  Consult with JTA on the First Draft of the LCAP  


April 12 Post Responses to Stakeholder Input on the Web and in Writing 


April 27 Publish First Draft of the LCAP 


May 4  Submit Draft LCAP to SJCOE 


May 8  Meet with SJCOE for a Draft Review (1:00 pm) 


May 9  Present Annual Update and the Final Draft of the LCAP to the Board 


May 11  DELAC Advisory Meeting (3:30 pm in the Board Room) 


May 11  LCAP Advisory Committee Meeting Five If Needed (6:00 – 7:30 pm in DO Conference Room) 


June 15 LCAP and Budget Public Hearing 


June 20 Board Approval of LCAP and Budget 


July 25  Meet with SJCOE for a Final LCAP Approval (1:00 pm) 


TBD  Hawkins School Site Council Meeting 


TBD  Jefferson School Site Council Meeting 


TBD  Monticello School Site Council Meeting 


TBD   Traina School Site Council Meeting 





		5.3 LCAP Cover

		5.3 LCAP_Timeline_16_17_rev
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        ATTACHMENT  7.4 
TO:     Jim Bridges, Superintendent 
 
FOR:    Board of Trustees 
 
FROM: Mindy Maxedon, CBO 
 
DATE:   January 17, 2017 
 
ISSUE:   California Energy Commission Bright Schools Program 
  Resolution No. 2017-01-01 
 
 
Proposition 39 was approved by California voters in November, 2012.  These funds allocate 
revenues to Local Education Agencies (LEAs) for energy efficiency and alternative energy 
projects.  Jefferson School District will receive $529,000 for these projects. 
 
The district used a free audit program through the California Conservation Corps (CCC) to 
identify eligible projects for these funds.  HVAC and lighting opportunities were identified at 
Monticello, Hawkins & Traina schools.  Jefferson School was not included because the site was 
under construction.   
 
Our next step is to go out to bid for the projects identified as eligible.  The district is utilizing the 
services of Anthony Continente (at district expense) to assist in carrying out the identified 
projects. Anthony suggested we go through Bright Schools Program (part of the California 
Energy Commission) to receive free assistance in preparing our bid specifications.  Utilizing 
Bright Schools will lower the District’s out of pocket expenses for RGM’s assistance. 
 
Bright Schools requires a Board Resolution to be approved in order to utilize their services.  In 
October, 2014, a similar Resolution was submitted to the Board for approval because we were 
planning to utilize the audit services available to districts through the Bright Schools programs.  
Their timeline for audits was significantly longer than the Conservation Corp’s timeline so we 
went with CCC.   
 
Resolution No. 2017-01-01 will update the Board’s approval to utilize the services of Bright 
Schools to assist us in the preparation of bid specifications for our energy projects.   
 







Jefferson School District 
 


Resolution No. 2017-01-01 
California Energy Commission 


Bright Schools Program 
 


 
 
WHEREAS, the California Energy Commission’s Bright Schools Program provides technical 
assistance to school districts; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees of the Jefferson School District authorizes the Jefferson 
School District to apply for technical assistance; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Jefferson School District recognizes that the California Energy Commission 
has limited funds available to provide technical assistance and that primary consideration will be 
given to those school districts that have a desire and willingness to seek funding to implement 
the feasible recommended energy-efficiency measure(s); 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED, that the Jefferson School District is 
willing to seek funding to implement viable energy-saving measure(s) and therefore requests 
technical assistance to identify such measures as may be economically feasible. 
 
AND BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Superintendent is hereby authorized and 
empowered to execute in the name of the Jefferson School District all necessary documents to 
implement and carry out the purposes of this resolution. 
 
PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Trustees of the Jefferson School 
District at a meeting held on January 17, 2017, by the following vote: 
 
AYES: 
 
NOES: 
 
ABSTAIN: 
 
ABSENT:   
 
I, _________________________, Clerk of the Board of Trustees of the Jefferson School District 
of San Joaquin County, California, do hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true and correct 
copy of a resolution adopted by the Board at a meeting thereof held at its regular place of 
meeting on the date shown above and by the vote above stated, which resolution is on file in the 
office of the Board. 


       
 


____________________, Clerk 
      Jefferson Board of Trustees 





		JAN17INFOBrighter Schools Bid Specs

		Jan2017CEC right Schools Resolution

		Jefferson School District

		Resolution No. 2017-01-01

		California Energy Commission

		Bright Schools Program

		AYES:

		NOES:

		ABSTAIN:

		ABSENT:
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                     ATTACHMENT:  7.5 
 
TO:    Jim Bridges  
 
FOR:  Board of Trustees 
 
FROM:  Mindy Maxedon 
 
ISSUE:  2015-2016 Audit 
 
In accordance with Assembly Bill 3627, Chapter 1002, as it pertains to Education Code Section 
41020.3, the Governing Board must review and accept the prior year’s Financial Audit at a public 
meeting, on or before January 31st.  The audit received from Cichella & Tokunaga, LLP is 
included for the Board’s review.  
 
There were no findings or questioned costs for the year ending June 30, 2016.  The audit report 
details our district’s financial position and confirms compliance with all Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) required at this time.   
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 
 
 
Governing Board 
Jefferson Elementary School District 
Tracy, California 
 
Report on the Financial Statements 
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the 
aggregate remaining fund information of the Jefferson Elementary School District (the District) as of and for the 
year ended June 30, 2016, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the 
District's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 
 
Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, 
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial 
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
Auditor's Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit.  We conducted our 
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards 
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of 
the United States; and the 2015-16 Guide for Annual Audits of K-12 Local Education Agencies and State 


Compliance Reporting, issued by the California Education Audit Appeals Panel.  Those standards require that we 
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from 
material misstatement. 
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements.  The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the 
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.  In making those risk 
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the District's preparation and fair presentation of the 
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District's internal control.  Accordingly, we express 
no such opinion.  An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial statements. 
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinions. 
 
Opinions 
 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective 
financial position of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information 
of the Jefferson Elementary School District, as of June 30, 2016, and the respective changes in financial position 
and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America. 
 
Other Matters 
 
Required Supplementary Information 
 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the required supplementary 
information, such as management's discussion and analysis, budgetary comparison schedule, the Schedule of 
Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB) Funding Progress, Schedule of District’s Proportionate Share of Net 
Pension Liability, and Schedule of District’s Contributions for Pensions be presented to supplement the basic 
financial statements.  Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for 
placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context.  We have 
applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about 
the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's 
responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the 
basic financial statements.  We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the 
limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 
 
Other Information 
 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively 
comprise the Jefferson Elementary School District’s basic financial statements. The Supplementary Information 
section, as listed in the Table of Contents, is presented for purposes of additional analysis and as required by Title 
2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and 


Audit Requirements for Federal Awards and the 2015-16 Guide for Annual Audits of K-12 Local Education 


Agencies and State Compliance Reporting, published by the Education Audit Appeals Panel, and are not a 
required part of the basic financial statements. 
 
The Supplementary Information section is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relate 
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements.  Such 
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements 
and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the 
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial 
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted 
in the United States of America.  In our opinion, the supplementary information is fairly stated, in all material 
respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 
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Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 
 
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 7, 2016, on 
our consideration of the Jefferson Elementary School District's internal control over financial reporting and on our 
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other 
matters.  The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial 
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over 
financial reporting or on compliance.  That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering Jefferson Elementary School District's internal control over 
financial reporting and compliance. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
El Dorado Hills, California 
December 7, 2016 
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This section of Jefferson Elementary School District's (the "District") 2015-2016 annual financial report presents 
our discussion and analysis of the District's financial performance during the fiscal year that ended on June 30, 
2016.  Please read it in conjunction with the District's financial statements, which immediately follow this section.  
A comparative analysis has been included in this financial statement in accordance with the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board Statement (GASB) No. 34. 
 
 
OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
The Financial Statements 
 
The financial statements presented herein include all of the activities of the District and its component units using 
the integrated approach as prescribed by Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 34. 
 
The Government-Wide Financial Statements present the financial picture of the District from the economic 
resources measurement focus using the accrual basis of accounting.  These statements include all assets of the 
District as well as all liabilities (including long-term debt). 
 
The Governmental Activities are prepared using the current financial resources measurement focus and modified 
accrual basis of accounting. 
 
The Fund Financial Statements include statements for each of the three categories of activities: governmental, 
proprietary and fiduciary. 
 
The Proprietary Activities are prepared using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of 
accounting. 
 
The Fiduciary Activities include the retiree benefits trust fund and agency funds.  The agency funds report a 
balance sheet and do not have a measurement focus.  The retiree benefit trust uses the current financial resources 
measurement focus. 
 
Reconciliation of the Fund Financial Statements to the Government-Wide Financial Statements is provided to 
explain the differences created by the integrated approach. 
 
The Primary unit of government is the Jefferson Elementary School District.  The District does have a Mello Roos 
Capital Facilities District Component Unit. 
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS OF THE PAST YEAR 
 
Total revenue and income received for 2015-16 was $23.6 million, up $3.2 million from 2014-15.  Jefferson 
School District receives 76% of its revenue from the State based on the Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF).  
The remaining 24% comes from Lottery, State and Federal grants and interest income.  The change in revenue is 
primarily due to changes in increased State revenue. 
 
Jefferson School District reported P2 ADA of 2,299, including students attending COE programs. 
 


 


REPORTING THE DISTRICT AS A WHOLE 
 
The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities 
 
The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities report information about the District as a whole and 
about its activities.  These statements include all assets and liabilities of the District using the accrual basis of 
accounting, which is similar to the accounting used by most private-sector companies.  All of the current year's 
revenues and expenses are taken into account regardless of when cash is received or paid. 
 
These two statements report the District's net position and changes in them.  Net position is the difference 
between assets and liabilities, one way to measure the District's financial health, or financial position.  Over time, 
increases or decreases in the District's net position is one indicator of whether its financial health is improving or 
deteriorating.  Other factors to consider are changes in the District's property tax base and the condition of the 
District's facilities. 
 
The relationship between revenues and expenses is the District's operating results.  Since the governing board's 
responsibility is to provide services to our students and not to generate profit as commercial entities do, one must 
consider other factors when evaluating the overall health of the District.  The quality of the education and the 
safety of our schools will likely be an important component in this evaluation. 
 
In the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities, we present the District activities as follows: 
 
Governmental Activities – All of the District's services are reported in this category.  This includes the education 
of kindergarten through grade eight students, the operation of child development activities, and the on-going 
effort to improve and maintain buildings and sites.  Property taxes, state income taxes, user fees, interest income, 
Federal, State and local grants, as well as certificates of participation, finance these activities. 
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REPORTING THE DISTRICT'S MOST SIGNIFICANT FUNDS 


 
Fund Financial Statements 
 
The fund financial statements provide detailed information about the most significant funds – not the District as a 
whole.  Some funds are required to be established by State law and by bond covenants.  However, management 
establishes many other funds to help it control and manage money for particular purposes or to show that it is 
meeting legal responsibilities for using certain taxes, grants, and other money that it receives from the  
U.S. Department of Education. 
 
Governmental Funds – The District's basic services are reported in governmental funds, which focus on how 
money flows into and out of those funds and the balances left at year-end that are available for spending.  These 
funds are reported using an accounting method called modified accrual accounting, which measures cash and all 
other financial assets that can readily be converted to cash.  The governmental fund statements provide a detailed 
short-term view of the District's general government operations and the basic services it provides.  Government 
fund information helps determine whether there are more or fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near 
future to finance the District's programs.  The difference of results in the governmental fund financial statements 
to those in the government-wide financial statements are explained in a reconciliation following each 
governmental fund financial statement. 
 
Proprietary Funds – When the District charges users for the service it provides, whether to outside customers or 
to other departments within the District, these services are generally reported in proprietary funds.  Proprietary 
funds are reported in the same way that all activities are reported in the Statement of Net Position and the 
Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position.  We use internal service funds (a type of 
proprietary fund) to report activities that provide supplies and services for the District's other programs and 
activities – such as the District's Self-Insurance Fund.  The internal service funds are reported with governmental 
activities in the government-wide financial statements. 
 
 
THE DISTRICT AS A TRUSTEE 


 
Reporting the District's Fiduciary Responsibilities 
 
The District is the trustee, or fiduciary, for funds held on behalf of others, like our funds for associated student 
body activities.  The District's fiduciary activities are reported in the Statement of Fiduciary Net Position.  We 
exclude these activities from the District's other financial statements because the District cannot use these assets 
to finance its operations.  The District is responsible for ensuring that the assets reported in these funds are used 
for their intended purposes. 
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 


 
THE DISTRICT AS A WHOLE 
 
Net Position 
 
The District's net position was $20.8 million for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016.  Of this amount, $(7.6) 
million were unrestricted.  Restricted net position is reported separately to show legal constraints from debt 
covenants and enabling legislation that limit the School Board's ability to use the net position for day-to-day 
operations.  Our analysis below focuses on the net position (Table 1); and the change in net position (Table 2); of 
the District's governmental activities. 
 


Table 1 


(Amounts in millions)


2016 2015


Assets


Current and other assets 16.1$         24.5$          


Capital assets 60.2           50.9            


Total Assets 76.3           75.4            


Deferred outflows of resources


Deferred outflows related to pensions 1.4             1.1              


Total Deferred Outflow of Resources 1.4             1.1              


Liabilities


Current liabilities 1.2             2.5              


Long-term liabilities 53.6           50.3            


Total Liabilities 54.8           52.8            


Deferred inflows of resources


Deferred inflows related to pensions 2.1             3.8              


Total Deferred Inflow of Resources 2.1             3.8              


Net Position


Invested in capital assets,


  net of related debt 23.0           15.1            


Restricted 5.4             15.4            


Unrestricted (7.6)           (10.6)           


Total Net Position 20.8$         19.9$          


Governmental Activities


 
The $(7.6) million in unrestricted net position of governmental activities represent the accumulated results of all 
past years' operations.  The June 30, 2016 unrestricted net position increased by .3.0 million as compared to June 
30, 2015.   
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Changes in Net Position 
 
The results of this year's operations for the District as a whole are reported in the Statement of Activities on page 
18.  Table 2 takes the information from the Statement, rounds off the numbers, and rearranges them slightly so 
you can see our total revenues and expenses for the year. 
 


Table 2 
 


(Amounts in millions)


2016 2015


Revenues


Program revenues:


Charges for services 0.5$                  0.3$                  


Operating grants and contributions 3.0                    2.4                    


General revenues:


Federal and State aid not restricted 15.5                  13.2                  


Property taxes 4.3                    3.9                    


Other general revenues 0.3                    0.6                    


Total Revenues 23.6                  20.4                  


Expenses


Instruction-related 15.8                  15.6                  


Pupil services 1.3                    1.5                    


Administration 1.5                    1.5                    


Plant services 1.8                    1.7                    


Other 2.2                    2.3                    


Total Expenses 22.6                  22.6                  


Change in Net Position 1.0                    (2.2)                   


Governmental Activities


 
Governmental Activities 
 
As reported in the Statement of Activities on page 18, the cost of all of our governmental activities for the years 
ended June 30, 2016 and 2015 were $22.6 million and $22.6 million, respectively.  However, the amount that our 
taxpayers ultimately financed for these activities through local taxes was only $4.3 million and $3.9 million, 
respectively, because the cost was paid by those who benefited from the programs ($0.5 million and $0.3 million, 
respectively) or by other governments and organizations who subsidized certain programs with grants and 
contributions ($3.0 million and $2.4 million respectively).  We paid for the remaining "public benefit" portions of 
our governmental activities with $15.5 and $13.2 million, respectively, in other Federal and State sources, and 
$0.3 million and $0.6 million, respectively, in other revenues, like interest and general entitlements. 
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Schedule of Revenues for Governmental Functions 
 


(Amounts in millions) Percent of Percent of


2016 Total 2015 Total


Revenues


Program revenues:


Charges for services and sales 0.5$               2.12% 0.3$             1.47%


Operating grants and contributions 3.0                 12.71% 2.4               11.76%


Capital grants and contributions -                   0.00% -                 0.00%


General revenues:


Federal and State aid not restricted 15.5               65.68% 13.2             64.71%


Property taxes 4.3                 18.22% 3.9               19.12%


Other Revenues 0.3                 1.27% 0.6               2.94%


Total Revenues 23.6$             100.00% 20.4$           100.00%
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Schedule of Expenses for Governmental Functions 
 


(Amounts in millions) Percent of Percent of


2016 Total 2015 Total


Expenses


Instruction-related 15.8$             69.92% 15.6$             69.02%


Student support services 1.3                 5.75% 1.5                 6.64%


Other general administration 1.5                 6.64% 1.5                 6.64%


Plant services 1.8                 7.96% 1.7                 7.52%


Other/outgo 2.2                 9.73% 2.3                 10.18%


Total Expenses 22.6$             100.00% 22.6$             100.00%
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In Table 3, we have presented the net cost of each of the District's five largest functions – instruction, 
administration, pupil services, plant services, and other services.  As discussed above, net cost shows the financial 
burden that was placed on the District's taxpayers by each of these functions.  Providing this information allows 
our citizens to consider the cost of each function in comparison to the benefits they believe are provided by that 
function. 
 


Table 3 
 


(Amounts in millions)


2016 2015 2016 2015


Instruction 15.8$                   15.6$                   13.7$                   13.9$                   


Pupil Services 1.3                       1.5                       0.5                       0.7                       


Administration 1.5                       1.5                       1.4                       1.4                       


Plant services 1.8                       1.7                       1.6                       1.7                       


Other 2.2                       2.3                       1.9                       2.2                       


Total 22.6$                   22.6$                   19.1$                   19.9$                   


Total Cost of Services Net Cost of Services


 
Program revenues financed 15 percent of the total cost of providing the service listed above, while the remaining 
85 percent was financed by the general revenue of the District. 
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THE DISTRICT'S FUNDS 
 
As the District completed this year, our governmental funds reported a combined fund balance of $15.3 million, 
which is a decrease of $7.0 million from last year. 
 


Table 4 
 


July 1, 2015 Revenues Expenditures June 30, 2016


General 7,796,739$        22,089,050$      19,035,064$      10,850,725$      


Building Fund 11,928,017        35,423               9,768,550          2,194,890          


Cafeteria 228,595             724,997             689,298             264,294             


Deferred Maintenance 599,007             169,492             561,809             206,690             


Pupil Transportation 255,268             21,368               -                         276,636             


Capital Projects Blended Component Unit 58,307               310                    -                         58,617               


County School Facilities 5,608                 29                      -                         5,637                 


Bond Interest and Redemption Fund 395,068             544,390             528,394             411,064             


Capital Facilities 1,034,056          100,712             87,406               1,047,362          


Total 22,300,665$      23,685,771$      30,670,521$      15,315,915$      


Balances and Activity


 
The primary reasons for these changes are: 
 
The General Fund increased due to acceleration of LCFF funding related to changes in the GAP rate as well as 
one-time funding provided by the State.  Additionally, the district is continuing negotiations with teachers for 
2015-16. No salary increases have occurred for 2015-16 for any staff and negotiations continue.      
 
The Building Fund decreased due to expenditures related to the Jefferson School modernization and Traina 
gymnasium projects.  Both of these projects were completed in the 2015-16 school year. 
 


General Fund Budgetary Highlights 
 
Over the course of the year, the District revises its budget as it attempts to deal with unexpected changes in 
revenues and expenditures.  The final amendment to the budget was adopted on June 21, 2016.  A schedule 
showing the District's original and final budget amounts compared with amounts actually paid and received is 
provided in our annual report on page 62. 
 
The District originally projected revenues of approximately $19.3 million.  The revised budget projected revenues 
of $22.1 million, an increase of approximately $2.8 million. 
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CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION 
 
Capital Assets 
 
At June 30, 2016, the District had $3 million (net of accumulated depreciation) in a broad range of capital assets, 
including land, buildings, and furniture and equipment.  This amount is consistent with prior years. 
 


Table 5 
 


2016 2015


Land 5,825,263$       5,825,263$           


Construction in progress 26,936,745       17,261,876           


Building and improvements 27,008,169       27,881,850           


Equipment 458,778            -                       


Totals 60,228,955$     50,968,989$         


Capital Assets


 
Long-Term Obligations 
  
At June 30, 2016, the District had $53.7 million in long-term liabilities.  The District's overall long-term 
obligations are summarized in Table 6. 
 


Table 6 
 


2016 2015


General Obligation Bonds 37,076,206$     35,767,725$     


Premiums, net of Amortization 158,707            163,865            


Other 44,907              51,872              


Net pension liability 16,439,856       14,370,191       


Totals 53,719,676$     50,353,653$     


Long-Term Obligations


 
 


We present more detailed information regarding our long-term obligations in Note 8 of the financial statements. 
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOMPLISHMENTS OF FISCAL YEAR 2015-2016 ARE NOTED BELOW: 
 
� The Jefferson School Modernization project and the Traina Gymnasium project were both completed during 


the 2015-16 school year. 
 
ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGET ASSUMPTIONS 
 
The District used the following assumptions in constructing the 2016/17 fiscal year budget.  The information 
provided below is current as of July 1, 2016. 
 
Local Control Fund Formula (LCFF) 
 
 The Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF) is the new finance system for K-12 education.   
 The LCFF provides base, supplemental, and concentration grants in place of most previously 
 existing funding sources, including revenue limits and most state categorical programs.  As part of the  
 LCFF, the district will be required to develop, adopt, and annually update three-year Local Control and 
 Accountability Plan (LCAP) using a template adopted by the California State Board of Education. 
 
The key assumptions in our revenue forecast at budget were: 
 


� Increased revenue related to the implementation of Local Control Funding Formula.   
� Planning for declining enrollment of 40 students per year due to enrollment declines at all school sites  


(Enrollment and average daily attendance are updated at each reporting period).    
� Maintaining class size reduction funding by ensuring class sizes in grades K-3 do not exceed 1:24 ratio.   


 
Expenditures are based on the following forecasts:  
 


 Staffing Ratio Enrollment 
Grades kindergarten through third 1:23 941 
Grades four through eight 1:30 1,436 


 
The key assumptions in our expenditure forecast are: 
 


� Including expenses related to our Local Control and Accountability Plan in our expenditures. 
� Including Step & Column salary increases of 1.36% for certificated and 1.25% for classified.   
� Health and welfare budgeted at $10,000 cap at budget.  
� Adjusting for increased employer contribution for STRS & PERS. 
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CONTACTING THE DISTRICT'S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT 
 
This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, students, and investors and creditors with a 
general overview of the District's finances and to show the District's accountability for the money it receives.  If 
you have questions about this report or need any additional financial information, contact Mindy Maxedon, Chief 
Business Officer, Business Services, at Jefferson Elementary School District, 1219 Whispering Wind Road, 
Tracy, California, 95377, mmaxedon@sjcoe.net. 
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Governmental


Activities


ASSETS


Deposits and investments 15,489,275$       


Receivables 547,293              


Stores inventories 5,597                  


Capital assets 72,868,881         


Less: Accumulated depreciation (12,639,926)        


Total Assets 76,271,120         


DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES


Deferred outflows related to pensions 1,463,849           


Total Deferred Outflow of Resources 1,463,849           


LIABILITIES


Accounts payable 669,113              


Interest payable 396,361              


Unearned revenue 6,926                  


Current portion of long-term obligations 145,158              


Noncurrent portion of long-term obligations 53,574,518         


Total Liabilities 54,792,076         


DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES


Deferred inflows related to pensions 2,069,451           


Total Deferred Inflow of Resources 2,069,451           


NET POSITION


Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 22,994,042         


Restricted for:


Debt service 411,064              


Educational programs 1,246,118           


Capital projects 3,242,252           


Other activities 540,930              


Unrestricted (7,560,964)          


Total Net Position 20,873,442$       
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Net (Expenses)


Revenues and


Changes in Net


Position


Charges for Operating Capital


Services and Grants and Grants and Governmental


Functions/Programs Expenses Sales Contributions Contributions Activities


Governmental Activities:


Instruction 13,938,481$   21,360$       1,766,308$  29$              (12,150,784)$   


Instruction-related activities:


Supervision of instruction 177,039          -                   112,109       -                   (64,930)            


Instructional library, media,


  and technology 214,782          1,860           6,158           -                   (206,764)          


School site administration 1,454,284       613              110,465       -                   (1,343,206)       


Pupil services:


Home-to-school transportation 221,984          -                   -                   -                   (221,984)          


Food services 685,289          368,243       356,754       -                   39,708              


All other pupil services 425,189          -                   157,050       -                   (268,139)          


Administration:


All other administration 1,383,209       -                   -                   -                   (1,383,209)       


Data processing services 89,081            -                   59,637         -                   (29,444)            


Plant services 1,778,020       7,750           184,511       -                   (1,585,759)       


Ancillary services 39,684            -                   858              -                   (38,826)            


Enterprise Activities -                     -                   -                   -                   -                       


Interest on long-term obligations 1,832,557       -                   -                   -                   (1,832,557)       


Other outgo 337,295          57,709         222,899       -                   (56,687)            


Total Governmental Activities 22,576,894$   457,535$     2,976,749$  29$              (19,142,581)     


General revenues and subventions:


Property taxes, levied for general purposes 3,847,430         


Taxes levied for debt services 543,450            


Taxes levied for other specific purposes -                       


Federal and State aid not restricted to specific purposes 15,464,205       


Interest and investment earnings 49,489              


Interagency revenues 5,135                


Miscellaneous 237,607            


Subtotal, General Revenues 20,147,316       


Change in Net Position 1,004,735         


Net position - Beginning 19,868,707       


Net position - Ending 20,873,442$     


Program Revenues
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Non-Major Total


General Building Governmental Governmental


Fund Fund Funds Funds


ASSETS


Deposits and investments 10,690,480$     2,485,204$       2,263,452$       15,439,136$       


Receivables 538,372            4,618                4,231                547,221              


Stores inventories -                        -                        5,597                5,597                  


Total Assets 11,228,852       2,489,822         2,273,280         15,991,954         


LIABILITIES AND


 FUND BALANCES


Liabilities:


Accounts payable 329,234            294,932            2,089                626,255              


Due to other funds 41,967              -                        891                   42,858                


Unearned revenue 6,926                -                        -                        6,926                  


Total Liabilities 378,127            294,932            2,980                676,039              


Fund Balances:


Nonspendable 5,000                -                        5,597                10,597                


Restricted 1,246,118         2,194,890         1,993,759         5,434,767           


Committed -                        -                        -                        -                          


Assigned 5,254,648         -                        270,944            5,525,592           


Unassigned 4,344,959         -                        -                        4,344,959           


Total Fund Balance 10,850,725       2,194,890         2,270,300         15,315,915         


Total Liabilities and


 Fund Balances 11,228,852$     2,489,822$       2,273,280$       15,991,954$       
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Total Fund Balance - Governmental Funds 15,315,915$   


Amounts Reported for Governmental Activities in the Statement of


  Net Position are Different Because:


Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and, 


  therefore, are not reported as assets in governmental funds.


The cost of capital assets is 72,868,881$  


Accumulated depreciation is (12,639,926)   


Net Capital Assets 60,228,955     


In governmental funds, unmatured interest on long-term obligations is


  recognized in the period when it is due.  On the government-wide statements


  unmatured interest on long-term obligations is recognized when it is


  incurred. (396,361)         


Expenditures relating to contributions made to pension plans were recognized


  on the modified accrual basis, but are not recognized on the accrual basis. 1,463,849       


The difference between projected and actual pension plan investment


  earnings are not recognized on the modified accrual basis, but are 


  recognized  on the accrual basis as an adjustment to pension expense. (2,069,451)      


An internal service fund is used by the District's management to charge the


  costs of the workers' compensation insurance program to the individual


  funds.  The assets and liabilities of the internal service fund are included


  with governmental activities. 50,211            


Long-term obligations are not due and payable in the current period and,


  therefore, are not reported as liabilities in the funds.


Long-term obligations at year-end consist of:


Bonds payable 37,076,206    


Bond premium, net of amortization 158,707         


Compensated absences (vacations) 44,907           


Net pension liability 16,439,856    


Total Long-Term Obligations (53,719,676)    


Total Net Position - Governmental Activities 20,873,442$   
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Non Major Total


General Building Governmental Governmental


Fund Fund Funds Funds


REVENUES


LCFF sources 17,519,014$        -$                         84,407$               17,603,421$        


Federal sources 720,049               -                           369,584               1,089,633            


Other State sources 2,917,944            -                           24,936                 2,942,880            


Other local sources 932,043               35,423                 977,964               1,945,430            


Total Revenues 22,089,050          35,423                 1,456,891            23,581,364          


EXPENDITURES


Current


Instruction 12,940,487          -                           -                           12,940,487          


Instruction-related activities:


Supervision of instruction 179,147               -                           -                           179,147               


Instructional library, media and


 technology 213,682               -                           -                           213,682               


School site administration 1,457,453            -                           -                           1,457,453            


Pupil services:


Home-to-school transportation 237,746               -                           -                           237,746               


Food services -                           -                           689,298               689,298               


All other pupil services 404,237               -                           -                           404,237               


Administration:


All other administration 1,303,345            -                           -                           1,303,345            


Data processing services 142,237               -                           -                           142,237               


Plant services 1,550,966            -                           232,766               1,783,732            


Facility acquisition and construction 124,551               9,768,550            416,449               10,309,550          


Ancillary services 39,511                 -                           -                           39,511                 


Other outgo 337,295               -                           -                           337,295               


Debt service


Principal -                           -                           95,000                 95,000                 


Interest and other -                           -                           433,394               433,394               


Total Expenditures 18,930,657          9,768,550            1,866,907            30,566,114          


Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues


 Over Expenditures 3,158,393            (9,733,127)           (410,016)              (6,984,750)           


Other Financing Sources (Uses)


Transfers in -                           -                           104,407               104,407               


Other Sources -                           -                           -                           -                           


Transfers out (104,407)              -                           -                           (104,407)              


Net Financing Sources (Uses) (104,407)              -                           104,407               -                           


NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES 3,053,986            (9,733,127)           (305,609)              (6,984,750)           


Fund Balance - Beginning 7,796,739            11,928,017          2,575,909            22,300,665          


Fund Balance - Ending 10,850,725$        2,194,890$          2,270,300$          15,315,915$        
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Total Changes in the Fund Balance - Governmental Funds (6,984,750)$     


Amounts Reported for Governmental Activities in the Statement of


  Activities are Different Because:


Capital outlays to purchase or build capital assets are reported in governmental funds


  as expenditures; however, for governmental activities, those costs are shown in the 


  statement of net assets and allocated over their estimated useful lives as annual


  depreciation expenses in the statement of activities.


This is the amount by which capital outlays exceeds depreciation in the period.


Depreciation expense (1,014,994)$  


Capital outlays 10,308,459    


Net Expense Adjustment 9,293,465         


In the statement of activities, certain operating expenses, such as compensated


  absences (vacations) are measured by the amounts earned during the year.


  In the governmental funds, however, expenditures for these items are


  measured by the amount of financial resources used (essentially, the amounts


  actually paid). 6,965                


Disposal of capital assets are reported as revenue and as gain or loss in the statement


  of activities. (33,499)            


Accreted interest on capital appreciation bonds is accrued as long-term


  debt in the government-wide financials, increasing expense. (1,403,481)       
  


Bond premiums are revenue in the governmental funds in the year bonds are


  issued, but are recorded as a long-term liability and amortized over the term


  of the bonds, in the statement of net position. 5,158                


Payment of principal on long-term liabilities is an expenditure in the


  governmental funds, but it reduces long-term liabilities in the statement of net


  position and does not affect the statement of activities. 95,000              


Interest on long-term obligations is recorded as an expenditure in the funds


  when it is due; however, in the statement of activities, interest expense is


  recognized as the interest accrues, regardless of when it is due.  This is the


  net change in interest expense. (840)                 


An internal service fund is used by the District's management to charge the


  costs of the workers' compensation insurance program to the individual funds. 265                   
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In the governmental funds, pension costs are based on employer contributions


  made to pension plans during the year, However, in the Statement of 


  Activities, pension expense is the net effect of all changes in the deferred


  outflows, deferred inflows and net pension liability during the year. 26,452           


Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities 1,004,735$       
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Governmental


Activities -


Internal


Service Fund


ASSETS


Current Assets


Deposits and investments 50,139$              


Receivables 72                       


Total Current Assets 50,211                


NET POSITION


Unrestricted 50,211                


Total Net Position 50,211$              
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Governmental


Activities -


Internal


Service Fund


OPERATING REVENUES


Local and intermediate sources -$                        


Total Operating Revenues -                          


OPERATING EXPENSES


Services and other operating cost -                          


Total Operating Expenses -                          


Operating Income (Loss) -                          


NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)


Interest income 265                     


Total Nonoperating


Revenues (Expenses) 265                     


Income (Loss) Before Capital Contributions 265                     


Change in Net Position 265                     


Total Net Position - Beginning 49,946                


Total Net Position - Ending 50,211$              
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Governmental


Activities -


Internal


Service Fund


CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES


Cash from Local Revenue -$                        


Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services (32)                      


Net Cash Used by Operating Activities (32)                      


CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES


Interest on investments 265                     


Net Cash Provided (Used) from


 Investing Activities 265                     


Net Decrease in Cash and Cash Equivalents 233                     


Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning 49,906                


Cash and Cash Equivalents - Ending 50,139$              


RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME


 (LOSS) TO NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY


 OPERATING ACTIVITIES


Operating income -$                        


Changes in assets and liabilities:


Accounts receivable (32)                      


NET CASH USED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES (32)$                    
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Retiree


Benefits Scholarship Agency


Trust Trust Funds (ASB) Total


ASSETS


Deposits and investments 210,106$        2,838$             63,002$          275,946$     


Receivables 312                 -                      -                      312              


Due From Other Funds 42,858            42,858         


Total Assets 253,276          2,838               63,002            319,116


LIABILITIES


Accounts payable -                     -                      -                      


Due to student groups -                     -                      63,002            63,002         


Total Liabilities -                     -                      63,002$          63,002$       


NET POSITION


Unreserved 253,276          2,838               -                      256,114


Total Net Position 253,276$        2,838$             -                      $256,114
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Retiree


Benefits Scholarship


Trust Trust Total


ADDITIONS


Private donations -$                        322$                   322$         


District contributions 81,678                -                          81,678      


Interest and investment earnings 1,207                  -                          1,207        


Total Additions 82,885                322                     83,207      


DEDUCTIONS


Other expenditures 67,505                750                     68,255      


Total Deductions 67,505                750                     68,255      


Change in Net Position 15,380                (428)                    14,952      


Net Position - Beginning 237,896              3,266                  241,162    


Net Position - Ending 253,276$            2,838$                256,114$  
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NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
Financial Reporting Entity 
 
The Jefferson Elementary School District was organized in June 1870 under the laws of the State of California.  
The District operates under a locally elected five-member Board form of government and provides educational 
services to grades K-8 as mandated by the State and/or Federal agencies.  The District operates three elementary 
and one middle school. 
 
A reporting entity is comprised of the primary government, component units, and other organizations that are 
included to ensure the financial statements are not misleading.  The primary government of the District consists of 
all funds, departments, boards, and agencies that are not legally separate from the District.  For Jefferson 
Elementary School District, this includes general operations, food service, and student related activities of the 
District. 
 
Component Units 
 
Component units are legally separate organizations for which the District is financially responsible.  Component 
units may also include organizations that are fiscally dependent on the District, in that the District approves their 
budget, the issuance of their debt or the levying of their taxes.  In addition, component units are other legally 
separate organizations for which the District is not financially accountable but the nature and significance of the 
organization's relationship with the District is such that exclusion would cause the District's financial statements 
to be misleading or incomplete.  For financial reporting purposes, the component unit discussed below is reported 
in the District's financial statements because of the significance of its relationship with the District.  The 
component unit, although a legally separate entity, is reported in the financial statements using the blended 
presentation method as if it were part of the District's operations because the governing board of the component 
unit is essentially the same as the governing board of the District and because its purpose is to finance the 
construction of facilities to be used for the benefit of the District. 
 
The Community Facilities District No. 1 (CFD) was formed under the provisions of the Mello-Roos Community 
Facilities Act of 1982, was amended by Chapter 2.5, Part I, Division 2, Title 5 of the Government Code of the 
State of California established March 30, 1989.  For financial presentation, the CFD's financial activity has been 
blended or combined with the financial data for the District.  The financial statements present the CFD's financial 
activity within the Capital Projects for Blended Component Units and the Debt Service for Blended Units Funds.  
Individually-prepared financial statements are not prepared for the CFD. 
 
Other Related Entities 
 
Public Entity Risk Pools and Joint Powers Authorities  The District is associated with public entity risk pools 
and two joint powers authorities.  These organizations do not meet the criteria for inclusion as component units of 
the District.  Additional information is presented in Note 14 to the financial statements.  These organizations are: 
 
San Joaquin County Schools Workers' Compensation Insurance Group 
San Joaquin County Schools Property and Liability Insurance Group 
San Joaquin County Schools Data Processing Group 







JEFFERSON ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2016 


 


 


30 


Basis of Presentation 
 
The accounting system is organized and operated on a fund basis.  A fund is defined as a fiscal and accounting 
entity with a self-balancing set of accounts, which are segregated for the purpose of carrying on specific activities 
or attaining certain objectives in accordance with special regulations, restrictions, or limitations.  The District's 
funds are grouped into three broad range fund categories: governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary. 
 
Governmental Funds  Governmental funds are those through which most governmental functions typically are 
financed.  Governmental fund reporting focuses on the sources, uses, and balances of current financial resources.  
Expendable assets are assigned to the various governmental funds according to the purposes for which they may 
or must be used.  Current liabilities are assigned to the fund from which they will be paid.  The difference 
between governmental fund assets and liabilities is reported as fund balance.  The following are the District's 
major and non-major governmental funds. 
 
Major Governmental Funds 
 
General Fund  The General Fund is the chief operating fund for all Districts.  It is used to account for the 
ordinary operations of a District.  All transactions except those required or permitted by law to be in another fund 
are accounted for in this fund. 
 
Building Fund  The Building Fund exists primarily to account separately for proceeds from the sale of bonds 
(Education Code Section 15146) and may not be used for any purpose other than those for which the bonds were 
issued. 
 
Non-Major Governmental Funds 
 
Special Revenue Funds  The Special Revenue Funds are established to account for the proceeds from specific 
revenue sources (other than trusts or for major capital projects) that are restricted to the financing of particular 
activities.  The District maintains the following special revenue funds: 
 


Cafeteria Fund  The Cafeteria Fund is used to account separately for Federal, State and local resources 
to operate the food service program (Education Code Sections 38090-38093) and is used only for those 
expenditures authorized by the governing board as necessary for the operation of the District's food 
service program (Education Code Sections 38091 and 38100). 


 
Deferred Maintenance Fund  The Deferred Maintenance Fund is used to account separately for state 
apportionments and the District's contributions for deferred maintenance purposes (Education Code 
Sections 17582-17587) and for items of maintenance approved by the State Allocation Board. 
 
Pupil Transportation Equipment Fund  The Pupil Transportation Fund is used to account separately 
for State and local revenues specifically for the acquisition, rehabilitation, or replacement of equipment 
used to transport students (Educational Code Section 41852[b]). 
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Capital Project Funds  The Capital Project Funds are established to account for financial resources to be used 
for the acquisition or construction of major capital facilities (other than those financed by proprietary funds and 
trust funds).  The District maintains the following capital project funds: 
 


County School Facilities Fund  The County School Facilities Fund is established pursuant to Education 
Code Section 17070.43 to receive apportionments from the 1998 State School Facilities Fund 
(Proposition 1A), the 2002 State School Facilities Fund (Proposition 47), or the 2004 State School 
Facilities Fund (Proposition 55) authorized by the State Allocation Board for new school facility 
construction, modernization projects, and facility hardship grants, as provided in the Leroy F. Greene 
School Facilities Act of 1998 (Education Code Section 17070 et seq.). 


 
Capital Projects Fund for Blended Component Units  The Capital Projects Fund for Blended 
Component Units is used to account for capital projects financed by Mello-Roos Community Facility 
Districts and similar entities that are considered blended component units of the District under generally 
accepted accounting principles (GAAP). 
 
Capital Facilities Fund  The Capital Facilities Fund is used to account for resources received from 
developer impact fees assessed under provisions of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). 
 


Debt Service Funds  The Debt Service Funds are established to account for the accumulation of resources for 
and the payment of principal and interest on general long-term debt. 
 
 Bond Interest and Redemption Fund  The Bond Interest and Redemption Fund is used for the payment 
 of bonds issued for a District (Education Code Sections 15125-15262). 
 
Proprietary Funds  Proprietary fund reporting focuses on the determination of operating income, changes in net 
assets, financial position, and cash flows.  The District applies all GASB pronouncements, as well as the Financial 
Accounting Standards Board pronouncements issued on or before November 30, 1989, unless those 
pronouncements conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements.  Proprietary funds are classified as enterprise 
or internal service. 
 
Fiduciary Funds  Fiduciary funds are used to account for assets held in trustee or agent capacity for others that 
cannot be used to support the District's own programs.  The fiduciary fund category is split into four 
classifications: pension trust funds, investment trust funds, private-purpose trust funds, and agency funds.  The 
key distinction between trust and agency funds is that trust funds are subject to a trust agreement that affects the 
degree of management involvement and the length of time that the resources are held. 
 
Trust funds are used to account for the assets held by the District under a trust agreement for individuals, private 
organizations, or other governments and are therefore, not available to support the District's own programs.  The 
District's trust funds are the Scholarship Trust and the Retiree Benefits Trust funds.  Agency funds are custodial in 
nature (assets equal liabilities).  The District's agency fund accounts for student body activities (ASB). 
 
Basis of Accounting – Measurement Focus 
 
Government-Wide Financial Statements  The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net 
assets and the statement of activities) report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the District and its 
component units. 
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The government-wide statements are prepared using the economic resources measurement focus.  This is the same 
approach used in the preparation of the fiduciary fund financial statements but differs from the manner in which 
governmental fund financial statements are prepared.  Governmental fund financial statements, therefore, include 
a reconciliation with brief explanations to better identify the relationship between the government-wide 
statements and the statements for the governmental funds. 
 
The government-wide statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program 
revenues for each function or program of the District's governmental activities.  Direct expenses are those that are 
specifically associated with a service, program or department and are therefore clearly identifiable to a particular 
function.  The District does not allocate indirect expenses to functions in the statement of activities.  Program 
revenues include charges paid by the recipients of goods or services offered by a program, as well as grants and 
contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular program.  
Revenues which are not classified as program revenues are presented as general revenues of the District, with 
certain exceptions.  The comparison of direct expenses with program revenues identified the extent to which each 
governmental function is self-financing or draws from the general revenues of the District. 
 
Net position should be reported as restricted when constraints placed on net assets use are either externally 
imposed by creditors (such as through debt covenants), grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other 
governments or imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.  The net position 
restricted for other activities result from special revenue funds and the restrictions on their net assets use. 
 
Fund Financial Statements  Fund financial statements report detailed information about the District.  The focus 
of governmental and proprietary fund financial statements is on major funds rather than reporting funds by type.  
Each major fund is presented in a separate column.  Non-major funds are aggregated and presented in a single 
column.  The internal service fund is presented in a single column on the face of the proprietary fund statements. 
 


Governmental Funds  All governmental funds are accounted for using the flow of current financial 
resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting.  With this measurement 
focus, only current assets and current liabilities generally are included on the balance sheet.  The 
statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balance reports on the sources (revenues and 
other finances sources) and uses (expenditures and other financing uses) or current financial resources.  
This approach differs from the manner in which the governmental activities of the government-wide 
financial statements are prepared.  Governmental fund financial statements, therefore, include 
reconciliations with brief explanations to better identify the relationship between the government-wide 
financial statements, prepared using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of 
accounting, and the governmental fund financial statements, prepared using the flow of current financial 
resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. 
 
Proprietary Funds  Proprietary funds are accounted for using the flow of economic resources 
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting.  All assets and all liabilities associated with the 
operation of this fund are included in the statement of net assets.  The statement of changes in fund net 
assets presents increases (revenues) and decreases (expenses) in net total assets.  The statement of cash 
flows provides information about how the District finances and meets the cash flow needs of its 
proprietary fund. 


 
Fiduciary Funds  The Fiduciary activities are reflected in the retiree benefits trust fund, scholarship trust 
fund,  and agency funds.  The agency funds report a balance sheet and do not have a measurement focus.  
The retiree benefit trust and the scholarship trust used the current financial resources measurement focus. 
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Revenues – Exchange and Non-Exchange Transactions  Revenue resulting from exchange transactions, in 
which each party gives and receives essentially equal value, is recorded on the accrual basis when the exchange 
takes place.  On a modified accrual basis, revenue is recorded in the fiscal year in which the resources are 
measurable and become available.  Available means that the resources will be collected within the current fiscal 
year or are expected to be collected soon enough thereafter, to be used to pay liabilities of the current fiscal year.  
Generally, available is defined as collectible within 90 days.  However, to achieve comparability of reporting 
among California districts and so as not to distort normal revenue patterns, with specific respect to reimbursement 
grants and corrections to State-aid apportionments, the California Department of Education has defined available 
for districts as collectible within one year.  The following revenue sources are considered to be both measureable 
and available at fiscal year-end: State apportionments, interest, certain gains, and other local sources. 
 
Non-exchange transactions, in which the District receives value without directly giving equal value in return, 
include property taxes, certain grants, entitlements, and donations.  Revenue from property taxes is recognized in 
the fiscal year in which the taxes are received.  Revenue from certain grants, entitlements, and donations are 
recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements have been satisfied.  Eligibility requirements 
include time and purpose restrictions.  On a modified accrual basis, revenue from non-exchange transactions must 
also be available before it can be recognized. 
 
Unearned Revenue  Unearned revenue arises when potential revenue does not meet both the "measureable" and 
"available" criteria for recognition in the current period or when resources are received by the District prior to the 
incurrence of qualifying expenditures.  In subsequent periods, when both revenue recognition criteria are met, or 
when the District has legal claim to the resources, the liability for unearned revenue is removed from the balance 
sheet and revenue is recognized. 
 
Certain grants received before the eligibility requirements are met, are recorded as unearned revenue.  On the 
governmental fund financial statements, receivables that will not be collected within the available period are also 
recorded as unearned revenue. 
 
Expenses/Expenditures  On the accrual basis of accounting, expenses are recognized at the time they are 
incurred.  The measurement focus of governmental fund accounting is on decreases in net financial resources 
(expenditures) rather than expenses.   Expenditures are generally recognized in the accounting period in which the 
related fund liability is incurred, if measurable.  Principal and interest on long-term obligations, which has not 
matured, are recognized when paid in the governmental funds.  Allocations of costs, such as depreciation and 
amortization, are not recognized in the governmental funds. 
 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 
 
The District's cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits, and short-term 
investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition.  Cash equivalents also 
include cash with county treasury balances for purposes of the statement of cash flows. 
 
Investments 
 
Investments held at June 30, 2016, with original maturities greater than one year are stated at fair value.  Fair 
value is estimated based on quoted market prices at year-end.  All investments not required to be reported at fair 
value are stated at cost or amortized cost.  Fair values of investments in county investment pool are determined by 
the program sponsor. 
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Prepaid Expenditures 
 
Prepaid expenditures (expenses) represent amounts paid in advance of receiving goods or services.  The District 
has the option of reporting an expenditure in governmental funds for prepaid items either when purchased or 
during the benefit period.  The District has chosen to report the expenditures when incurred. 
 
Stores Inventories 
 
Inventories are recorded using the consumption method, in that inventory acquisitions are initially recorded in 
inventory (asset) accounts, and are charged as expenditures when used.  Reported inventories are equally offset by 
nonspendable fund balance which indicates that these amounts are not "available for appropriation and 
expenditure" even though they are a component of net current assets.  The District's cafeteria inventory valuation 
is First-in-First-out (FIFO). 
 
Capital Assets and Depreciation 
 
The accounting and reporting treatment applied to the capital assets associated with a fund are determined by its 
measurement focus.  Capital assets are long-lived assets of the District.  The District maintains a capitalization 
threshold of $5,000.  The District does not possess any infrastructure.  Improvements are capitalized; the cost of 
normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend an asset's life are not 
capitalized, but are expensed as incurred. 
 
When purchased, such assets are recorded as expenditures in the governmental funds and capitalized in the 
government-wide statement of net assets.  The valuation basis for capital assets is historical cost, or where 
historical cost is not available, estimated historical cost based on replacement cost.  Donated capital assets are 
capitalized at estimated fair market value on the date donated. 
 
Capital assets in the proprietary funds are capitalized in the fund in which they are utilized.  The valuation basis 
for proprietary fund capital assets is the same as those used for the capital assets of governmental funds. 
 
Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method.  Estimated useful lives of the various classes of 
depreciable capital assets are as follows: buildings, 20 to 50 years; improvements, 5 to 50 years; equipment, 2 to 
15 years. 
 
Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources 
 
In addition to assets, the statement of financial position also reports deferred outflows of resources.  This separate 
financial statement element represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period and so will not 
be recognized as an expense or expenditure until then.  The District reports deferred outflows of resources for the 
unamortized loss on the refunding of general obligation bonds and current year pension contributions. 
 
In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position reports a separate section for deferred inflows of 
resources.  This separate financial statement element represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a 
future period and so will not be recognized as revenue until then.  The District reports deferred inflows of 
resources for the difference between actual and expected rate of return on investments specific to the net pension 
liability. 
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Pensions 
 
For purposes of measuring the net pension liability and deferred outflows/inflows of resources related to pensions, 
and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the California State Teachers Retirement 
System (CalSTRS) and the California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS) plan for Schools (Plans) 
and additions to/deductions from the Plans’ fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they 
are reported by CalSTRS and CalPERS.  For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee 
contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms.  Member contributions 
are recognized in the period in which they are earned.  Investments are reported at fair value. 


 
Interfund Balances 
 
In the financial statements, receivables and payables resulting from short-term interfund loans are classified as 
"interfund receivables/payables".  These amounts are eliminated in the governmental column of the statement of 
net assets, which are presented as internal balances. 
 
Compensated Absences 
 
Accumulated unpaid vacation benefits are accrued as a liability as the benefits are earned.  The entire 
compensated absence liability is reported on the government-wide statement of net assets.  For governmental 
funds, the current portion of unpaid compensated absences is recognized upon the occurrence of relevant events 
such as employee resignations and retirements that occur prior to year-end that have not yet been paid with 
expendable available financial resources.  These amounts are reported in the fund from which the employees who 
have accumulated leave are paid. 
 
Sick leave is accumulated without limit for each employee at the rate of one day for each month worked.  Leave 
with pay is provided when employees are absent for health reasons; however, the employees do not gain a vested 
right to accumulated sick leave.  Employees are never paid for any sick leave balance at termination of 
employment or any other time.  Therefore, the value of accumulated sick leave is not recognized as a liability in 
the District's financial statements.  However, credit for unused sick leave is applicable to all classified school 
members who retire after January 1, 1999.  At retirement, each member will receive .004 year of service credit for 
each day of unused sick leave. 
 
Accrued Liabilities and Long-Term Obligations 
 
All payables, accrued liabilities, and long-term obligations are reported in the government-wide and proprietary 
fund financial statements.  In general, governmental fund payables and accrued liabilities that, once incurred, are 
paid in a timely manner and in full from current financial resources are reported as obligations of the 
governmental funds. 
 
However, claims and judgments, compensated absences, special termination benefits, and contractually required 
pension contributions that will be paid from government funds are reported as a liability in the governmental fund 
financial statements only to the extent that they are due for repayment during the current year.  Bonds, capital 
leases, and other long-term obligations are recognized as liabilities in the governmental fund financial statements 
when due. 
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Fund Balance Reporting 
 
The District reports fund balance within one of the following categories: 
 
Nonspendable such as fund balance associated with inventories, prepaids, long-term loans and notes receivable, 
and property held for resale (unless the proceeds are restricted, committed, or assigned), 
 
Restricted fund balance category includes amounts that can be spent only for the specific purposes stipulated by 
constitution, external resources providers, or through enabling legislation, 
 
Committed fund balance classification includes amounts that can be used only for the specific purposes 
determined by a formal action of the School District Board of Directors (the district's highest level of decision-
making authority), 
 
Assigned fund balance classification are intended to be used by the government for specific purposes but do not 
meet the criteria to be classified as restricted or committed, and 
 
Unassigned fund balance is the residual classification for the government's general fund and includes all 
spendable amounts not contained in the other classifications. 
 
Committed Fund Balance Policy  For funds that are determined to fall within the “Committed Fund Balance” 
classification, the Governing Board, as the District's highest level of decision-making authority, may commit fund 
balance for specific purposes pursuant to constraints imposed by formal actions taken, such as a majority vote or 
resolution. These committed amounts cannot be used for any other purpose unless the Governing Board removes 
or changes the specific use through the same type of formal action taken to establish the commitment. Governing 
Board action to commit fund balance needs to occur within the fiscal reporting period, no later than June 30th; 
however, the amount can be determined with the release of the financial statements. 


 
Assigned Fund Balance Policy  Amounts that are constrained by the District's intent to be used for specific 
purposes, but are neither restricted nor committed, should be reported as assigned fund balance. The District 
delegates the authority to assign amounts to be used for specific purposes to the Chief Business Official for the 
purpose of reporting these amounts in the financial statements. 
 


Minimum Fund Balance Policy  The purpose of the District's fund balance policy is to maintain a prudent level of 
financial resources to protect against reducing service levels because of temporary revenue shortfalls or 
unpredicted one-time expenditures. 
 
The District has adopted a policy to achieve and maintain unrestricted fund balance in the General Fund of 3 
percent of total General Fund expenditures, other uses and transfers out at the close of each fiscal year, consistent 
with the recommended level promulgated by the State of California. 
 
Order of Fund Balance Spending Policy  For which amounts in any of the unrestricted fund balance 
classifications could be used, the District's policy is to apply expenditures in the following order: committed, 
assigned, and then unassigned. 
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First, non-spendable fund balances are determined.  Then restricted fund balances for specific purposes are 
determined (not including non-spendable amounts). Then any remaining fund balances amounts for the non-
general funds are classified as restricted fund balance. 
 
It is possible for the non-general funds to have negative unassigned fund balance when non-spendable amounts 
plus the restricted fund balances for specific purposes amounts exceed the positive fund balances for the non-
general fund. 
 
Net Position 
 
Net position represents the difference between assets and liabilities.  Net position invested in capital assets, net of 
related debt consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, is reduced by the outstanding balances of 
any borrowings used for the acquisition, construction or improvement of those assets.  Net position is reported as 
restricted when there are limitations imposed on their use either through the enabling legislation adopted by the 
District or through external restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors, or laws or regulations of other 
governments.  The District first applies restricted resources when an expense is incurred for purposes for which 
both restricted and unrestricted net position is available. 
 
Operating Revenues and Expenses 
 
Operating revenues are those revenues that are generated directly from the primary activity of the proprietary 
funds.  For the District, these revenues are for in-district charges for the self-insurance.  Operating expenses are 
necessary costs incurred to provide the goods or service that are the primary activity of the fund.  All revenues 
and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses. 
 
Interfund Activity 
 
Exchange transactions between funds are reported as revenues in the seller funds and as expenditures/expenses in 
the purchaser funds.  Flows of cash or goods from one fund to another without a requirement for repayment are 
reported as interfund transfers.  Interfund transfers are reported as other financing sources/uses in governmental 
funds and after non-operating revenues/expenses in proprietary funds.  Repayments from funds responsible for 
particular expenditures/expenses to the funds that initially paid for them are not presented in the financial 
statements of activities. 
 
Estimates 
 
The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts 
reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes.  Actual results may differ from those estimates. 
 
Budgetary Data 
 
The budgetary process is prescribed by provisions of the California Education Code and requires the governing 
board to hold a public hearing and adopt an operating budget no later than July 1st of each year.  The District 
governing board satisfied these requirements.  The adopted budget is subject to amendment throughout the year to 
give consideration to unanticipated revenue and expenditures primarily resulting from events unknown at the time 
of budget adoption with the legal restriction that expenditures cannot exceed appropriations by major object 
account. 
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The amounts reported as the original budgeted amounts in the budgetary statements reflect the amounts when the 
original appropriations were adopted.  The amounts reported as the final budgeted amounts in the budgetary 
statements reflect the amounts after all amendments have been accounted for.  For purposes of the budget, on 
behalf payments have not been included as revenue and expenditures as required under generally accepted 
accounting principles. 
 
Property Tax 
 
Secured property taxes attach as an enforceable lien on property as of January 1.  Taxes are payable in two 
installments on November 1 and February 1 and become delinquent on December 10 and April 10, respectively.  
Unsecured property taxes are payable in one installment on or before August 31.  The County of San Joaquin bills 
and collects the taxes on behalf of the District.  Local property tax revenues are recorded when received. 
 
New Accounting Pronouncements  
 
GASB Statement No. 75 – In June 2015, GASB issued Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting 


for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions.  This standard’s primary objective is to improve accounting 
and financial reporting by state and local governments for postemployment benefits other than pensions.  The 
Statement is effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2017.   
 
GASB Statement No. 80 – In January 2016, GASB issued Statement No. 80, Blending Requirements for Certain 


Component Units – an Amendment of GASB Statement No. 14.  This standard’s primary objective is to improve 
financial reporting by clarifying the financial statement presentation requirements for certain component units.  
The Statement is effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2016.   
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NOTE 2 – DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS 
 
Summary of Deposits and Investments 
 
Deposits and investments as of June 30, 2016, are classified in the accompanying financial statements as follows: 
 


Governmental activities 15,439,136$        


Proprietary fund 50,139                 


Fiduciary funds 63,002                 


Total Deposits and Investments 15,552,277$        


 
Deposits and investments as of June 30, 2016, consist of the following: 
 


Cash on hand and in banks 65,895$               


Cash in revolving accounts 5,000                   


Investments 15,481,382          


Total Deposits and Investments 15,552,277$        


 
Policies and Practices 
 
The District is authorized under California Government Code to make direct investments in local agency bonds, 
notes, or warrants within the State; U.S. Treasury instruments; registered State warrants or treasury notes; 
securities of the U.S. Government, or its agencies; bankers acceptances; commercial paper; certificates of deposit 
placed with commercial banks and/or savings and loan companies; repurchase or reverse repurchase agreements; 
medium term corporate notes; shares of beneficial interest issued by diversified management companies, 
certificates of participation, obligations with first priority security; and collateralized mortgage obligations. 
 
Investment in County Treasury – The District is considered to be an involuntary participant in an external 
investment pool as the District is required to deposit all receipts and collections of monies with their County 
Treasurer (Education Code Section 41001).  The fair value of the District's investment in the pool is reported in 
the accounting financial statements at amounts based upon the District's pro-rata share of the fair value provided 
by the County Treasurer for the entire portfolio (in relation to the amortized cost of that portfolio).  The balance 
available for withdrawal is based on the accounting records maintained by the County Treasurer, which is 
recorded on the amortized cost basis. 
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General Authorizations 
 
Limitations as they relate to interest rate risk, credit risk, and concentration of credit risk are indicated in the 
schedules below: 
 


Maximum Maximum Maximum


Authorized Remaining Percentage Investment


Investment Type Maturity of Portfolio in One Issuer


Local Agency Bonds, Notes, Warrants 5 years None None


Registered State Bonds, Notes, Warrants 5 years None None


U.S. Treasury Obligations 5 years None None


U.S. Agency Securities 5 years None None


Banker's Acceptance 180 days 40% 30%


Commercial Paper 270 days 25% 10%


Negotiable Certificates of Deposit 5 years 30% None


Repurchase Agreements 1 year None None


Reverse Repurchase Agreements 92 days 20% of base None


Medium-Term Corporate Notes 5 years 30% None


Mutual Funds N/A 20% 10%


Money Market Mutual Funds N/A 20% 10%


Mortgage Pass-Through Securities 5 years 20% None


County Pooled Investment Fund N/A None None


Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) N/A None None


Joint Powers Authority Pools N/A None None


 
Authorized Under Debt Agreements 


Investments of debt proceeds held by bond trustees are governed by provisions of the debt agreements, rather than 
the general provisions of the California Government Code.  These provisions allow for the acquisition of 
investment agreements with maturities of up to 30 years. 
 
Interest Rate Risk 


Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an 
investment.  Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment the greater the sensitivity of its fair value to 
changes in market interest rates.  The District does not have a formal investment policy that limits investment 
maturities as a means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates.  The 
District manages its exposure to interest rate risk by primarily investing in the San Joaquin County Investment 
Pool. 
 
Weighted Average Maturity 


The District monitors the interest rate risk inherent in its portfolio by measuring the weighted average maturity of 
its portfolio.  Information about the weighted average maturity of the District’s portfolio is present in the 
following schedule: 
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Days to


Investment Type Fair Value Maturity


San Joaquin County Investment Pool 15,512,345$         353 days


 


Credit Risk 


Credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder of the investment.  
This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized statistical rating organization.  
Presented below is the minimum rating required by the California Government Code, the District’s investment 
policy, or debt agreements, and the actual rating as of the year-end for each investment type. 
 


Minimum


Legal Rating


Investment Type Rating June 30, 2016 Fair Value


San Joaquin County Investment Pool Not Required Unrated 15,512,345$          


 


Custodial Credit Risk – Deposits 
 
This is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the District's deposits may not be returned to it.  The District 
does not have a policy for custodial credit risk for deposits.  However, the California Government Code requires 
that a financial institution secure deposits made by State or local government units by pledging securities in an 
undivided collateral pool held by a depository regulated under State law (unless so waived by the governmental 
unit).  The market value of the pledged securities in the collateral pool must equal at least 110 percent of the total 
amount deposited by the public agencies.  California law also allows financial institutions to secure public 
deposits by pledging first trust deed mortgage notes having a value of 150 percent of the secured public deposits 
and letters of credit issued by the Federal Home Loan Bank of San Francisco having a value of 105 percent of the 
secured deposits.  As of June 30, 2016, the District's bank balance of $71,669 with a carrying amount of  
$70,895, was under $250,000 and therefore covered under Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC). 
 
Custodial Credit Risks – Investments 
 
This is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty, the District will not be able to recover the value 
of its investments or collateral securities that are in possession of an outside party.  The California Government 
Code does not contain legal or policy requirements that would limit the custodial credit risk for investments. 
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NOTE 3 – RECEIVABLES 
 
Receivables at June 30, 2016, consisted of intergovernmental grants, entitlements, interest and other local sources.  
All receivables are considered collectible in full. 
 


Non-Major


General Building Governmental Proprietary


 Fund Fund Funds Total Fund


Federal Government


Categorical aid 215,100$       -$                   -$                   215,100$       -$               


State Government


Apportionment -                     -                     -                     -                     -                 


State Categorical -                     -                     -                     -                 


Other State 294,632         -                     -                     294,632         -                 


Interest 15,276           4,618             2,388             22,282           72              


Other Local Sources 13,364           -                     1,843             15,207           -                 


Total 538,372$       4,618$           4,231$           547,221$       72$            
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NOTE 4 – CAPITAL ASSETS 
 
Capital asset activity for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016, was as follows: 
 


Balance Balance


 July 1, 2015 Additions Deductions June 30, 2016


Governmental Activities


Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated:


Land 5,825,263$     -$                    -$                    5,825,263$     


Construction in Progress 17,261,876     10,148,937     474,068          26,936,745     


Total Capital Assets


 Not Being Depreciated 23,087,139     10,148,937     474,068          32,762,008     


Capital Assets Being Depreciated:


Land Improvements 2,084,287       103,879          -                      2,188,166       


Buildings and Improvements 36,152,253     26,323            83,749            36,094,827     


Furniture and Equipment 1,320,492       503,388          -                      1,823,880       


Total Capital Assets Being


 Depreciated 39,557,032     633,590          83,749            40,106,873     


Total Capital Assets 62,644,171     10,782,527     557,817          72,868,881     


Less Accumulated Depreciation:


Land Improvements 154,763          86,347            -                      241,110          


Buildings and Improvements 10,199,927     884,037          50,250            11,033,714     


Furniture and Equipment 1,320,492       44,610            -                      1,365,102       


Total Accumulated Depreciation 11,675,182     1,014,994       50,250            12,639,926     


Governmental Activities Capital


 Assets, Net 50,968,989$   9,767,533$     507,567$        60,228,955$   


 
Depreciation expense was charged as a direct expense to governmental functions as follows: 
 


Governmental Activities


Instruction 1,014,994$     
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NOTE 5 – INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS 
 
Operating Transfers 
 
Interfund transfers for the year ended June 30, 2016, consist of the following: 
 


Non-Major


General Governmental


Transfer Out Fund Funds Total


General Fund -$                       104,407$           104,407$           


Building Fund -                         -                         -                         


-$                       104,407$           104,407$           


Reasons for the interfund transfers are as follows:


The General fund transferred to the Deferred Maintenance fund for district match and repairs. 84,407$             


20,000               


104,407$           


The General fund transferred to the Pupil Transportation fund for contributions to the


  Bus allowance.


Transfer In


Interfund transfers are used to (1) move revenues from the fund that statute or budget requires to collect them to 
the fund that statute or budget requires to expend them, (2) move receipts restricted to debt service from the funds 
collecting receipts to the debt service fund as debt service payments become due, and (3) use unrestricted 
revenues collected in the General Fund to finance various programs accounted for in other funds in accordance 
with budgetary authorizations. 
 
NOTE 6 – ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 
 
Accounts payable at June 30, 2016, consisted of the following: 
 


Non-Major


General Building General


 Fund Fund Fund Total


Salaries and Benefits 255,052$           -$                       103$                  255,155$           


Apportionment -                         -                         -                         -                         


Construction -                         294,932             -                         294,932             


All other payables 74,182               -                         1,986                 76,168               


Total 329,234$           294,932$           2,089$               626,255$           


Governmental Funds
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NOTE 7 – UNEARNED REVENUE 
 
Unearned revenue at June 30, 2016, consists of the following: 
 


General


Fund


Federal financial assistance 6,926$              


6,926$              


 
 
NOTE 8 – LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS 
 
Summary 
 
The changes in the District's long-term obligations during the year consisted of the following: 
 


Balance Balance Due in


 July 1, 2015 Additions  Deductions June 30, 2016 One Year


General Obligation Bonds 35,767,725$ 1,403,481$   95,000$        37,076,206$   140,000$      


Accumulated vacation - net 51,872          -                    6,965            44,907            -                    


Net pension liability 14,370,191   2,069,665     16,439,856     


50,189,788$ 3,473,146$   101,965$      53,560,969$   140,000$      


Premiums, net of amortization 163,865        -                    5,158            158,707          5,158            


50,353,653   3,473,146     107,123        53,719,676     145,158        


Bonded Debt 
 
In April 2011, Jefferson School District issued Series A of the Election of 2010 in the amounts of $5,830,000 in 
current interest bonds and $567,194 in capital appreciation bonds.  Interest on the current interest bonds is payable 
on August 1 and February 1 of each year, commencing August 1, 2011.  The capital appreciation bonds accrete 
interest compounded semi-annually on August 1 and February 1, commencing August 1, 2022.  The proceeds 
from the sale of the bonds will be used for the acquisition, construction and furnishing of equipment for district 
facilities. 
 
In April 2013, Jefferson Elementary School District issued Series B of the Election 2010 in the amounts of 
$1,700,000 in current interest bonds, $14,603,679 in capital appreciation bonds and $6,695,791 in convertible 
capital appreciation bonds.  Interest on the current interest bonds is payable on August 1 and February 1 of each 
year, commencing August 1, 2015.  The capital appreciation bonds and convertible capital appreciation bonds 
accrete interest compounded semi-annually on August 1 and February 1, commencing August 1, 2023.  The 
proceeds from the sale of the bonds will be used for the acquisition, construction and furnishing of equipment for 
district facilities. 
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On September 10, 2014, Jefferson Elementary School District issued Series C of the Election 2010 in the amounts 
of $1,780,000 in current interest bonds and $2,034,069 in capital appreciation bonds.  Interest on the current 
interest bonds accrues from the date of delivery and is payable semiannually on February 1 and August 1 of each 
year, commencing February 1, 2015.  The capital appreciation bonds accrete interest compounded semiannually 
on February 1 and August 1 of each year, commencing on February 1, 2015.  The proceeds from the sale of the 
bonds will be used for the acquisition and construction of school facilities projects. 
 
The outstanding general obligation bonded debt of the District at June 30, 2016 is as follows: 
 


Bonds Additions Bonds


Issue Maturity Interest Original Outstanding and Interest Outstanding


Date Date Rate Issue July 1, 2015 Accrestion Redeemed June 30, 2016


4/27/2011 2041 2.0% - 5.5% 6,397,194$   6,416,039$     42,827$         10,000$         6,448,866$     


4/21/2013 2043 0.84% - 5.5% 22,999,470$ 25,460,450     1,265,969      85,000           26,641,419     


8/19/2014 2044 0.72% - 5.12% 3,814,069$   3,891,236       94,685           -                    3,985,921       


35,767,725$   1,403,481$    95,000$         37,076,206$   


 
Debt Service Requirements to Maturity 
 
The bonds mature through 2054 as follows: 
 


Interest to Accreted


Fiscal Year Principal Maturity Interest Total


2017 114,868              434,094             132                     549,094             


2018 139,546              429,043             454                     569,043             


2019 173,918              242,994             1,082                  417,994             


2020 227,886              421,094             2,114                  651,094             


2021 300,133              414,394             4,867                  719,394             


2022-2026 1,866,558           2,898,329          208,443              4,973,330          


2027-2031 1,885,287           4,185,117          2,269,714           8,340,118          


2032-2036 4,860,006           3,793,941          4,144,993           12,798,940        


2037-2041 8,417,470           2,458,113          7,596,778           18,472,361        


2042-2046 7,861,414           785,863             16,153,491         24,800,768        


2047-2051 5,008,295           -                         28,542,685         33,550,980        


2052-2054 2,060,352           -                         14,725,396         16,785,748        


Subtotal 32,915,733$       16,062,982$      73,650,149$       122,628,864$    


Accretions to date 4,160,473           


Total 37,076,206$       
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Accumulated Unpaid Employee Vacation 
 
The long-term portion of accumulated unpaid employee vacation for the District at June 30, 2016, amounted to 
$44,907. 
 
NOTE 9 – FUND BALANCES 
 
Fund balances with reservations and designations are composed of the following elements: 
 


Non-Major


General Building Governmental


 Fund Fund Funds Total


Fund Balances


Nonspendable:


Revolving cash 5,000$           -$                   -$                   5,000$           


Stores -                     -                     5,597             5,597             


Restricted for:


Other fund activities 1,246,118      2,194,890      1,993,759      5,434,767      


Committed to:


Deferred Maintenance -                     -                     -                     -                     


Assigned to:


Mandated Costs 1,768,715      -                     -                     1,768,715      


Instructional Materials 952,704         -                     -                     952,704         


Board Designated Reserves 500,000         -                     -                     500,000         


Unrestricted Lottery 1,286,104      -                     -                     1,286,104      


Supplemental Funding 747,125         -                     -                     747,125         


Other fund activities -                     -                     270,944         270,944         


Unassigned:


Reserve for Economic Uncertainty -                     -                     -                     -                     


Unassigned/Unappropriataed 4,344,959      -                     -                     4,344,959      


Total Fund Balance 10,850,725$  2,194,890$    2,270,300$    15,315,915$  
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NOTE 10 – NET OPEB OBLIGATION 
 
Plan Description 
 


The Postemployment Benefit Plan (the "Plan") is a single-employer defined benefit healthcare plan administered 
by the Jefferson School District.  The Plan provides medical, dental and vision insurance benefits to eligible 
retirees and their spouses.  Membership of the Plan consists of 5 retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving 
benefits and 7 active plan members.   
 


Certificated Management


Benefit Types Provided Medical, dental and vision Medical, dental and vision


Duration of Benefits


To age 70; plus one month for 


each 3 days of accumulated sick 


leave beyond 50


To age 70; plus one month for 


each 3 days of accumulated sick 


leave beyond 50


Required Service 25 Years 25 Years


Minimum Age 58 58


Dependent Coverage Yes Yes


District Contribution % 100% 100%


District Cap $10,000 per year $10,000 per year


 
Contribution Information 
 


The contribution requirements of the District are established and may be amended by the District and the 
eligible plan members.  The required contribution is based on projected pay-as-you-go financing requirements, 
with an additional amount to prefund benefits.  For fiscal year 2015-2016, the District contributed $42,858 to 
the plan, a portion of which was used for current premiums. 
 


Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation 
 


The District's annual other postemployment benefit (OPEB) cost (expense) is calculated based on the annual 
required contribution of the employer (ARC), an amount actuarially determined in accordance with the 
parameters of GASB Statement No. 45.  The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing 
basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial accrued liabilities 
(UAAL) (or funding excess) over a period not to exceed thirty years.  The District's ARC for the current year 
was $60,667 which was fully funded through contributions made during the year.   
 


Annual required contribution 60,667$      


Adjustment to annual required contribution -                  


Annual OPEB cost (expense) 60,667        


Contributions made (42,858)       


Decrease in net OPEB 17,809        


Net OPEB obligation (asset) beginning of year (186,411)     


Net OPEB obligation (asset), end of year (168,602)$   
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The annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the Plan, and the net OPEB 
obligation for 2016 was as follows: 


 


Year Ended June 30


Annual Required 


Contribution


Percentage 


Contributed Net OPEB Asset


2014 60,667$              47% 172,987$            


2015 60,667$              122% 186,411$            


2016 60,667$              71% 168,602$            


 
Funded Status and Funding Progress 
 
Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions 
about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future.  Examples include assumptions about future 
employment, mortality, and the healthcare cost trend. Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the 
plan and the annual required contributions of the employer are subject to continual revision as actual results are 
compared with past expectations and new estimates are made about the future.  The schedule of funding 
progress, presented as required supplementary information following the notes to the financial statements, 
presents multiyear trend information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing 
over time relative to the actuarial accrued liabilities for benefits.  


 
Actuarial Methods and Assumptions 
 
Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan (the plan as understood 
by the employer and the plan members) and include the types of benefits provided at the time of each valuation 
and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the employer and plan members to that point.  The 
actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce the effects of short-term 
volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent with the long-term 
perspective of the calculations. 
 


In the June 1, 2014, actuarial valuation, the entry age normal actuarial method was used.  The actuarial 
assumptions included a 4.5 percent investment rate of return (net of administrative expenses), based on the 
plan being funded in an irrevocable employee benefit trust invested in a long-term fixed income portfolio.  
Additionally, actuarial assumptions include a 4 percent per year trend increase in healthcare costs.   The UAAL 
is being amortized at a level dollar method for a static 30 years. The remaining amortization period at  
June 1, 2014, was 30 years. The actuarial value of assets was determined at $242,001. 
 
NOTE 11 – RISK MANAGEMENT 
 
Property and Liability 
 
The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; errors 
and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters.  During the fiscal year ending June 30, 2016, the 
District contracted with San Joaquin County Schools for property and liability insurance coverage.  Settled claims 
have not exceeded this commercial coverage in any of the past three years.  There has not been a significant 
reduction in coverage from the prior year. 
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Workers' Compensation 
 
For fiscal year 2015-2016, the District participated in the San Joaquin County Schools Workers' Compensation 
(SJCSWC), an insurance purchasing pool.  The intent of the SJCSWC is to achieve the benefit of a reduced 
premium for the District by virtue of its grouping and representation with other participants in the SJCSWC.  The 
workers' compensation experience of the participating districts is calculated as one experience and a common 
premium rate is applied to all districts in the SJCSWC.  Each participant pays its workers' compensation premium 
based on its individual rate.  Total savings are then calculated and each participant's individual performance is 
compared to the overall savings percentage of each participated school districts.  A participant will then either 
receive money from or be required to contribute to the "equity-pooling fund".  This "equity pooling" arrangement 
insures that each participant shares equally in the overall performance of the SJCSWC. 
 
Employee Medical Benefits 
 
The District has contracted with the Self Insured Schools of California (SISC) to provide classified employee 
medical and surgical benefits.  Self Insured Schools of California is a shared risk pool comprised of Districts 
within California.  Rates are set through an annual calculation process.  The District pays a monthly contribution, 
which is placed in a common fund from which claim payments are made for all participating Districts.  Claims are 
paid for all participants regardless of claims flow.  The Board of Directors has a right to return monies to a district 
subsequent to the settlement of all expenses and claims if a district withdraws from the pool.  The District's 
teachers union independently contracted with the Consolidated Benefit Trust (CBT) to provide certified employee 
medical and surgical benefits. 
 
Coverage provided by San Joaquin County School Workers' Compensation Group and San Joaquin County 
Schools Property and Liability Group for property and liability and workers' compensation is as follows: 
 


Insurance Program/Company Name Type of Coverage Limits


San Joaquin County W/C JPA (PIPS) Workers' Compensation $1,000,000


Norcal ReLief General Liability $1,000,000 with


$50,000 retention


Automobile $1,000,000 with


$50,000 retention


Property $250,000,000 with


$25,000 retention


Student Professional Liability Included with


$50,000 retention
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NOTE 12 – EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS 
 
Qualified employees are covered under multiple-employer defined benefit pension plans maintained by agencies 
of the State of California.  Academic employees are members of the California State Teachers’ Retirement 
System (CalSTRS) and classified employees are members of the California Public Employees’ Retirement 
System (CalPERS) 
 
The District implemented GASB Statement No. 68 and No. 71 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016.  As a 
result, the District reported its proportionate share of the net pension liabilities, pension expense and deferred 
inflow of resources for each of the above plans and a deferred outflow of resources for each of the above plans as 
follows: 
 


Pension Plan


Proportionate 


Share of Net 


Pension Liability


Deferred Outflow 


of Resources


Proportionate Share 


of Deferred Inflow 


of Resources


Proportionate 


Share Pension 


Expense


CalSTRS 13,273,922$        989,684$             1,669,514$              999,245$             


CalPERS 3,165,934            474,165               399,937                   438,150               


Total 16,439,856$        1,463,849$          2,069,451$              1,437,395$          


 
 
California State Teachers' Retirement System (CalSTRS) 
 
Plan Description 
 
The District contributes to the State Teachers Retirement Plan (STRP) administered by the California State 
Teachers' Retirement System (CalSTRS). STRP is a cost-sharing multiple-employer public employee retirement 
system defined benefit pension plan. Benefit provisions are established by State statutes, as legislatively amended, 
within the State Teachers' Retirement Law. 
 
A full description of the pension plan regarding benefit provisions, assumptions (for funding, but not accounting 
purposes), and membership information is listed in the June 30, 2014, annual actuarial valuation report, Defined 
Benefit Program Actuarial Valuation. This report and CalSTRS audited financial information are publically 
available reports that can be found on the CalSTRS website under Publications at: 
http://www.calstrs.com/member-publications. 
 
Benefits Provided 
 
The STRP provides retirement, disability and survivor benefits to beneficiaries. Benefits are based on members' 
final compensation, age and years of service credit. Members hired on or before December 31, 2012, with five 
years of credited service are eligible for the normal retirement benefit at age 60. Members hired on or after 
January 1, 2013, with five years of credited service are eligible for the normal retirement benefit at age 62. The 
normal retirement benefit is equal to 2.0 percent of final compensation for each year of credited service.  
 
The STRP is comprised of four programs: Defined Benefit Program, Defined Benefit Supplement Program, Cash 
Balance Benefit Program and Replacement Benefits Program. The STRP holds assets for the exclusive purpose of 
providing benefits to members and beneficiaries of these programs. CalSTRS also uses plan assets to defray 
reasonable expenses of administering the STRP. Although CalSTRS is the administrator of the STRP, the state is 
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the sponsor of the STRP and obligor of the trust. In addition, the state is both an employer and nonemployer 
contributing entity to the STRP.  
 
The District contributes exclusively to the STRP Defined Benefit Program, thus disclosures are not included for 
the other plans. 
 
The STRP provisions and benefits in effect at June 30, 2016, are summarized as follows: 
 
 STRP Defined Benefit Program 


 On or before On or after 
Hire date December 31, 2012 January 1, 2013 
Benefit formula 2% at 60 2% at 62 
Benefit vesting schedule 5 years of service 5 years of service 
Benefit payments Monthly for life Monthly for life 
Retirement age 60 62 
Monthly benefits as a percentage of eligible compensation 2.0% - 2.4% 2.0% - 2.4% 
Required employee contribution rate 9.20% 8.56% 
Required employer contribution rate 10.73% 10.73% 
Required state contribution rate 7.12589% 7.12589% 
   
Contributions 
 
Required member, District and State of California contributions rates are set by the California Legislature and 
Governor and detailed in Teachers' Retirement Law. The contributions rates are expressed as a level percentage of 
payroll using the entry age normal actuarial method. In accordance with AB 1469, employer contributions into the 
CalSTRS will be increasing to a total of 19.1 percent of applicable member earnings phased over a seven year 
period. The contribution rates for each plan for the year ended June 30, 2016, are presented above and the 
District's total contributions were $989,684. 
 
Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of 
Resources Related to Pensions 
 
At June 30, 2016, the District reported a liability for its proportionate share of the net pension liability that 
reflected a reduction for State pension support provided to the District. The amount recognized by the District as 
its proportionate share of the net pension liability, the related state support and the total portion of the net pension 
liability that was associated with the District were as follows: 
 


Total net pension liability, including State share:


District's proportionate share of net pension liability 13,273,922$         


State's proportionate share of the net pension liability associated with the District 7,020,441             


20,294,363$         


The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2015. The District's proportion of the net pension liability 
was based on a projection of the District's long-term share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the 
projected contributions of all participating school districts and the State, actuarially determined. The District’s 
proportionate share for measurement period June 30, 2015 and Jude 30, 2014, respectively, was 0.0197 percent 
and 0.0203 percent, resulting in a net decrease in the proportionate share of 0.0006 percent. 
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For the year ended June 30, 2016, the District recognized pension expense of $999,245. In addition, the District 
recognized pension expense and revenue of $648,297 for support provided by the State. At June 30, 2016, the 
District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the 
following sources: 
 


Deferred Outflows 


of Resources


Deferred Inflows 


of Resources


-$                          1,082,040$           


-                            221,810                


365,664                


989,684                -                            


989,684$              1,669,514$           


Differences between projected and actual earnings on plan investments


Differences between expected and actual experiences


Changes in proportion and differences between District contributions 


and proportionate share contributions


Pension contributions subsequent to measurement date


Total


 


The deferred outflow of resources related to pensions resulting from District contributions subsequent to the 
measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the subsequent fiscal year. The 
deferred inflow of resources will be amortized over a closed five-year period and will be recognized in pension 
expense as follows: 
 


Deferred Outflows 


(Inflows) of 


Resources


(447,761)$             


(447,761)               


(447,761)               


261,243                


(1,082,040)$          


Year ended June 30,


2017


2018


2019


2020


Total
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The deferred outflows/(inflows) of resources relate to the net change in proportionate share of net pension liability 
and the differences between expected and actual experience in the measurement of the total pension liability will 
be amortized over the Expected Average Remaining Service Life (EARSL) of all members that are provided 
benefits (active, inactive, and retirees) as of the beginning of the measurement period.  The EARSL for the 2014-
2015 measurement period is 7 years and will be recognized in pension expense as follows: 
 


Deferred Outflows 


(Inflows) of 


Resources


(97,912)$               


(97,912)                 


(97,912)                 


(97,912)                 


(97,912)                 


(97,914)                 


(587,474)$             


2021


Thereafter


Total


Year Ended June 30,


2017


2018


2019


2020


Actuarial Methods and Assumptions 
 
Total pension liability for STRP was determined by applying update procedures to a financial reporting actuarial 
valuation as of June 30, 2014, and rolling forward the total pension liability to June 30, 2015. The financial 
reporting actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2014, used the following methods and assumptions, applied to all prior 
periods included in the measurement: 
 
Valuation date June 30, 2014 
Measurement date June 30, 2015 
Experience study July 1, 2006 through June 30, 2010 
Actuarial cost method Entry age normal 
Discount rate 7.60% 
Investment rate of return 7.60% 
Consumer price inflation 3.00% 
Wage growth 3.75% 
 
CalSTRS uses custom mortality tables to best fit the patterns of mortality among its members. These custom 
tables are based on RP2000 series tables adjusted to fit CalSTRS experience. 
 
The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block method 
in which best estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan 
investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. The best estimate ranges were 
developed using capital market assumptions from CalSTRS general investment consultant. Based on the model 
for CalSTRS consulting actuary' investment practice, a best estimate range was determined be assuming the 
portfolio is re-balanced annually and that the annual returns are lognormally distributed and independently from 
year to year to develop expected percentile for the long-term distribution of annualized returns. The assumed asset 
allocation is based on board policy for target asset allocation in effect on February 2, 2012, the date the current 
experience study was approved by the board. Best estimates of 10-year geometric real rates of return and the 
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assumed asset allocation for each major asset class used as input to develop the actuarial investment rate of return 
are summarized in the following table: 
 


Asset Class  
Assumed Asset 


Allocation  
Long-term Expected 
Real Rate of Return 


Global equity  47%  4.50% 
Private equity  12%  6.20% 
Real estate  15%  4.35% 
Inflation sensitive  5%  3.20% 
Fixed income  20%  0.20% 
Cash/liquidity  1%  0.00% 
 
Discount Rate 
 
The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.60 percent. The projection of cash flows used 
to determine the discount rate assumed the contributions from plan members and employers will be made at 
statutory contribution rates. Projected inflows from investment earnings were calculated using the long-term 
assumed investment rate of return (7.60 percent) and assuming that contributions, benefit payments and 
administrative expense occurred midyear. Based on these assumptions, the STRP's fiduciary net position was 
projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments to current plan members. Therefore, the 
long-term assumed investment rate of return was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine 
total pension liability. 
 
The following presents the District's proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using the current 
discount rate as well as what the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 
one percent lower or higher than the current rate: 
 


Net Pension 


Liability


20,042,588$         


13,273,922$         


1% increase (8.60%) 7,648,613$           


Discount Rate


1% decrease (6.60%)


Current discount rate (7.60%)


 
California Public Employees Retirement System (CalPERS) 
 
Plan Description 
 
Qualified employees are eligible to participate in the School Employer Pool (SEP) [and the Safety Risk Pool] 
under the California Public Employees' Retirement System (CalPERS), a cost-sharing multiple-employer public 
employee retirement system defined benefit pension plan administered by CalPERS. Benefit provisions are 
established by State statutes, as legislatively amended, within the Public Employees' Retirement Law. 
 
A full description of the pension plan regarding benefit provisions, assumptions (for funding, but not accounting 
purposes), and membership information is listed in the June 30, 2015 annual actuarial valuation report, Schools 
Pool Actuarial Valuation, [and the Risk Pool Actuarial Valuation Report, Safety,] 2015. These report and 
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CalPERS audited financial information are publically available reports that can be found on the CalPERS website 
under Forms and Publications at: https://www.calpers.ca.gov/page/forms-publications. 
Benefits Provided 
 


CalPERS provides service retirement and disability benefits, annual cost of living adjustments and death benefits 
to plan members, who must be public employees and beneficiaries. Benefits are based on years of service credit, a 
benefit factor and the member's final compensation. Members hired on or before December 31, 2012, with five 
years of total service are eligible to retire at age 50 with statutorily reduced benefits. Members hired on or after 
January 1, 2013, with five years of total service are eligible to retire at age 52 with statutorily reduced benefits. 
All members are eligible for non-duty disability benefits after five years of service. The Basic Death Benefit is 
paid to any member's beneficiary if the member dies while actively employed. An employee's eligible survivor 
may receive the 1957 Survivor Benefit if the member dies while actively employed, is at least age 50 (or 52 for 
members hired on or after January 1, 2013), and has at least five years of credited service. The cost of living 
adjustments for each plan are applied as specified by the Public Employees' Retirement Law. 
 
The CalPERS provisions and benefits in effect at June 30, 2016, are summarized as follows: 
 
 School Employer Pool (CalPERS) 


 On or before On or after 
Hire date December 31, 2012 January 1, 2013 
Benefit formula 2% at 55 2% at 62 
Benefit vesting schedule 5 years of service 5 years of service 
Benefit payments Monthly for life Monthly for life 
Retirement age 55 62 
Monthly benefits as a percentage of eligible compensation 1.1% - 2.5% 2.0% - 2.4% 
Required employee contribution rate 7.000% 6.000% 
Required employer contribution rate 11.847% 11.847% 
 
Contributions 
 
Section 20814(c) of the California Public Employees' Retirement Law requires that the employer contribution 
rates for all public employers be determined on an annual basis by the actuary and shall be effective on the July 1 
following notice of a change in the rate. Total plan contributions through the CalPERS annual actuarial valuation 
process. The actuarially determined rate is the estimated amount necessary to finance the costs of benefits earned 
by employees during the year, with an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability. The District is 
required to contribute the difference between the actuarially determined rate and the contribution rate of 
employees. The contributions rates are expressed as percentage of annual payroll. The contribution rates for each 
plan for the year ended June 30, 2016, are presented above and the total District contributions were $293,227. 
 
Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of 
Resources Related to Pensions 
 
As of June 30, 2016, the District reported net pension liabilities for its proportionate share of the CalPERS net 
pension liability totaling $3,165,934. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2015. The District's 
proportion of the net pension liability was based on a projection of the District's long-term share of contributions 
to the pension plan relative to the projected contributions of all participating school districts, actuarially 
determined. The District’s proportionate share for measurement period June 30, 2015 and June 30, 2014, 
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respectively, was 0.0215  percent and 0.0223 percent, resulting in a net decrease in the proportionate share of 
0.0008 percent. 
 
For the year ended June 30, 2016, the District recognized pension expense of $438,150. At June 30, 2016, the 
District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the 
following sources: 


Deferred Outflows 


of Resources


Deferred Inflows 


of Resources


-$                          108,404$              


180,938                -                            


-                            194,524                


97,009                  


293,227                


474,165$              399,937$              


Differences between projected and actual earnings on plan investments


Differences between expected and actual experience


Change in assumption


Changes in proportion and differences between District contributions 


and proportionate share contributions


Pension contributions subsequent to measurement date


The deferred outflow of resources related to pensions resulting from District contributions subsequent to the 
measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the subsequent fiscal year. The 
deferred inflow of resources will be amortized over a closed five-year period and will be recognized in pension 
expense as follows: 
 


Deferred Inflows 


of Resources


(79,466)$               


(79,466)                 


(79,466)                 


129,994                


(108,404)$             


Year Ended June 30,


2017


2018


2019


2020


Total


The deferred outflows/(inflows) of resources relate to the net change in proportionate share of net pension liability 
and the differences between expected and actual experience in the measurement of the total pension liability will 
be amortized over the Expected Average Remaining Service Life (EARSL) of all members that are provided 
benefits (active, inactive, and retirees) as of the beginning of the measurement period.  The EARSL for the 2014-
2015 measurement period is 3.9 years and will be recognized in pension expense as follows: 
 


Deferred Inflows 


of Resources


(38,136)$               


(38,136)                 


(34,322)                 


(110,594)$             Total


Year Ended June 30,


2017


2018


2019


 







JEFFERSON ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2016 


 


 


58 


 
Actuarial Methods and Assumptions 
 
Total pension liability for the SEP was determined by applying update procedures to a financial reporting 
actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2014, and rolling forward the total pension liability to June 30, 2015. The 
financial reporting actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2014, used the following methods and assumptions, applied 
to all prior periods included in the measurement: 
 
Valuation date June 30, 2014 
Measurement date June 30, 2015 
Experience study July 1, 1997 through June 30, 2011 
Actuarial cost method Entry age normal 
Discount rate 7.65% 
Investment rate of return 7.50% 
Consumer price inflation 2.75% 
Wage growth 3.00% 
 
Mortality assumptions are based on mortality rates resulting from the most recent CalPERS experience study 
adopted by the CalPERS Board. For purposes of the post-retirement mortality rates, those revised rates include 
five years of projected ongoing mortality improvement using Scale AA published by the Society of Actuaries. 
 
In determining the long-term expected rate of return, CalPERS took into account both short-term and long-term 
market return expectations as well as the expected pension fund cash flows. Using historical returns of all the 
funds' asset classes, expected compound returns were calculated over the short-term (first ten years) and the long-
term (11-60 years) using a building-block approach. Using the expected nominal returns for both short-term and 
long-term, the present value of benefits was calculated for each fund. The expected rate of return was set by 
calculating the single equivalent expected return that arrived at the same present value of benefits for cash flows 
as the one calculated using both short-term and long-term returns. The expected rate of return was then set 
equivalent to the single equivalent rate calculated above and rounded down to the nearest one quarter of one 
percent. The target asset allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class 
are summarized in the following table: 
 


Asset Class  
Assumed Asset 


Allocation  
Long-term Expected 
Real Rate of Return 


Global equity  51%  5.25% 
Global fixed income  19%  0.99% 
Private equity  10%  6.83% 
Real estate  10%  4.50% 
Inflation sensitive  6%  0.45% 
Infrastructure and Forestland  2%  4.50% 
Liquidity  2%  -0.55% 
 
Discount Rate 
 
The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.65 percent. The projection of cash flows used 
to determine the discount rate assumed the contributions from plan members and employers will be made at 
statutory contribution rates. Based on these assumptions, the School Employer Pool fiduciary net position was 
projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments to current plan members. Therefore, the 
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long-term assumed investment rate of return was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine 
total pension liability. 
 
The following presents the District's proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using the current 
discount rate as well as what the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 
one percent lower or higher than the current rate: 
 


Net Pension 


Liability


5,152,821$           


3,165,934$           


1,513,704$           1% increase (8.65%)


Discount Rate


1% decrease (6.65%)


Current discount rate (7.65%)


 
Social Security 
 
As established by Federal law, all public sector employees who are not members of their employer’s existing 
retirement system (CalSTRS or CalPERS) must be covered by social security or an alternative plan. The District 
has elected to use social security. Contributions made by the District and an employee vest immediately. The 
District contributes 6.2% of an employee’s gross earnings and employees are required to contribute an additional 
6.2% of gross earnings. 
 
On Behalf Payments 
 
The State of California makes contributions to CalSTRS on behalf of the District. These payments consist of State 
General Fund contributions to CalSTRS in the amount of $648,297 (7.12589% of annual payroll). Under 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, these amounts are to be reported as 
revenue and expenditures. Accordingly, these amounts have been recorded in these financial statements. On 
behalf payments have been excluded from the calculations of available reserves. 
 
NOTE 13 – COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 
 
Grants 
 
The District received financial assistance from Federal and State agencies in the form of grants.  The 
disbursement of funds received under these programs generally requires compliance with terms and conditions 
specified in the grant agreements and are subject to audit by the grantor agencies.  Any disallowed claims 
resulting from such audits could become a liability of the General Fund or other applicable funds.  However, in 
the opinion of management, any such disallowed claims will not have a material adverse effect on the overall 
financial position of the District at June 30, 2016. 
 
Litigation 
 
The District is involved in various legal litigation arising from the normal course of business.  In the opinion of 
management and legal counsel, the disposition of all litigation pending is not expected to have a material adverse 
effect on the overall financial position of the District at June 30, 2016. 
 







JEFFERSON ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2016 


 


 


60 


NOTE 14 – PARTICIPATION IN PUBLIC ENTITY RISK POOLS, JOINT POWER AUTHORITIES 
AND OTHER RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 
 
The District is a member of the San Joaquin County School Workers' Compensation Insurance Group 
(SJCSWCIG), San Joaquin County Schools Property and Liability Insurance Group (SJCSP&LIG) public entity 
risk pools, Tracy Area Public Facilities Financing Agency (TAPFFA) joint powers agency, and the San Joaquin 
County Schools Data Processing Group (SJCSDPC).  The District pays an annual premium to the applicable 
entity for its health, workers’ compensation, legal services, data processing, and property liability coverage.  The 
relationships between the District and the JPA's are such that they are not component units of the District for 
financial reporting purposes. 
 
These entities have budgeting and financial reporting requirements independent of member units and their 
financial statements are not presented in these financial statements; however, fund transactions between the 
entities and the District are included in these statements.  Audited financial statements are generally available 
from the respective entities. 
 
During the year ended, the District made payments of $246,630, $132,231 and $82,675 to the San Joaquin County 
School Workers' Compensation Insurance Group, San Joaquin County Schools Property and Liability Insurance 
Group, and San Joaquin County Schools Data Processing, respectively, for the workers' compensation insurance, 
property and liability insurance, and data processing. 
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Variances -


Positive


(Negative)


Actual Final to


Original Final (GAAP Basis) Actual


REVENUES


LCFF sources 17,885,642$     17,847,416$     17,519,014$     (328,402)$         


Federal sources 336,014            344,929            720,049            375,120            


Other State sources 596,042            2,717,144         2,917,944         200,800            


Other local sources 505,697            781,777            932,043            150,266            


Total Revenues 19,323,395       21,691,266       22,089,050       397,784            


EXPENDITURES


Current


Certificated salaries 9,740,003         9,744,771         9,283,390         461,381            


Classified salaries 2,391,369         2,409,420         2,406,482         2,938                


Employee benefits 3,579,416         4,096,363         4,169,390         (73,027)             


Books and supplies 1,815,608         1,515,995         743,319            772,676            


Services and operating expenditures 1,968,268         2,330,592         1,918,208         412,384            


Other outgo 280,372            340,472            337,295            3,177                


Capital Outlay 100,000            121,187            72,573              48,614              


Total Expenditures 19,875,036       20,558,800       18,930,657       1,628,143         


Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues


 Over Expenditures (551,641)           1,132,466         3,158,393         2,025,927         


Other Financing Sources (Uses)


Transfers in -                        -                        -                        -                        


Other Sources -                        -                        -                        -                        


Transfers out (104,407)           (104,407)           (104,407)           -                        


Net Financing Sources (Uses) (104,407)           (104,407)           (104,407)           -                        


NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES (656,048)           1,028,059         3,053,986         2,025,927         


Fund Balance - Beginning 7,796,739         7,796,739         7,796,739         -                        


Fund Balance - Ending 7,140,691$       8,824,798$       10,850,725$     2,025,927$       


Budgeted Amounts


(GAAP Basis)
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Actuarial 


Valuation Date


Actuarial 


Value of 


Assets


(a)


Actuarial 


Accrued 


Liability (AAL) - 


Level Percent of 


Payroll


(b)


Unfunded 


AAL (UAAL)


(b-a)


Funded 


Ratio 


(a / b)


Estimated 


Covered 


Payroll 


(c)


UAAL as a 


Percentage of 


Covered 


Payroll ([b - a] 


/ c)


June 1, 2008 285,076$       847,395$           562,319$       34% 10,890,000$    5%


December 8, 2011 332,922$       1,423,305$        1,090,383$    23% 11,500,000$    9%


June 1, 2014 242,001$       1,031,426$        789,426$       23% 11,600,000$    7%


Schedule of Funding Progress
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CalSTRS Plan 2016 2015


Proportion of the net pension liability 0.0197% 0.0203%


District's proportionate share of the net pension liability 13,273,922$  11,837,897$  


State's proportionate share of the net pension liability associated with the District 7,020,441      7,150,090      


Total 20,294,363$  18,987,987$  


District's covered employee payroll 10,973,002$  9,097,770$    


District's proportionate share of the net pension liability as a percentage of its 


  covered employee payroll 121% 130%


Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension liability 77% 77%


CalPERS Plan


Proportion of the net pension liability 0.0215% 0.0223%


District's proportionate share of the net pension liability 3,165,934$    2,532,294$    


District's covered employee payroll 2,350,997$    2,344,826$    


District's proportionate share of the net pension liability as a percentage of its 


covered employee payroll 135% 108%


Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension liability 83% 83%


 
Change in assumptions – (CalPERS) In 2016, the discount rate changed from 7.50% (net of administrative 
expenses in 2014) to 7.65% as of June 30, 2015 measurement date to correct adjustment which previously 
reduced the discount rate for administrative expenses. 
 
Note: Fiscal year 2015 was the first year of implementation, therefore only two years are shown.  As data becomes available, 


ten years of information will be presented 
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CalSTRS Plan 2016 2015


Contractually required contribution (actuarially determined) 989,684$         810,993$         


Contributions in relation to the actuarially determined contribution 989,684           810,993           
Contribution deficiency (excess) -$                     -$                     


Covered-employee payroll $9,252,124 $10,973,002


Contribution as a percentage of covered-employee payroll 10.70% 7.39%


CalPERS Plan 2016 2015


Contractually required contribution (actuarially determined) 293,227$         274,762$         


Contributions in relation to the actuarially determined contribution 293,227           274,762           
Contribution deficiency (excess) -$                     -$                     


Covered-employee payroll $2,487,913 $2,350,997


Contribution as a percentage of covered-employee payroll 11.79% 11.69%


 
 
 
 
Note: Fiscal year 2015 was the first year of implementation, therefore only two years are shown.  As data becomes available, 


ten years of information will be presented 
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NOTE 1 – PURPOSE OF SCHEDULES 
 
Budgetary Comparison Schedule 
This schedule is required by GASB Statement No. 34 as required supplementary information (RSI) for the 
General Fund and for each major special revenue fund that has a legally adopted annual budget.  The budgetary 
comparison schedule presents both (a) the original and (b) the final appropriated budgets for the reporting period 
as well as (c) actual inflows, outflows, and balances, stated on the District’s budgetary basis.  A separate column 
to report the variance between the final budget and actual amounts is also presented, although not required.   
 
Schedule of Funding Progress 
This schedule is required by GASB Statement No. 45 for all sole and agent employers that provide other 
postemployment benefits (OPEB).  The schedule presents, for the most recent actuarial valuation and the two 
preceding valuations, information about the funding progress of the plan, including, for each valuation, the 
actuarial valuation date, the actuarial value of assets, the actuarial accrued liability, the total unfunded actuarial 
liability (or funding excess), the actuarial value of assets as a percentage of the actuarial accrued liability (funded 
ratio), the annual covered payroll, and the ratio of the total unfunded actuarial liability (or funding excess) to 
annual covered payroll. 
 
Schedule of the District’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability 
This 10-year schedule is required by GASB Statement No. 68 for each cost-sharing pension plan.  Until a full 10-
year trend is compiled, the schedule will only show those years under which GASB Statement No. 68 was 
applicable.  The schedule presents the District’s proportion (percentage) of the collective net pension liability, the 
District’s proportionate share (amount) of the collective net pension liability, the District’s covered-employee 
payroll, and the pension plan’s fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension liability. 
 
Schedule of District’s Contributions for Pensions 
This 10-year schedule is required by GASB Statement No. 68 for each cost-sharing pension plan.  Until a full 10-
year trend is compiled, the schedule will only show those years under which GASB Statement No. 68 was 
applicable.  The schedule presents the District’s statutorily or contractually required employer contribution, the 
amount of contributions recognized by the pension plan in relation to the statutorily or contractually required 
employer contribution, the difference between the statutorily or contractually required employer contribution and 
the amount of contributions recognized by the pension plan in relation to the statutorily or contractually required 
employer contribution, the District’s covered-employee payroll, and the amount of contributions recognized by 
the pension plan in relation to the statutorily or contractually required employer contribution as a percentage of 
the District’s covered-employee payroll. 
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III - Supplementary Information 
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Pass-Through


Federal Entity


Federal Grantor/Pass-Through CFDA Identifying Federal


Grantor/Program or Cluster Title Number Number Expenditures


U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION


Passed through California Department of Education:


Title I, Part A - Basic Grants Low Income and Neglected 84.010 14981 241,151$         


Title II, Part A - Teacher Quality 84.367 14341 23,245             


Title III - Limited English Proficiency 84.365 14346 43,005             


Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA) Cluster


IDEA, Basic Local Assistance, Entitlement Part B, Sec 611 84.027 13379 316,579           


IDEA, Preschool Grants, Part B, Sec 619 84.173 13430 6,612               


IDEA, Preschool Local Entitlement 84.027A 13682 20,197             


Subtotal Individiuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA) Cluster 343,388           


Total U.S. Department of Education 650,789           


US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES


     Passed through California Department of Health Services:


Medi-Cal Administrative Activities 93.778 10060 38,452             


Medi-Cal Billing Option 93.778 10013 3,619               


Total U.S. Department of Health and Human Services 42,071             


U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE


     Passed through California Department of Education:


Child Nutrition Cluster


National School Breakfast 10.553 13526 262,138           


National School Lunch 10.555 13524 56,377             


Commodities 10.565 13524 51,071             


Total U.S. Department of Agriculture 369,586           


Total Expenditures of Federal Awards 1,062,446$      
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ORGANIZATION 
 
The Jefferson Elementary School District was established in June 1870 and consists of an area comprising 
approximately 130 square miles.  The District operates three elementary, and one middle school.  There were no 
boundary changes during the year. 
 
 


GOVERNING BOARD 
 


MEMBER OFFICE TERM EXPIRES 
   


Debbi Wingo President 2016 
   
Dan Wells Vice President 2018 
   
Jacqueline Thomas Clerk 2018 
   
Brian Jackman Member 2018 
   
Pete Carlson Member 2016 
 
 


ADMINISTRATION 
 


Jim Bridges       Superintendent 
 
Mindy Maxedon      Chief Business Officer 
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Second Period Annual


Report Report


ELEMENTARY


Transitional Kindergarten/Kindergarten through third 897                     899                     


Fourth through sixth 828                     829                     


Seventh and eighth 557                     557                     


Special education 3                         3                         


Total Elementary 2,285                  2,288                  
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2015-2016


Minutes Actual Traditional Multitrack


Grade Level Requirement Minutes Calendar Calendar Status


Kindergarten 36,000 38,745 180 N/A Complied


Grade 1 50,400 50,490 180 N/A Complied


Grade 2 50,400 50,490 180 N/A Complied


Grade 3 50,400 50,490 180 N/A Complied


Grade 4 54,000 59,070 180 N/A Complied


Grade 5 54,000 59,490 180 N/A Complied


Grade 6 54,000 59,490 180 N/A Complied


Grade 7 54,000 59,490 180 N/A Complied


Grade 8 54,000 59,490 180 N/A Complied


Number of Days
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Summarized below are the fund balance reconciliations between the Unaudited Actual Financial Report and the 
audited financial statements. 
 


FORM ASSET


Balance, June 30, 2016, Unaudited Actuals 36,789,921$       


Increase in:


Construction in progress 12,657,192         


Land improvements 2,188,166           


Buildings and improvements 17,169,366         


Accumulated Depreciation 313,971              


Decrease in:


Furniture and equipment (8,889,661)          


Balance, June 30, 2016, Audited Financial Statements 60,228,955$       


FORM DEBT


Total Long-Term Obligations, June 30, 2016, Unaudited Actuals 32,964,989$       


Increase in:


General Obligation Bonds 4,275,342           


Net Pension Liability 16,439,856         


Premiums, net of amortization 158,707              


Decrease in:


Capital Leases (119,218)             


Total Long-Term Obligations, June 30, 2016, Audited Financial Statements 53,719,676$       
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(Budget)


2017 
1


2016 2015 2014


GENERAL FUND


Revenues 20,625,011$   22,089,050$   18,704,635$ 17,763,815$   


Other sources -                     -                     -                    -                     


Total Revenues


 and Other Sources 20,625,011     22,089,050     18,704,635   17,763,815     


Expenditures 22,380,156     18,930,657     18,443,535   17,901,491     


Other uses and transfers out 104,407          104,407          104,407        -                     


Total Expenditures


 and Other Uses 22,484,563     19,035,064     18,547,942   17,901,491     


INCREASE (DECREASE) IN


 FUND BALANCE (1,859,552)$   3,053,986$     156,693$      (137,676)$      


ENDING FUND BALANCE 8,991,173$     10,850,725$   7,796,739$   7,640,046$     


AVAILABLE RESERVES 
2


5,318,102$     4,344,959$     3,655,462$   4,011,762$     


AVAILABLE RESERVES AS A


 PERCENTAGE OF TOTAL OUTGO 23.65% 22.83% 19.71% 22.41%


LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS 53,574,518$   53,719,676$   50,353,653$ 48,880,694$   


K-12 AVERAGE DAILY


 ATTENDANCE AT P-2 2,210              2,285              2,345            2,354              


 
The General Fund balance has increased by $3,210,679 over the past two years.  The fiscal year 2016-2017 
budget projects a budget decrease of $1,859,552. For a district this size, the State recommends available reserves 
of at least three percent of total General Fund expenditures, transfers out, and other uses (total outgo). 
 
The District has incurred an operating surplus for two of the past three years and anticipates incurring an 
operating deficit during the 2016-2017 fiscal year.  Total long-term obligations have increased by $4,838,982 
over the past two years.   
 
Average daily attendance has decreased by 69 over the past two years.  Decrease of 75 ADA is anticipated during 
fiscal year 2016-2017. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
_____________________________ 
 


1
  Budget 2017 is included for analytical purposes only and has not been subjected to audit. 


2
  Available reserves consist of all undesignated fund balances and all funds designated for economic uncertainty contained within the 


    General Fund. 
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Included in Audit Report


The District does not sponsor any charter schools.


Name of Charter School
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Deferred Pupil


Cafeteria Maintenance Transportation


Fund Fund Fund


ASSETS


Deposits and investments 259,976$             206,618$             276,264$             


Receivables 361                      72                        372                      


Stores inventories 5,597                   -                           -                           


Total Assets 265,934               206,690               276,636               


LIABILITIES AND


 FUND BALANCES


Liabilities:


Accounts payable 749                      -                           -                           


Due to other funds 891                      -                           -                           


Total Liabilities 1,640                   -                           -                           


Fund Balances:


Nonspendable 5,597                   -                           -                           


Restricted 258,697               -                           276,636               


Committed -                           -                           -                           


Assigned -                           206,690               -                           


Unassigned -                           -                           -                           


Total Fund Balance 264,294               206,690               276,636               


Total Liabilities and


 Fund Balances 265,934$             206,690$             276,636$             
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Capital County Schools Capital Projects Bond Interest Total Non-Major


Facilities Facilities Blended Component And Redemption Governmental


Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds


1,045,368$          5,629$                58,533$                     411,064$               2,263,452$            


3,334                   8                         84                              -                             4,231                     


-                           -                          -                                -                             5,597                     


1,048,702            5,637                  58,617                       411,064                 2,273,280              


1,340                   -                          -                                -                             2,089                     


-                           -                          -                                -                             891                        


1,340                   -                          -                                -                             2,980                     


-                           -                          -                                -                             5,597                     


1,047,362            -                          -                                411,064                 1,993,759              


-                           -                          -                                -                             -                            


-                           5,637                  58,617                       -                             270,944                 


-                           -                          -                                -                             -                            


1,047,362            5,637                  58,617                       411,064                 2,270,300              


1,048,702$          5,637$                58,617$                     411,064$               2,273,280$            
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Deferred Pupil


Cafeteria Maintenance Transportation


Fund Fund Fund


REVENUES


LCFF sources -$                        84,407$              -$                        


Federal sources 369,584              -                          -                          


Other State sources 20,985                -                          -                          


Other local sources 334,428              678                     1,368                  


Total Revenues 724,997              85,085                1,368                  


EXPENDITURES


Current


Pupil services:


Food services 689,298              -                          -                          


Administration:


All other administration -                          -                          -                          


Plant services -                          161,809              -                          


Facility acquisition and construction -                          400,000              -                          


Debt service


Principal -                          -                          -                          


Interest -                          -                          -                          


Total Expenditures 689,298              561,809              -                          


Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues


 Over Expenditures 35,699                (476,724)             1,368                  


Other Financing Sources (Uses)


Transfers in -                          84,407                20,000                


Other Financing Sources (Uses) -                          -                          -                          


Net Financing Sources (Uses) -                          84,407                20,000                


NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES 35,699                (392,317)             21,368                


Fund Balance - Beginning 228,595              599,007              255,268              


Fund Balance - Ending 264,294$            206,690$            276,636$            
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Capital County School Capital Projects Bond Interest Total Non-Major


Facilities Facilities Blended Component And Redemption Governmental


Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds


-$                      -$                         -$                              -$                           84,407$                 


-                        -                           -                                -                             369,584                 


-                        -                           -                                3,951                     24,936                   


100,712            29                        310                            540,439                 977,964                 


100,712            29                        310                            544,390                 1,456,891              


-                        -                           -                                -                             689,298                 


-                        -                           -                                -                             -                            


70,957              -                           -                                -                             232,766                 


16,449              -                           -                                -                             416,449                 


-                        -                           -                                95,000                   95,000                   


-                        -                           -                                433,394                 433,394                 


87,406              -                           -                                528,394                 1,866,907              


13,306              29                        310                            15,996                   (410,016)               


-                        -                           -                                -                             104,407                 


-                        -                           -                                -                             -                            


-                        -                           -                                -                             104,407                 


13,306              29                        310                            15,996                   (305,609)               


1,034,056         5,608                   58,307                       395,068                 2,575,909              


1,047,362$       5,637$                 58,617$                     411,064$               2,270,300$            
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NOTE 1 – PURPOSE OF SCHEDULES 
 
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 
 
The accompanying schedule of expenditures of Federal awards includes the Federal grant activity of the District 
and is presented on the modified accrual basis of accounting.  The information in this schedule is presented in 
accordance with Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, 


Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards.  Therefore, some amounts presented in this 
schedule may differ from amounts presented in, or used in the preparation of, the financial statements. 
 
The following schedule provides reconciliation between revenues reported on the Statement of Revenues, 


Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances, and the related expenditures reported on the Schedule of 


Expenditures of Federal Awards.  The reconciling amount consists primarily of Medi-Cal Billing Option and 


Administrative Activities funds that have been recorded revenue in prior periods and expensed in the current 


period as of June 30, 2016.  Unspent balances are reported as legally restricted ending balances with the General 


Fund. 


CFDA


Number Amount


Description


Total Federal Revenues From the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures


and Changes in Fund Balances: 1,089,633$        


Medi-Cal Billing Option 93.778 (27,187)              


Total Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 1,062,446$        


Indirect cost rate- The District has elected not to use the 10-percent de minimis indirect cost rate allowed under 


the Uniform Guidance 


Sub-recipient – The District did not provide federal awards to sub-recipients during the year ended June 30, 2016.  


Local Education Agency Organization Structure 


This schedule provides information about the District's boundaries and schools operated, members of the 
governing board, and members of the administration. 
 
Schedule of Average Daily Attendance (ADA) 
 
Average daily attendance (ADA) is a measurement of the number of pupils attending classes of the District.  The 
purpose of attendance accounting from a fiscal standpoint is to provide the basis on which apportionments of 
State funds are made to school districts.  This schedule provides information regarding the attendance of students 
at various grade levels and in different programs. 
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Schedule of Instructional Time 
 
The District has received incentive funding for increasing instructional time as provided by the Incentives for 
Longer Instructional Day.  This schedule presents information on the amount of instructional time offered by the 
District and whether the District complied with the provisions of Education Code Sections 46200 through 46206. 
 
The District has not met its local control funding formula target. 
 
Districts must maintain their instructional minutes at the 1986-87 requirement as required by Education Code 


Section 46201.   
 
Reconciliation of Annual Financial and Budget Report with Audited Financial Statements 
 
This schedule provides the information necessary to reconcile the fund balance of all funds reported on the 
Unaudited Actual Financial Report to the audited financial statements. 
 
Schedule of Financial Trends and Analysis 
 
This schedule discloses the District's financial trends by displaying past years' data along with current year budget 
information.  These financial trend disclosures are used to evaluate the District's ability to continue as a going 
concern for a reasonable period of time. 
 
Schedule of Charter Schools 
 
This schedule provides information for the California Department of Education to monitor financial reporting by 
Charter Schools. 
 
Non-Major Governmental Funds – Balance Sheet and Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Change 
in Fund Balance 
 
The Non-Major Governmental Funds Combining Balance Sheet and Combining Statement of Revenues, 
Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance is included to provide information regarding the individual funds that 
have been included in the Non-Major Governmental Funds column on the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet 
and Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance. 
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IV - Independent Auditors' Reports 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER 
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS 


BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 


  
 
Governing Board 
Jefferson Elementary School District 
Tracy, California 
 
We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America 
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, each major 
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Jefferson Elementary School District (the District) as 
of and for the year ended June 30, 2016, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively 
comprise Jefferson Elementary School District's basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon 
dated December 7, 2016. 
 
 
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 
 
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Jefferson Elementary School 
District's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not 
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Jefferson Elementary School District's internal 
control.  Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Jefferson Elementary School District's 
internal control. 
 
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, 
misstatements on a timely basis.  A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal 
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the District's financial statements 
will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis.  A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough 
to merit attention by those charged with governance. 
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Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section 
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or 
significant deficiencies.  Given these limitations, during our audit, we did not identify any deficiencies in internal 
control that we consider to be material weaknesses.  However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been 
identified. 
 
Compliance and Other Matters 
 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Jefferson Elementary School District's financial 
statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of 
laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material 
effect on the determination of financial statement amounts.  However, providing an opinion on compliance with 
those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.  The 
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under 
Government Auditing Standards. 
 
Purpose of This Report 
 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the 
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the District's internal control or on 
compliance.  This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing 


Standards in considering the District's internal control and compliance.  Accordingly, this communication is not 
suitable for any other purpose.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
El Dorado Hills, California 
December 7, 2016 


 
 
 







Cichella & Tokunaga, LLP 
Certified Public Accountants 


 
4671 Golden Foothill Parkway � El Dorado Hills, CA 95672      www.ctcpa.net 


Voice:  (877) 359-9588 � Fax:  (916) 941-7234 


 


 


84 


 
 


INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR  
EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER  


COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE 
 
 
Governing Board 
Jefferson Elementary School District 
Tracy, California 
 
Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 
 
We have audited Jefferson Elementary School District's compliance with the types of compliance requirements 
described in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of Jefferson 
Elementary School District's (the District) major Federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2016.  Jefferson 
Elementary School District's major Federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor's results section of 
the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. 
 
Management's Responsibility 
 
Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations and terms and conditions of its 
federal awards applicable to its federal programs. 
 
Auditor's Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the Jefferson Elementary School District’s 
major federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We 
conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by 
the Comptroller General of the United States and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal 


Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for 


Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance).  Those standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance 
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. 
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the Jefferson Elementary School District’s 
compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the 
circumstances. 
 
We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major Federal 
program.  However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of Jefferson Elementary School District's 
compliance. 
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Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 
 
In our opinion, Jefferson Elementary School District complied, in all material respects, with the types of 
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major 
Federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2016. 
 
Report on Internal Control Over Compliance 
 
Management of the Jefferson Elementary School District is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective 
internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and 
performing our audit of compliance, we considered the Jefferson Elementary School District’s internal control 
over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal 
program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control 
over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on 
the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the Jefferson Elementary School District’s internal control over compliance. 
 
A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance 
does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to 
prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a Federal program on a 
timely basis.  A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of 
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material 
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a Federal program will not be prevented, or detected and 
corrected, on a timely basis.  A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a 
Federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important 
enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 
 
Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph 
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be 
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies.  We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over 
compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses.  However, material weaknesses may exist that have not 
been identified. 
 
The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of 
internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform 
Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. 
 
 
 
 
 
El Dorado Hills, California 
December 7, 2016 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH APPLICABLE 
REQUIREMENTS IN ACCORDANCE WITH 2015-16 GUIDE FOR ANNUAL 


AUDITS OF K-12 LOCAL EDUCATION AGENCIES AND  
STATE COMPLIANCE REPORTING 


 
 
 


Governing Board 
Jefferson Elementary School District 
Tracy, California 
 
Report on State Compliance 
 
We have audited Jefferson Elementary School District's compliance with the types of compliance requirements as 
described in the 2015-16 Guide for Annual Audits of K-12 Local Education Agencies and State Compliance 


Reporting applicable to the Jefferson Elementary School District's programs as identified in the below schedule 
for the year ended June 30, 2016. 
 
Management's Responsibility 
 
Management is responsible for compliance with the state statutes, regulations and terms and conditions of its state 
awards applicable to its state programs. 
 
Auditor's Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for the Jefferson Elementary School District's State 
programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above.  We conducted our audit 
of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller 
General of the United States; and 2015-16 Guide for Annual Audits of K-12 Local Education Agencies and State 


Compliance Reporting, published by the Education Audit Appeals Panel.  Those standards and the 2015-16 Guide 


for Annual Audits of K-12 Local Education Agencies and State Compliance Reporting require that we plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance 
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on the programs identified in the below 
schedule occurred.  An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about Jefferson Elementary School 
District's compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary 
in the circumstances.  We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance.  
However, our audit does not provide a legal determination on the District’s compliance with those requirements. 
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In connection with the requirements referred to above, we selected and tested transactions and records to 
determine the Jefferson Elementary School District's compliance with the Applicable programs identified below: 
 
 


Compliance Requirements 
 Procedures 


Performed 


 
LOCAL EDUCATION AGENCIES OTHER THAN CHARTER 
SCHOOLS 


  


   
Attendance  Yes 
Teacher Certification and Misassignments  Yes 
Kindergarten Continuance  Yes 
Independent Study  No, See Below 
Continuation Education  Not Applicable 
Instructional Time  Yes 
Instructional Materials  Yes 
Ratios of Administrative Employees to Teachers  Yes 
Classroom Teacher Salaries  Yes 
Early Retirement Incentive  Not Applicable 
GANN Limit Calculation  Yes 
School Accountability Report Card  Yes 
Juvenile Court Schools  Not Applicable 
Middle or Early College High Schools  Not Applicable 
K-3 Grade Span Adjustment   Yes 
Transportation Maintenance of Effort  Yes 
   
SCHOOL DISTRICTS, COUNTY OFFICE EDUCATION AND 
CHARTER SCHOOLS 


  


   
Educator Effectiveness  Yes 
California Clean Energy Jobs Act  Yes 
After School Education and Safety Program  Not Applicable 
Proper Expenditure of Education Protection Account Funds  Yes 
Common Core Implementation Funds  Yes 
Unduplicated Local Control Funding Formula Pupil Counts  Yes 
Local Control and Accountability Plan  Yes 
Independent Study-Course Based  Not Applicable 
Immunizations  Not Applicable 
   
CHARTER SCHOOLS   
   
Attendance  Not Applicable 
Mode of Instruction  Not Applicable 
Non-classroom-Based Instruction/Independent Study  Not Applicable 
Determination of Funding for Non-classroom-Based Instruction  Not Applicable 
Annual Instructional Minutes – Classroom Based  Not Applicable 
Charter School Facilities Grant Program  Not Applicable 
   
 







 


 


88 


We did not perform testing for Independent Study because the ADA generated from the program is below the 
testing threshold.  
 
Opinion on the State Compliance 
 
In our opinion, Jefferson Elementary School District complied, in all material respects, with the types of 
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on the programs identified 
in the above schedule for the year ended June 30, 2016. 
 
 
 
 
El Dorado Hills, California 
December 7, 2016 
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V - Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS   
Type of auditors' report issued:  Unmodified 


Internal control over financial reporting:   
Material weaknesses identified?  No 


Significant deficiencies identified not considered to be material weaknesses?  None Reported 


Noncompliance material to financial statements noted?  No 


   
FEDERAL AWARDS   
Internal control over major federal programs:   


Material weaknesses identified?  No 


Significant deficiencies identified not considered to be material weaknesses?  None Reported 


Type of auditors' report issued on compliance for major federal programs:  Unmodified 


Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in accordance with    
   2 CFR 200.516(a)?  No 


Identification of major federal programs   
 


CFDA Number(s)  Name of Federal Program or Cluster 


84.027, 84.173, 84.027A  Special Education Cluster (IDEA) 


   


   


   


   


 
Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs:  $750,000 


Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?  Yes 


   
STATE AWARDS   
Internal control over state programs:   
     Material weaknesses identified?  No 


     Significant deficiency identified?  None Reported 


Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in accordance with 
   Audits of California K-12 Local Education Agencies? 


  
No 


Type of auditors’ report issued on compliance for state programs:  Unmodified 
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None Noted. 
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There were no audit findings and questioned costs related to the federal awards for the year ended June 30, 2016. 
 
 
 
 
 







JEFFERSON ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
STATE AWARDS FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 
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There were no audit findings and questioned costs related to the state awards for the year ended June 30, 2016.







JEFFERSON ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 
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There were no prior year findings reported for June 30, 2015. 
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